FILED

APR 20 2022

T
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS

IN RE: THE PETITION OF JOE GREGORY STEWART
FOR REINSTATEMENT TO THE MISSISSIPPI BAR

CASE NUMBER 2022 - BR-003I& 2.

JOE GREGORY STEWART PETITIONER

PETITION OF JOE GREGORY STEWART FOR
REINSTATEMENT TO THE MISSISSIPPI BAR

COMES NOW Joe Gregory Stewart (hereinafter referred to as “Petitioner”), by and
through duly appointed counsel, and respectfully moves the Court pursuant to Rule 12 of the
Mississippi Rules of Discipline, for an order reinstating his eligibility to obtain a law license

after his disbarment and, in support thereof, Petitioner would show the following:

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is the Petitioner’s fourth petition for reinstatement for an offense that occurred in 1998
that resulted in self-reporting misconduct to the U. S. Attorney’s office for the Northern District
of Mississippi, 23 years ago. The first petition seeking reinstatement was filed in 2007; and this
Court entered its order denying the petition on September 18, 2008. The second petition was
filed in December, 2009; and this Court denied the petition on January 2011. The third petition

was filed November 8, 2017, and this Court denied the petition on July 25, 2019.
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II FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Petitioner was disbarred on September 1, 2004, after Petitioner pleaded guilty in Federal
Court to one count of conspiracy to commit extortion under color of official right. Mississippi
Bar v. Stewart, 890 So.2d 900 (Miss 2004). In 1998, Petitioner had paid Ferrell Hunter, a
Tunica County Sheriff’s deputy who had given citations to Stewart’s clients for driving under
the influence (DUI). Hunter was paid $100.00 per case by Petitioner to absent himself from the
Justice Court proceedings which resulted in the dismissal of the cases against Stewart’s clients.
This occurred six times and after further contemplation of the impropriety of these actions,
Petitioner self-reported his actions to the U. S. Attorney’s office. After 5 years, the FBI
contacted Petitioner, and advised him that the case would be pursued. Stewart returned to the U.
S. Attorney offices and met with John Hailman, Chad Lamar, and Curtis Ivy, who had authority
in the matter as the Chief Prosecutor of the District office, Deputy prosecutor, and prosecutor,
respectively. At some point in the conversation Hailman had asked Stewart if it were true that
he had a run-in with the law before. Stewart assumed that the only person in the room that
would remember it was Chad Lamar, who had graduated with Stewart from the same high school
class, and attended Ole Miss at the same time of Stewart’s trouble from 1983. Stewart was
surprised that it was mentioned. At the conclusion of that meeting, and after several departures
from the room, Hailman set forth that Stewart would be supervised by the U.S. Attorney’s office
for a period, and that the charges would not be pursued. Hailman’s earlier repeated departures
from the room were, at the time, curious to Stewart as Jim Greenlee the U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District was the only person in the building that outranked Hailman, and anyone else

assigned was in the room, at the table. Hailman set forth that Curtis Ivy would be assigned to

Page 2 of 42



Stewart, and Chad Lamar would be Ivy’s supervisor. Stewart left the office and returned to
work. After several weeks Ivy contacted Stewart by cell phone and advised hm that the deal was
no longer going to work, and gave no explanation. At that point Stewart contacted David Bell,
an attorney in Oxford for representation. At some point in conversation with his attorney, David
Bell, revealed that Ivy had told him that the prosecution was more about a matter from 1983, that
“Stewart had gotten away with” and that no one officially assigned the case was comfortable
with it. However, if Stewart were to plead to the conspiracy charge the U.S. Attorney’s office
was prepared to keep the plea on information under seal, and the entire file sealed, allowing
Stewart precious time to rearrange his life. True to their word, Stewart was allowed to plead
guilty remotely, away from Oxford, at the Federal courthouse in Aberdeen, and the file was
immediately sealed. In the following months Stewart was able to rearrange his life in hopes of
sparing his blameless wife and young children the stigma of his coming disgrace.  The
sentencing guidelines at the time, without a motion for a “downward departure”, would have had
Stewart getting as much as 5 years in the Federal Penitentiary and a $250,000.00 fine. The
assigned members of the U.S. Attorney’s office were fine with a downward departure, but
Stewart (not his attorney) received a phone call one afternoon, from the U.S. Attorney’s office
carefully explaining the steps Stewart ‘better get done’ so that the motion could be agreed to.
Clearly, there was a battle being waged in the U. S. Attorney’s office, over the severity of

Stewart’s impending punishment and disgrace.

Petitioner proceeded with his plans to remove himself and family from Oxford, and was
in Atlanta, along with his wife, for Holiday Inn New Owner training, when a friend of his from

Channel 13 news in Memphis called to tell him that a colleague, Andy Wise, had received
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details of the sealed file and was on his way to Stewart’s home in Oxford, for a front door
surprise interview. This was Wise’s specialty. Stewart’s in-laws were at the house instead,
babysitting Stewart’s four (4) young children. Shortly after the call from his friend, Andy Wise
and a camera crew did show up at Stewart’s home to the surprise of the in-laws and the children.
The story ran anyway. Stewart’s biggest goal, sparing his wife and children his own shame was
ruined. Officially, however, the file remained sealed, so that the sentencing date, not yet set, was
not to be revealed until just before the sentencing. Stewart was advised of the sentencing date
when it was set and the file again, resealed, and on the appointed day arrived at the Federal
Courthouse in Oxford. Petitioner arrived early and left his cell phone in his car. His early
arrival was in anticipation of seeing Andy Wise and the television news cameras, though the file
was sealed and the sentencing date and time only known to a few. Predictably, they arrived and
Petitioner watched from the upstairs window as the reporter and cameraman set up near the front
door, the only public entrance, and peered hopefully down the sidewalk for an encounter with

Stewart.

Petitioner was sentenced to three years of probation and ordered to pay a $20,000.00 fine and

a $100.00 special assessment.

Wise was finally able to confront Petitioner as he left the Courthouse, after several hours in
the U.S. Probation Office, but the submission time to make that day’s news had gone by.
Petitioner got to his car and checked his phone messages that included one from John Hailman,
himself, apologizing for the media presence and asking Stewart to know that he had nothing to

do with it. By this time, Stewart was already sure of that.
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After the sentencing the Mississippi Bar filed a complaint to have the Petitioner disbarred
when they received a faxed copy of the sentencing order from the U.S. Attorney’s office in
Oxford, stamped U.S. Attorney’s office file copy, not from the Clerk of Court’s office. Neither
Hailman, Chief of the Criminal Division, Chad Lamar, supervising senior U.S. Attorney, or
Curtis Ivy, the only other person assigned to this case faxed the office copy. Stewart called the
Mississippi Bar and advised them he would not be contesting the disbarment, and the order of
disbarment was entered on September 1, 2004. The fines were paid and Stewart’s probation

term ended March 3, 2007.

Petitioner filed his first petition seeking reinstatement to the practice of law on January 22,
2008 after a past Bar President, Law School professor from Ole Miss, and Oxford resident
encouraged him to. Petitioner did not know if the encouragement came as a result of the
person’s knowledge of the back story, and has never had the courage to ask him. Following the
Rules of Discipline and the strict procedure, the Bar deposed Stewart, and in its response to the
petition, the Bar geﬁerally acknowledged that Stewart had met the jurisdictional requirements for
filing the petition and opposed his reinstatement on the basis that his conduct was too egregious

for readmission to be considered:

It is the Bar’s position that Mr. Stewart should not be reinstated to the practice of
law. While Mr. Stewart’s handling of his personal matters since his disbarment
and his expressed desire to enter the military should he be readmitted are
admirable, the underlying misconduct which led to his criminal conviction
violated the basic principles that attorneys must live by in order to honorably
serve their clients, the courts, and the legal system’. His misconduct was of such

"If this were the standard for reinstatement, no attorneys would ever be re-admitted to the practice of
law again after disbarment. Every attorney disbarred engaged in conduct which violated the basic principles that
attorneys must live by in order to honorable serve their clients, the courts and the legal system.
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a serious nature that the Bar cannot support his reinstatement. (Emphasis
supplied)

The petition was denied on September 18, 2008. This denial is reported at Stewart v.

Mississippi Bar, 5 S0.3d 346, Miss 2008.

His second petition was filed December 11, 2009; and this petition was, likewise, denied
on January 6, 2011 2009-BR-01954-SCT, Stewart v. Mississippi Bar, 84 So0.3d 9 (Miss.2011).

In its opinion, the Court stated the following:

....Stewart has made great strides toward rehabilitating his character, and has
demonstrated a changed life in many ways. Yet, because he made a false
statement to the Mississippi Bar and failed to cooperate with the Bar during its
investigation of his petition, we deny Stewart’s request for reinstatement.

Petitioner’s third petition was filed November 8, 2017, and again, this Honorable Court
denied said petition on July 25, 2019. The Court concluded, citing the importance of strict

observance of Rule 12 guidelines:

After reviewing Stewart’s petition, the Bar’s response, Stewart’s reply, Stewart’s
amended petition, the Bar’s amended answer, and all the evidence in the record,
we find that Stewart has not met the jurisdictional requirements of Rule 12 and
has not provided clear and convincing evidence of his rehabilitation in conduct
and character to convince a reasonable person that he has been reformed.
Accordingly, Stewart’s third petition for reinstatement to the practice of law is
denied.

It should be noted that Stewart was denied due process in this most recent petition due to
a lack of opportunity to respond to the Bar’s submission, per the extraordinary September 9,
2018, Order from the Supreme Court requesting first Stewart, then the Bar, to submit more
information, which, included information given to the Bar after the Rule 12 deadline for

submission, not revealed to Stewart at the second (Beauvoir) deposition, or at any other time,
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where the personnel files of several Beauvoir employees were handed over without the
knowledge or permission of the employees or the governing Board of Beauvoir. The Supreme
Court had possession of this before Stewart ever did, and even after requesting to see the
information the Bar did not submit it to Stewart until well after submitting it to the Court,
leaving Stewart only the hope that it might be obvious that he had never been asked about the
information cherry picked from individual’s personnel files and had never been given a chance
to explain why certain employees might have been disgruntled. This, Stewart’s fourth petition,
will focus on rebutting the false and intentionally misleading information submitted, without
knowledge or permission of those employees, and his client and employer, Beauvoir, by a
biased, disgruntled, executive director at Beauvoir (at the time), Thomas Payne. Within weeks
of his untimely submission, Payne abruptly resigned without notice from that position but as a
member of the Mississippi Bar, would have been subject to the submission deadline rules clearly

set forth in Rule 12.
II1. JURISDICTIONAL PREREQUISITES

The requirements for reinstatement after disbarment or suspension are governed by Rule
12 of the Mississippi Rules of Discipline as stated by this Court in In re Benson, 890 So.2d 888,
890 (Miss 2004); Miss Bar v. Baldwin, 752 So0.2d 996, 997 (Miss. 199) citing In re Massey, 670

So0.2d 843, 844 (Miss 1996).> Petitioner must (1) state the cause for disbarment, (2) give the

*This Honorable Court, in Stewart /I, No. 2008-BR-00138-SCT, September 18, 2008, stated that the

“Rules of Discipline existing at the time of his disbarment” are applicable. Id., p. 9, 920. Footnote 4 on page 9
states, “Miss. R. Disc. 12(c) was amended April 4, 2002. This rule may have made Stewart ineligible for
reinstatement if such conduct had occurred after the effective date of the amendment.” Thus, as Stewart has
been eligible for reinstatement in his three prior petitions, he remains eligible under the rules as they existed
at the time of his offending conduct.
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name and current address of all persons, parties, firms, or legal entities who suffered pecuniary
loss due to the improper conduct, (3) make full amends and restitution, (4) show that he has the
moral character for the practice of law, and (5) demonstrate the requisite legal education to be
reinstated to the privilege of practicing law. This Court stated in In re Flautt, 890 So.2d 928,
930 (Miss. 2004), that the Court’s fundamental inquiry is whether the attorney “has rehabilitated
himself in conduct and character since the suspension (or disbarment) was imposed,” (citing /n
re Mathes, 653 So0.2d 928, 928 (Miss. 1995), and a firm resolve to live a correct life evidenced
by outward manifestation sufficient to convince a reasonable mind that the person as reformed is
all that is required. In re Underwood, 649 So.2d 825, 828-29 (Miss. 1995). Rule 12 also sets
forth the guidelines governing the timetable for submission of information to the Bar in favor or

in opposition by Bar members.
A. THE CAUSE OF PETITIONER’S DISBARMENT

This Court entered its Order and Opinion ordering disbarment on September 2, 2004, based
on Petitioner’s entry of a guilty plea to one (1) count of conspiracy to commit extortion under
color of official right in violation of 18 U.S. C. 2371. See United States v. Joe Gregory Stewart
(Cause no. 2:03CR00048801) in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Mississippi. The subject felony charge was filed against the Petitioner for paying Ferrell Hunter,
a former Tunica County Sheriff’s Deputy, who had issued citations to unidentified citizens for
driving under the influence (DUI), to intentionally absent himself from the appropriate court
proceedings on the aforesaid DUI charges six times in 1998. The Deputy Sheriff’s absence
resulted in the dismissal of the cases against the Petitioner’s clients, and the Petitioner self-

reported all of this in 1998. Five years later, the petitioner pled on information and the file was
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sealed on May 30, 2003, immediately afterward, but he was not sentenced in the appropriate
Federal Court until March 11, 2004, when the sealed file was unsealed for that occasion on that

day.

B. NAMES AND CURRENT ADDRESSES OF ALL PERSONS, PARTIES, FIRM, OR
LEGAL ENTITIES WHO SUFFERED PECUNIARY LOSS DUE TO THE IMPROPER
CONDUCT UNDERLYING THE DISBARMENT.

No persons, parties, firms, or legal entities suffered any pecuniary loss due to the improper

conduct underlying the disbarment.
C. MAKE FULL AMENDS AND RESTITUTION

The Mississippi Bar has been reimbursed for its costs, if any. In the En Banc opinion of this
Court entered in January 2011, the Court found that Petitioner had made full restitution and that
no pecuniary costs remained unpaid. “Because Stewart has paid all of the fines and costs owed,

we find that he has made full amends and restitution.”

Further, in this Court’s En Banc opinion dated July 25, 2019, this Court found: “The record
shows that on May 2, 2019, Stewart paid the total amount of costs and expenses with the
investigation.” In all previous petitions, Stewart has promptly paid any costs and expense, as
soon as they were presented to him. Petitioner will, likewise, promptly pay any costs and

expense incurred as a result of this Petition.
D. PETITIONER HAS THE MORAL CHARACTER TO PRACTICE LAW
1. Stewart 1 & I1
In Stewart I, the issue of moral character was the basis upon which the Petition was denied.

Stewart had not done enough, yet, to demonstrate his changed character.
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In Stewart II the Court found that Stewart’s reliance on the words and the language of the two
orders expunging the same offense committed by him when 19 years of age, requiring strict
adherence to all the parties named in the Orders to the confidential nature of the Order, was
misplaced. It was the sole cause for his denial. In Stewart III, after the Petitioner acknowledged
his error, the opinion states that Stewart would have likely prevailed in Stewart II, but for his

mistaken reliance.

Since the denial in Stewart III, Stewart chanced upon an item that he thought was long lost,
his Marine Corps 2™ Lt. ID card. See Exhibit “4.” On the front is a 23-year-old Stewart. It is the
back side, showing the date of issue that related back to the second expungement Order, and
explains the brave face on the front of the card. The date of the Military ID indicated the date
the ID was made while Stewart was in Quantico, still in the Officer Candidate School Program,
at the same time Stewart knew that Bob Norman and Kay Cobb were furiously sabotaging
Stewart’s effort to leave Mississippi and pursue a life goal, and that but for their furious effort,
his goal would have been obtained. The brave look masked his fear of what had been done back
in Mississippi to destroy his chance of simply moving on. It is dated April 10, 1987, when
Stewart had already given up hope of getting his record finally cleared in time to go from Officer
Candidate School to The Basic School. The first expungement Order was understood by
Stewart to have been enough to clear him for a life as a Marine Corps officer, likely leaving
forever Mississippi for a career dedicated to that service. But, the FBI offices of Washington
still retained the record, so that the cooperation of persons back in Mississippi would be required
to have the FBI clear the record in time. The contributing agency, The Mississippi Bureau of

Narcotics would be required to make the request to return the file. Not only was this cooperation
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not forthcoming, it was hotly contested, to the point where the Circuit Judge, W.W. Brown, was
brought up on charges before the Judicial Performance Commission for pressing for the
expungement, the second time, in the Expungement Order dated April 2, 1987, in an effort to
salvage Stewart’s Marine Corps career. But for this strenuous, and oddly personal opposition,
the young man from Mississippi would have gone about his life as a Marine Corps officer. But
the delay crushed that hope, and on the day of that ID photo’s issuance on April 10, 1987,
Stewart already knew it. What he would not know, until many, many years later was the Judge
had already called the Mississippi Department of Narcotics and the District Attorneys office
many months earlier into his courtroom, sometime between 1983, the year of Stewart conviction
and 1986, when he signed the first Expungement Order in 1983, not specifically about Stewart,
but to address a disturbing pattern he was seeing of single sale of marijuana being leveled at
young men, who might have committed unwise youthful indiscretions, but were not drug dealers.
In his mind the practice amounted to entrapment and he advised the Mississippi Bureau of
Narcotics and the District Attorney’s office that they were casually ruining the lives of young
men, merely to justify their own offices, and that he would have no part in it. His son, Charles
Brown, still a resident of Calhoun County, relayed this information after the Stewart II opinion
to explain how the Stewart matter was where the simmering differences finally came to a head.
Even after Judge Brown’s second Order related to Stewart’s expungement, where he opined that
Stewart should never have been charged with sale at all, the Mississippi Bureau of Narcotics
would not request the files back from Washington. Finally, Senator John C. Stennis wrote a
personal letter to the FBI, requesting the file be cleared. His request was honored, so in some
sense, Stewart’s expungement took two Circuit Court Orders and then one more effort by the
Chairman of the Armed Services Committee of the United States Senate.
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The opinion in Stewart III recites the cause of the expungement with enough accuracy but,
perhaps because of Stewart’s reticence to recite every detail earlier, might have left any reader
the impression that Stewart obtained marijuana for some random person patronizing the
restaurant where he worked. This would be misleading and for the purposes of explaining the
motivation of an 18-year-old virgin, it is time to be more clear. The young woman for whom
Stewart made the effort to obtain marijuana was his first (successful) sexual encounter. Though
a few years older than him, she was known to be willing, and, eventually, the possibilities at the
time seemed more important. He proceeded with her and wanted to impress her. The Petitioner
1s not proud of this fact, but it explains the situation better. He wanted to keep that new and
exciting door open. She was never a “patron” of the restaurant, but did arrive sometimes, after

closing.

The copy of the exact document faxed to the Bar office in 2004, was from the U.S.
Attorney’s office, not the Clerk of Court. This is the second of two items in the Bar’s own files
that were given to the Bar by Bob Norman in his 40-year obsession to ratchet up the Stewart
penalties whenever and wherever possible (1983-Stewart 2009*) for his own reasons and beyond
what any court ever ordered. The second item given directly to the bar by Norman as well was
his letter in Stewart II, artfully “seeming to recall” events of 1983 and 1987 from which he had
personal involvement. In fact, the Court Order of 1987 specifically directed him not to violate
the confidential terms of the order. Not only did the Bar, in Stewart II, accept his “letter” on his
personal stationery and not on his office stationery in the US Attorney office, but helped to
orchestrate it, along with the coincidental one, at the same time, from Kay' Cobb, covering the

same confidential material. The Supreme Court eventually ruled, in Stewart II, that the matter of
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1987 was not confidential (even though the language of the Order itself said that it was) but to
the petitioner’s knowledge, no action by the Bar was ever taken to address the divulging of the
Order contents. All of this is now water under the bridge according to Stewart III, and maybe
because Stewart himself, after involuntarily establishing new law in Stewart II regarding the
confidentiality of expungement orders, simply attached, in Stewart III, the orders Cobb and
Norman had intentionally already revealed. With the confidentiality language clearly in the 1987
Order now publicly on display, the matter was brushed by quickly in the Stewart III Opinion, as

settled.

All of this makes perfect sense when it is considered that but for the active prosecutorial
miscount of Bob Norman, through his access to the principals in the US Attorney office and his
own position there, as a prosecutor, Stewart was not going to be prosecuted for his self-
confessed offenses of 1998 at all. People with knowledge of his persistent involvement in the
matter include David Bell, John Hailman, Curtis Ivy, Chad Lamar, and others who can be

revealed in deposition.

This prosecutorial misconduct was not completely believed by Stewart himself, early in
2003, when it was first told to him after Curtis Ivy (the U.S. Attorney assigned to the case after
the agreement to not prosecute any charges was scuttled by Bob Norman’s raging fit over the
matter in the U.S. Attorney’s office) apologized to Stewart’s attorney David Bell (obtained after
the no-prosecution deal was scuttled) for inadvertently mentioning it and begged his promise not

to reveal Norman’s position and interest to Stewart.

The seriousness of the Norman obsession and Norman’s bird dogging of the case

unassigned to him (on purpose) was made better known when Stewart, not his attorney, received

Page 13 of 42



an unsolicited phone call from the U.S. Attorney office in July 2003 advising him to do certain
things so that the motion for a downward departure before the court would be granted. The
suggestion was that there was still a raging debate within the U.S. Attorney office to go along
with the downward departure sentencing posture and/or court might be approached not to take
the U.S. Attorney own office’s (already approved) agreement to not oppose the motion. The
petitioner remembers the knot in his stomach following the phone call and considering the
personal weight Norman gave to the matter, though unassigned to the case. It would be years

later before the reasons were made known to him.

In spite of his official distance from the case, and his own co-worker’s insistence that
Norman stay out of the matter, Norman relayed the details of the sealed file to the Memphis
television media to amp up the disgrace and provide a perp walk from the sentencing hearing.
Hailman, the Chief of Prosecution was embarrassed by the deliberate act, enough to call Stewart

and apologize for the matter and to let him know that he had nothing to do with it.

All of this above, related to the copy of the Sentencing Order (See Exhibit “1" hereto)
faxed directly from the U.S. Attorney’s office and not the proper Clerk’s office was separate, but
not apart, and certainly consistent, from the active involvement, in 1987 of Cobb and Norman, to
dash any hope Stewart had in 1986 of simply leaving Mississippi to become an officer in the

United State Marine Corps, covered in a separate part of this petition.

The question the Bar has never asked of Stewart in Stewart I, II, or IlI is why Cobb, in
general, and Norman, in particular, ever formed the singular obsession with Stewart and why it

has persisted.
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2. Stewart I

In Stewart III, the court issued an extraordinary Order for More Information (See Exhibit “2"
hereto), that unintentionally exacerbated the problem caused by the Bar’s reception of, and at
some point complicity with information/documentation offered up after the Rule 12 deadline, by
a person subject to the Rule, Thomas Payne, a Mississippi licensed attorney. That
information/documentation is essentially in two parts: (a) Employee personnel records; and (b)

the applicability of Section 79-11-509 (1) (f).

The curious and extraordinary September Order of Stewart III (Exhibit “2" hereto) that
created the 6th amendment issue and invited uncontroverted, unasked, late, and illegally
obtained information from one character (not three, as set forth in Stewart III) that resulted in an
Opinion in Stewart III that relied almost entirely on those unasked, late, and illegally obtained,

and in some cases, intentionally misleading misinformation.
a. Stewart 111, Beauvoir Employee Personnel records

Beginning at page 13 of the Stewart III opinion, July 25, 2019, this Court made a finding
that, “Yet documentation provided to the Bar from Beauvoir indicates that Stewart, at times,
conducted himself in an unprofessional manner.” At Paragraph 29 the Court refers to what are
obviously quotations from letters of resignation or emails from personnel files at Beauvoir. This
information from the personnel files was submitted without the knowledge of the Beauvoir
Board of Directors, who would never have allowed it. (See Exhibit “14A” hereto) The subject

employees, as well, were not aware of the raid on their personnel files. All of it, from

*The Stewart IV Petition requirement of the recitation of MORAL CHARACTER TO
PRACTICE LAW since Stewart 1II will be addressed at Section IIL. D. 3.

Page 15 of 42



employees, was in the possession of the Bar at the time of the 2™ deposition called to address

Beauvoir information submitted by attorney Tom Payne well after the Rule 12 deadline.

The first document referred to is a May 9, 2014, complaint from Personnel Committee
Chairman of the Board of Beauvoir, to other members of the Board, regarding Stewart’s
dismissal of the Events Coordinator. This Chairman was keenly interested in the advancement
and salary increases, particularly for this one, female employee, and, at his insistence, at every
Board meeting, every three months, the young lady was receiving salary increases, while no one
else was, and while the institution was sailing toward insolvency. Stewart has since found the
salary increase spreadsheet, prepared by the Business Manager at the time, Rusty Trowbridge.
(See Exhibit “5" hereto) Stewart considers the information, that contains the pay grade of many
persons, to be akin to Personnel records and not an appropriate exhibit to be divulged without the
consent of employer and employee. The record will show that while almost no one else was
receiving raises this particular employee went from $7.50/hour to $12.00/hour in less than a
year, and at the intervals where the Personnel Committee Chairman could work it into the Board
agenda for approval. The date on the Pefsonnel Chairman’s complaint regarding the Events
Coordinator’s departure coincides with the next board meeting date where he, once again, was
going to increase the hourly rate, this time to 15.00, but Stewart, just arriving as the Interim
Director (that stretched into 3 years), had flatly opposed it for the obvious reason that the
institution was about to be insolvent, that the continued pay raises for the young female looked
unseemly, and that the practice was having a disastrous effect on the morale of other employees
who were well aware of the pay increases going to the one particular employee. Attached hereto

as Exhibit “5” are pay scale records during the time surrounding the sole member of the
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Beauvoir staff receiving salary increases while no one else did, that Stewart halted, engendering
the anger of the Board member who engineered the increases that he blamed Stewart for
stopping.

The Court could not find that Stewart spoke to the Events Coordinator’s husband about the
concerns he had with her revealing attire because he never did. But, the concern over the
improper and revealing attire was not Stewart’s alone, and had been taking place well before his
arrival. Beauvoir is an historical structure representing a moment in time. Stewart required the
employees to dress, as comfortably as possible, in period dress. The Events Coordinator, under
the assumed protection of the Chairman of the Personnel Committee, refused to tone down her
provocative attire that was inappropriate, even jarring at times, and Stewart did nothing wrong in

calling it to her attention. In fact, he was doing his job.

Another employee who chafed at common workplace rules was the Librarian, DS, a
male, who repeatedly strayed from his assigned work area, in the company, usually, of a married
female employee, for long walks across the wooded property with each other, or in unassigned
areas with his signature coffee cup in his hand. He also insisted on taking food and drink into
the Library area, which was in his assigned area, but the prohibition against food and drink, so
far as the Petitioner knows, is common for libraries. As shown by the statement of Evelyn
Provost attached hereto as Exhibit “6”, DS and KS would indeed leave their assigned area and

walk the property drinking coffee, and ignoring their assignments. According to Ms. Provost:

“Dennie would not stay in his assigned area and insisted in “walking the
property” with KS just about anytime the two wanted to go walking. This left the
Library area and artifacts upstairs in the museum unattended. Greg Stewart
eventually sent out a memo that was to everyone, covering more than one item,
but the one about staying in your assigned area and not eating or drinking in the
library or museum was specifically aimed at DS, who apparently thought that
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when he was in his assigned area, that he could just eat or drink. He was famous
for a having a cup of coffee whenever you saw him.”

The second item discussed in paragraph 29 of the Court’s July 25, 2019, Stewart III decision
referred to a March 1, 2016 letter of resignation from DS, taken from the personnel files without
the knowledge or consent of DS or the Board of Beauvoir, and submitted after the Rule 12
deadline for submissions by attorney Tom Payne. DS claimed that ‘Stewart repeatedly and
publicly demeaned and criticized workers...in a manner unbefitting of the workplace.” DS
concluded that the work environment under Stewart was not ‘healthy’. But, according to another
worker employed at the same time, it was DS who created an unhealthy work environment.
According to the statement of Darel Balius, (attached hereto as Exhibit “7"), Mr. Balius knew
DS very well. Mr. Balius indicated that DS struck animals for no reason or provocation, In fact,
he hit a camel that was kept at Beauvoir between the eyes with a large stick because as DS
stated, “this animal needs discipline.” The witnesses were horrified. On another occasion DS,
away from his assigned area, threw a shovel at Mr. Balius. Petitioner herein did not beat any of
the animals at Beauvoir or throw anything at any staff member, ever. DS was yet another
disgruntled former employee who had no genuine complaint against Stewart, who was simply

performing his job.

Petitioner herein remembers the loss of a real civil war belt buckle due to inattention to the
museum area by DS, easily a value of $4,000.00. This was followed closely by the accidental
return of an original Lee’s General Order #9 (instructing surrender after Appomattox) to the
wrong side of a fractured family, without notice to the Director (Stewart) or by the established
policy of formal deaccession approved by the Board. (This almost resulted in serious liability

but was avoided by frantic fence-mending and apologies to the family members by Stewart.)
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Another curious DS action, again, away from his assigned area, was the instance when he
waited for Stewart to leave the property on a trip to Hattiesburg, whereupon he marched down to
the bayou where a group of Boy Scouts were engaged in an Eagle Project (clearing the wooded
and snake infested north bank for safe human traffic) and completely stopped the project,

without authority so to do.

According to Mr. Balius, he remembers the day DS quit, without notice. “He was angry
about being confined to his assigned area and that his coffee cup and snacks would no longer be
allowed in the library or museum or in the Jefferson Davis Presidential Library. That had always

been the policy but he didn’t think it should apply to him. He was angry about it, he re.signed.”

Petitioner would also add that DS was particularly insubordinate to a degree most management
would not tolerate, but Stewart did. One such occasion was during a weekly staff meeting where
the 9:00 am hour had arrived, and DS had already made his report, as had several others who
needed to be getting to their stations to greet and accommodate guests. When Stewart
mentioned that only those still needing to submit reports could go, DS suddenly thundered that
he would stay if he wanted to and that the staff meeting was public, and that he would stay as
long as he needed to. Stewart ignored the outburst and caught up with DS later, away from the
other staff and asked him what the purpose of the outburst was, to which DS replied, “I don’t

have to answer to you.”

It should be noted that the reference in the Stewart III decision of the March 1, 2016, letter of
resignation from DS failed to provide any specifics of conduct or behavior of the Petitioner that

would adversely affect his character and fitness to practice law.
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The next item discussed under paragraph 29 of the Stewart III decision was in regard to a
May 24, 2016, letter of resignation from the Facilities Manager, DG, in which he stated that he
would not wish the last six months of his employment on his worst enemy. This court indicated
that the letter includes a “synopsis of issues with....Stewart” and references Stewart’s poor
hiring and management decisions. However, Stewart did not hire DG, the Board did, just as
Stewart arrived himself. DG, was, in fact, the disgruntled son-in-law, of Leroy Waller, a
Beauvoir volunteer of many, many hours and also a Beauvoir Board member, who Stewart, also,
did not hire. The animosity DG felt toward his own father-in-law was so great that it led to DG’s
personal effort to have his own father-in-law formally booted from the Sons of Confederate
Veterans, a cause that ultimately failed, which is why DG resigned. His resignation coincides
with his loss of that political fight with his own father-in-law, and he viewed Stewart as the chief

reason for that loss, which, incidentally, is not true.

Beginning at the top of page 14 of the Stewart III decision reference is made to a May 22,
2016, email from Stewart to Beauvoir’s Director of Development and Programs regarding
Beauvoir’s Garden (Varina’s Garden) in which Stewart refers to the garden as “an abomination”
and “ugly and awful.” Petitioner and undersigned counsel are at a loss as to why this would
affect this Court’s finding of Petitioner’s moral character being insufficient for reinstatement.
Especially when, if the Petitioner said something looked terrible, he meant it. Especially more
when the Mississippi Department of Archives and History had spent $480,000.00 of taxpayer
money to install the large garden only 2 years before and the Board of Beauvoir had signed off
on an agreement to maintain it, on pain of jail time if they did not. By accepting the nearly half

million dollar grant the project fell under the Antiquities Act as the Garden was ostensibly some
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re-creation of the garden Jefferson Davis’ wife had maintained in her time at Beauvoir. Stewart
was aware of the Antiquities Act and its penalties because upon his arrival at Beauvoir in the
early Spring of 2014, he received a certified letter from the Mississippi Attorney General;s
Office advising him that he and members of the Beauvoir Board could be prosecuted under the
Antiquities Act for the porch alteration done to Beauvoir House, without the permission and
oversight of the Mississippi Department of Archives and History. Of course, Stewart had not
even been there when the porch work had been started and completed months before, but the
letter came to him, nonetheless. Following Stewart III, Stewart reached back out to Ken P’Pool,
of the Mississippi Department of Archives and History to make sure he hadn’t missed anything
regarding the seriousness. That letter (email) is attached as Exhibit “8" and establishes that
Stewart’s concerns were grounded in fact. Considering that the recipient of his email was a
chain smoking, former discount beer and cigarette store clerk, who openly bragged about
shooting a man dead in California, before moving to Mississippi, Stewart felt like plain language

would be better understood.

In the statement by Darel Balius (attached hereto as Exhibit “7"), Varina’s Garden is

remembered:

“I was on the Maintenance and Grounds Crew and remember firsthand the effort
it took for Greg Stewart, the Executive Director, to keep the staff focused on it.
Greg would work himself in the garden. In fact, I had been at Beauvoir several
weeks before someone explained to me that Stewart was the Executive Director.
He would routinely pitch in and help in outside projects and did not strut around
or sit or hide in an office behind closed doors.

The garden was obviously very large, and very expensive, and needed constant
attention. Since it was an attraction and was taxpayer funded, Greg had to
constantly remind the staff that it could not get shabby.”

According to the statement of Donna Barnes (attached hereto as Exhibit “9"):

Page 21 of 42



“I was here when Varina’s Garden was put in. It is a huge garden and takes a lot
of work to maintain. By the end of [Tom Payne’s] first year, it was such a mess
that I would not encourage the guests to walk through it anymore. It was
embarrassing. Everyone had a long title and no responsibilities and it really
showed as the Garden went from a beautiful (and expensive) showcase to a goat
pasture.”

Pictures taken from Beauvoir’s own Facebook pages during Stewart’s tenure, and then in the
years after him ought to demonstrate the incredibly sad deterioration of the project. The
Antiquities Law hangs like a razor-sharp Sword of Damocles, just above the institution, and the
people who think that wasting a half million dollar, federally funded, MDAH-generated project

will go unnoticed forever.

Next in the Court’s Stewart III July 25, 2019, decision, reference is made to an August 21,
2017, email from Stewart to Beauvoir Director of Development and Programs regarding the
“Bricks for Beauvoir Project” in which Stewart advises that “they need to get the font exactly the
same or the walkway will look like s**t.” Again, Petitioner and undersigned counsel cannot see
how this reflects upon Petitioner’s moral charter. If every attorney who used a common curse
word was not allowed to become licensed or be reinstated then there would be very few
attorneys in the State of Mississippi. There are actual photographs of the original bricks and
photographs of the poor efforts by Payne. Copies of each are attached as Exhibit “13.” Not only
are the bricks placed during Payne’s tenure the wrong size but the font is smeared and illegible
in the Payne effort. After Payne resigned without notice, the Board had to have all of his poorly
made bricks removed and redone for a uniform look. Incidentally, the approximately $25,000
Stewart had accumulated from the Brick sales, dedicated for the perpetual care of the Beauvoir
Cemetery, was spent by Payne in Payne’s first year. Pay raises, personal guards, vacation days

and sick leaves, all efforts to buy the loyalty of the staff, who later turned on him anyway.
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The statements of Darel Balius and Evelyn Provost, Beauvoir staff, and attached hereto as
Exhibits “7" and “6", respectively, explain the hard work that the Petitioner put into the “Bricks
for Beauvoir” Project which he inherited when he became the volunteer director at Beauvoir.
Both Mr. Balius and Ms. Provost indicate the good job Greg was doing and the horrible job that
Tom Payne did with the project after he became Executive Director. The placement of 95% of
the walkway bricks, their marketing, a detailed index of Brick honorees, and contributors (to

spur more sales and make locating one’s brick easier) were Stewart’s work.

This Court’s reference to a January 24, 2018, email from Greg Stewart to Beauvoir Director
of Programs regarding the “Bricks for Beauvoir Project” contains no information that should
prohibit Petitioner’s reinstatement or reflect adversely on his moral character. Throughout the
four statements attached here as Exhibits “6,” “7,” “9" and “11," it was very well known that
Tom Payne had a strong dislike for Greg Stewart, but unlike at least two of the Beauvoir Board
members, Payne had never confronted Stewart on the property and had him “trespassed” with
Biloxi Police standing by. Stewart, on the other hand never trespassed any Beauvoir Board
member, employee, disgruntled former employee, or even a an out-of-sorts guest. The idea of
trespassing a member of the governing body of the institution is bizarre to say the least. Upon
reading all four of the statements, it is apparent that Greg Stewart had done a superior job as
Executive Director and that Tom Payne had a very unusual and confrontational management
”style” and other matters that are clear from the statements attached. Evelyn Provost, who was
an employee before Stewart arrived and continued into Payne’s tenure, states the following

about Tom Payne:

“Tom Payne’s management style was, by then, well established and he had begun
to be paranoid that he would be fired and that Greg, being the last Executive
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Director, would be an easy stand-in. He was threatened by Stewart’s very
existence and tried to blame him for his sagging attendance numbers and soaring
expenses. In response to Stewart’s “Last One Hundred” email, Kitsaa Stevens
was instructed by Tom to inform Greg that he would not be getting approval for
the promotional effort and to not tell the SCV members that the project would be
finished even though it would have finally completed the project.”

“It got so bad that Payne decided that he would do the Bricks for Beauvoir Project
himself (in-house) and countless dollars were spent buying the wrong equipment,
putting beach sand (wrong sand) and getting the wrong size bricks (when the
bricks he needed to finish were already in Arcola with the professional brick
engraver). Eventually, the mess was so bad that Greg was asked by the Board to
just finish up the project. That was a major embarrassment for Tom and his other
problems with the Board members and staff were getting only worse.”

Petitioner’s purported social media posts are the subject of this Court’s Stewart III
decision at paragraph 34. This Court discussed that “Beauvoir had received a message on its
Facebook page regarding Stewart stating that Schenkaymer can “go suck that Mexican d**k.”
Petitioner vehemently denies that he corresponded at all with Amy Schenkaymer or that he made
such offensive comments. Unfortunately, he was never allowed previously to address these false
allegations. It was never brought up to him at the 2™ (Beauvoir) deposition, nor the usual first
one, or any other time by the Bar, who apparently did not give it much weight either, given that
they were given this scurrilous information at the same time as the personnel files, albeit, after

the Rule 12 deadline.

Donna Barnes’ statement, attached hereto as Exhibit “9,” addresses hacking of computers

that was occurring at Beauvoir during the tenure of Tom Payne. Donna Barnes states,

“Tom [Payne] also hired five people from his church and they spent their time
setting up anyone that they though were not loyal to Tom. One of more of them
were in involved in hacking Evelyn’s Provost’s computer to get access to
information they printed off and shared to embarrass her.”
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Pauline Hansford, whose statement is attached as Exhibit “11" hereto, stated in regard to the

hacking:

“I remember that after Greg Stewart left the laptop he had used during his time
there on the desk where he used to sit. I was at Beauvoir when Evelyn Provost’s
computer had been hacked by one of Tom Payne’s church members. He had
hired five from his church very quickly after arrival along with Andrea Little,
who wasn’t a church member but was young and perky. She watched movies on
her computer all day long with her headset on and I was never able to figure out
what she really did except leave at the same time he [Tom Payne] did for lunch.

I left Beauvoir for a time but when I came back, I knew about the hacking of
Evelyn’s computer and Brad [church member with Payne] and Andrea laughed
about their hacking skills. I got the impression the were not just crowing about
their success with Evelyn’s computer.”

The statement of Evelyn Provost, attached hereto as Exhibit “6,” also discusses the hacking of

computers at Beauvoir:

“On more than one occasion, my Facebook and computer was intentionally
hacked by one or more of the staff loyal to Tom Payne. I cannot say that Payne
did it himself but I know for a fact that my personal information was intentionally
accessed and distributed in an effort to humiliate me and harass me.”

Provost continues:

“Tom’s hatred for Greg Stewart was not immediate. In fact, his first targets
included staff members, eventually me, but also included at least two of them on
the Board of Trustees, who he did not allow access to the property and had them
escorted off the property by Biloxi PD.

“He drove off the Business Manager, Donna Cobb, in tears one day and accosted
her in the parking lot, again driving her off in tears, when she had been
specifically invited by the Board of Directors to come to their meeting.
Consequently, they never got to hear from her and she refused to ever step foot on
the property again.
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“The laptop Stewart used while at Beauvoir was in plain view, all the time, on his
desk. He would not sit in the Executive Director’s office because it didn’t give
him a view of Varina’ Garden and the Beauvoir House, and the staff. He did not
use a password and would have to lend out his laptop from time to time to visiting
authors and presenters. When he left, the laptop was still there, on the desk where
he sat. When I left, it was still there.”

Petitioner would show that the offensive Facebook post purportedly using Stewart’s
Facebook account is at the height of Payne’s anger with Stewart over the Bricks for Beauvoir
project being removed from him by the Beauvoir Board and given to Stewart to finish up. It was
literally the very next day. As well, the effort to sabotage Stewart’s third Petition for

Reinstatement was in full swing.

It would turn out that the next subject, the stolen Battle Flag, wasn’t the only falsehood
given the Bar, about Stewart, in Payne’s’ effort. This deliberate misstatement was not to
Stewart, but about Stewart, to the Bar. And finally, Payne did not know Stewart that well, but
made a common (but mistaken) assumption that members of the SCV (Sons of Confederate
Veterans) are also Klansmen, or sympathetic. Not only is this assumption wrong, there are men
wearing Obama hats at some of our meetings and openly gay members. Payne would not have
known that. He was not familiar with the organization at all. Stewart, unknown to Payne, has a
niece, of Mexican descent. Stewart joined the NAACP years before joining the SCV, also
unknown to Payne, and further, supports a myriad of causes that Payne, and others, might
dismiss as “liberal”. Stewart’s record of fairness and commitment to equity is best set forth in
Tunica County Circuit Clerk, Sharon Granberry’s recollection attached hereto as Exhibit “12.”
But it isn’t clear that Payne himself penned the offensive post to Schenkaymer. It could easily

have been one of his minions, the same ones that hacked into Evelyn Provost’s Facebook.
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The most egregious false allegation made against the Petitioner, that is not hard to trace, and
was so bold that it was embedded in the information Payne, himself, presented late to the Bar. It
is a lie about Stewart, not told to Stewart, but to others and passed off, again, as truth to the Bar.
According to the statement of Pauline Hansford, attached hereto as Exhibit “11,” she observed,

as follows:

“Tom was obsessed with Greg, but his paranoia was not confined to Stewart
alone: He rearranged the furniture in his office ‘in case someone would try to
shoot him’ through his office window. He hired Tanner Goff, another of his
fellow church members, to dress like a Secret Service Agent and follow him
around the property or drive him in his golf cart. He would sit in his office for
hours in the dark which was always fine with us because if he was awake and up
and around, he would be screaming at one of us. As the attendance numbers
continued to fall, it only got worse.

“Tom accused Greg of stealing the giant battle flag that was hung from the
Beauvoir House on certain dates. I was working in the Gift Shop at the time the
flag was sold by Rosie Boardman to an SCV Camp in Florida without Board
knowledge or approval. Tom did not want this flag hung from the house and that
by saying (Greg Stewart) had stolen it, that the Board might just go along with his
removal of it by simply not buying a new one. This lie told about Stewart by
Tom Payne enraged the Fall Muster crowd (the SCV Group on hand for the Fall
Muster Event when the flag could not be ‘found’). Immediately after Tom Payne
quit (April 2018) with no notice, another of the staff members (Jay Peterson)
admitted to the Board that Greg Stewart had, in fact, not stolen anything but that
Tom had instructed Jay and others to spread the lie that, but for Greg’s stealing of
the flag, it would have been hung by Tom from the house.

“Tom Payne laughed about the lie and boasted that he had included it in the
information he had gotten to the Bar to foil Greg’s readmittance effort.”

Exhibits “3" and “14" hereto are, respectively, Tom Payne’s Contract to Provide Chief
Executive and Legal Services for Beauvoir, and Payne’s unsolicited (See Exhibit “14A”) “legal
opinion” to the President of the Beauvoir Board conveying his opinion that flying the

Confederate Battle Flag at Beauvoir would violate state law. Exhibit “14A” is a letter from
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Jason Smith, Board member of Beauvoir during the Stewart III timeframe, knowledgeably
remembering the details of the missing giant battle flag and its eventual discovery, well after the
Beauvoir deposition in Stewart III of the flag’s whereabouts.* Stewart did not steal the flag.
Payne knew that at the time it went missing and approved its sale, but offered the stolen flag
story to the Bar, a lie known to him at the time of submission, in with the other Rule 12-barred
late submissions to discredit Stewart. (See Exhibits “11" and “14A”) This intentional violation
of the rules regarding candor with the Bar may or may not ever be addressed by the Bar. The
Contract to Provide Chief Executive and Legal Services shows that Payne, while serving as
attorney for Beauvoir, disclosed confidential documentation of his client, without his client’s

knowledge or consent. (See Exhibit “14A”)

Also, while acting as Beauvoir’s attorney, Payne neglected to meet the April 30, 2018,
deadline to report to the Secretary of State, resulting in Beauvoir’s inability to solicit donations.

(See Exhibit “23”)

Finally, pursuant to the Order for more information in Stewart III, Stewart dutifully
provided the requested material. The same order directed the Bar to follow with a submission to
the Court, but not to Stewart. Sensing that a due process issue could arise with the Court being
given uncontroverted (and unseen) material, Stewart asked the Bar for a copy of its submission,
before it was given to the Court. This request was refused. Eventually, the Bar did provide the
material to Stewart, but the order did not allow for any further submission or filing and Stewart’s

former counsel was certain this Court would spot the problem from the absence of the material

*In Exhibit “14A”, Jason Smith also conveys his personal knowledge about the unauthorized retrieval
and publication of confidential personnel files, as well as computer hacking by former Beauvior Executive
Director and licensed attorney, Tom Payne.
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in the second (Beauvoir) deposition, or, for that matter, anywhere else in the exchanges between
the parties. Stewart’s former counsel felt that if the Bar had not given it any weight at the
second deposition, that the Supreme Court would not either. As well, Stewart, after finally
getting the material the Bar submitted to the Court first, was able to glean from the email
exchange between the Bar, Payne, and the Secretary of State’s office that Payne’s campaign was
intensely personal, leading the Bar to wonder about the veracity of the most salacious offerings,
which is why, presumably, they did not ask any question about it at the second (Beauvoir)

deposition.
b. Applicability of Section 79-11-509 (1) (f) to Stewart

Simply put, Section 79-11-509(1) (F) does not apply to Stewart. (See Exhibit “15" hereto)
The actual statute language, not the misquote in Stewart III, that set forth required penalties if
the statute had applied at all to Stewart. According to the first day of Criminal Law in every law
school anywhere, “shall” means shall, “may” means may. Application of the penalties in that
provision would have required a suspension or revocation of Beauvoir’s status, and none ever
came forth, related to Stewart, precisely because the Secretary of State’s office knew that the
statute could not apply. The misquote, instead of the simple words of the statute, invited an

erroneous conclusion that Stewart was in violation of the statute.

The Secretary of State’s Charites Investigator, according to the words of the statute
shall suspend or revoke the non-profit status of any institution found to have a specific type of
felon handling financial affairs. In Stewart III, the statute was mistakenly quoted to say “could”
be suspended or revoked. If Stewart’s felony had fit within the language of the statute, then the

unavoidable conclusion would have been a suspension or revocation of the non-profit status of
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Beauvoir, if even for one hour of one day. But, because the statute did not apply to Stewart’s
felony, the penalty wasn’t applied to Beauvoir at the conclusion of the late 2016 investigation
commenced at the behest of an anonymous complaint, connected entirely to the political warfare

inside the Mississippi Division Sons of Confederate Veterans at the time.

We know this for more than one reason, but especially Tom Payne’s own legal opinion that
he neglected to submit to the Bar, a legal opinion not requested by Stewart, at the time when
Payne had not begun to display a dislike for Stewart. It is attached hereto as Exhibit “16.
Payne includes that as a former U.S. Attorney prosecuting crime that he is familiar with the
important differences between Conspiracy to Commit an underlying crime and committing the
same crime itself. He is absolutely right. Payne’s correct legal opinion is supported by Jim
Halliday, another Mississippi attorney with an extensive criminal law background, underscoring
the important legal difference between Conspiracy to Commit versus the actual underlying

crime. See Exhibit “17.”

And, we know this because there is currently more than one felon running the financial affairs
of Mississippi non-profits, felons who pled to the exact same conspiracy charge that Stewart did
for his offense in 1998. These same individuals have been publicly lauded for their admirable

efforts.

Stewart would also show that despite repeated requests to the Secretary of State's office,

including an in-person request to Secretary of State, Delbert Hosemann himself, the Secretary of

*Tom Payne’s own Legal Opinion setting out why Stewart’s conviction for conspiracy made the statute
prohibiting some felons from authority in non-profits simply did not apply to Stewart. This same legal Opinion,
authored by Payne himself in early 2017, was intentionally not submitted to the Bar by Payne, or anyone else
who had possession of them at the time, for his own narrow purpose, distilled by February 2018.
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State's office will not provide the 2014 documentation that would support Kim Anderson's

"recollection". No email record, no final report, because it simply never happened.

Further, Stewart would show that on top of his complete email record recovered by him to
demonstrate that his felony status was not ever brought up or discussed with Kim Anderson
before late, late 2016, and the Secretary of State's office refusal to find a document they clearly
would have kept, Stewart is able to submit the personal recollection of a Board member of
Beauvoir, Dr. Chirstopher Cummins, who was on the Board during Stewart's entire tenure, and
affirm that Stewart's status was never a part of any issues with Beauvoir that the Secretary of

State took up in 2014, through very, very late 2016. See Exhibit “18.”

And finally, following a period Stewart was finally allowed to access his old Beauvoir email
accounts and is now able to offer the entire email record between the Secretary of State’s
Charities Investigator, Kim Anderson, that clearly show the two only discussed the matters
between Beauvoir and Beauvoir Foundation. She never once broached Stewart’s felony status
and there would have been no reason for it to come up. Better yet, Stewart happened to ask a
question in one of the emails about the return of a donation to a group. Anderson’s answer was
to direct Stewart, and only Stewart, as the email exchange was only between those two, to “write

a check” back to the group. See Exhibit “19.”

3. The Stewart IV Petition Requirement of the Recitation of Community
Service and Evidence of Moral Suitability to Practice Law since Stewart 111

Stewart has essentially carried on his charitable work and community involvement at the

same level he always has, as discussed in the previous three petitions.
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Petitioner began his involvement in the Boy Scouts in 2011 with the goal of having his son
obtain the rank of Eagle Scout. His involvement started with Scout Troop 301, sponsored by
Trinity United Methodist Church in Gulfport. After some time as an adult volunteer in the troop,
he was asked to take over as troop Scout master; and in that capacity, he increased the
membership in the troop from 20 to 40 in his first year in that role. Troop 301 assumed a
leadership role in the Spanish Trail District; and due to his success as Scout master, he was
requested to become a unit commissioner, a District level officer. After two years in that

capacity, he was appointed the District Commissioner.

During Greg's tenure as District Commissioner of the Spanish Trail Scout District, at a
time when nation-wide Scout membership was dropping, he increased participation in his
District by twenty percent. See letter from John L. Kelley. (Exhibit C to third petition)
Petitioner's service to Boy Scouts was recognized in 2016 at the annual Pine Burr Area Council
Eagle banquet when Petitioner was awarded Scouts' highest honor available to adult volunteers,

the Silver Beaver Award. The criteria for this award are as follows:

The Silver Beaver Award is the council-level distinguished service award of the Boy
Scouts of America. Upon nomination by their local Scout council and with the approval of
the National Court of Honor, recipients of this award are registered adult leaders who have
made an impact of the lives of youth through service given to the council. The Silver Beaver
is an award given to those who implement the Scouting program and perform community
service through hard work, self-sacrifice, dedication, and many years of service. It is given to
those who do not seek it.

(Exhibit "C-20"to third petition)

Petitioner, through his Scouting activities, has positively affected many youth; and under
his leadership, a very significant number of Scouts have obtained the rank of Eagle Scout. Dave

Dennis, former Chairman of the Pine Burr Area Council of the Scouts, recognized Petitioner's
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work in Scouting and other areas of charity and community work in a letter of recommendation
dated September 21,2017. His work in Scouting consumed much of Petitioner's time during the
period since 2011, and his activities were rewarded by his son's obtaining the rank of Eagle

Scout. Petitioner continues to serve as District Commissioner of the Spanish Trail District.

Petitioner has been active in other community, religious, and charitable activities since
2011. The most significant of these are service to the homeless on the Gulf Coast, and his service
as a Board member and risk manager of Children's International Summer Villages ("CISV").
TNT Ranch Recovery Home in Gulfport is a residential facility that greatly assists the homeless
population of the Gulf Coast. Petitioner had been instrumental in fund raising for this
organization and in establishing it as a legal organization that enjoys wide support from the

business community on the Gulf Coast. Petitioner is no longer active in these organizations.

Finally, it should be noted that Petitioner has been rewarded by a very successful family
life. He and his wife have raised four children, the eldest serving as a Captain in the United
States Army, and currently on tour in Korea, having earlier completed a tour in Kuwait. Their
oldest daughter graduated from the College of Charleston while cross enrolled in the ROTC
program at The Citadel, and is now a 1st Lt. in the United States Army, on tour in Germany.
Their youngest daughter is a sophomore at the College of Charleston and also enrolled in the The
Citadel ROTC program and will be commissioned as a United States Army officer upon
graduation. All of the Stewart children are accomplished musicians, Red Cross volunteers, and
have extensive second language training, including Arabic and Chinese. Petitioner's wife has
been extremely active in her own volunteer efforts on the Coast, having several times been

recognized as Volunteer of the Year at the public school attended by their children.
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In its 2011 opinion, the Court recognized the great strides taken by Petitioner prior to
2011. The following quote from that second opinion succinctly summarizes Petitioner's activities

prior to 2011:

In addition to the activities cited in Stewart I, Stewart now details more of his
civic, church, and community involvement: (1) joining his son and the Boy
Scouts on a one-week, thirty-mile hike along the Appalachian Trail and on a
week-long summer camp; (2) serving as a member of the Nutrition Board for
the Gulfport City Schools; (3) serving on the Board of Directors of the Orange
Grove-Lyman Chamber of Commerce; (4) volunteering for the Korean MIA
Project, which helps connect the remains of lost servicemen with their
families or hometowns; (5) participating in six community-theater
productions; (6) volunteering regularly to clean up beaches in Harrison
County; (7) serving as a poll worker during the 2008 general election; (8)
serving actively in the Harrison County Republican Women; (9) helping
sponsor the Heritage Festival in Laurel, which celebrates Celtic music and
heritage; (10) spearheading efforts to clean up a cemetery in Tallahatchie
County where several of Stewart's distant relatives are buried; (11)
re-indexing a seventy-year-old Works Project Administration cookbook and a
fifty-year-old Wesleyan Guild cookbook; and finally (12) serving as a
member of the Sons of Confederate Veterans.

Since the filing of his third petition, Petitioner has engaged in the following charitable
activities: (1) Humphries County Courthouse Renovation Project; (2) Lobbying for antiquities
legislation in the Legislature; (3) Commissioned puzzles made from artwork for the benefit of
Beauvoir ($1,000); (4) Continued to work every election as a Poll Worker, made political
contributions to candidates, actively participated in Harrison County Republican Club activities;
(5) Within Boy Scouts: (a) sponsored, annually for the last six years, a $1,000 table at the
District Banquet for Boy Scouts; (b) serve as Committee Chairman of Troop 301; (c) serve as
Committee Chairman of Pack 301; (d) serve as the Spanish Trail District Camping Coordinator;
(6) Kept up with continuing legal education, as follows: (a) attended 2019 and 2020 Summary

of Recent Mississippi Law; (b) attended the Bankruptcy Conference in 2018 & 2019; (c) took
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the 2 month long Bar-Bri Bar Examination (for Mississippi ) course May & June of 2019; (7)
Continued to Serve Trinity UM Church as a van driver; and (8) Sponsor for the Junior Auxiliary

annual fundraiser ($1,000.00).

And, as somewhere along the way it was suggested that Stewart's two full volunteer years at
Beauvoir, with no compensation at all, are somehow equivalent to the last year he did accept a
salary, Stewart has dug up his own personal banking records of the same time to remember his
own, personal $3,500.00 a month contribution, each month for 15 consecutive months to cover
the costs of a lobbyist during the worst part of Beauvoir's public relations to protect the annual
MDAH appropriation, secure other grants, and to reintroduce the institution to policy makers. In
short, besides serving two full years completely for free, he also spent a total of $52,500.00 at
the very same time in this effort to bolster the flagging Mississippi historical Gulf Coast treasure

and leading tourism attraction. See Exhibit “20" hereto.

Exhibit “21" hereto shows financial contributions, forgotten by Stewart in Stewart III,
that demonstrate that his first two years of free service also included enough direct financial
donations to equal what he was paid in his third year, no less than $67,500.00 versus that one-
time 60K salary, for a grand total of at least $180,000.00 over three years, well past any puffery

suggested in Stewart III by the Bar in its pleadings.

Stewart’s work in his own community continues to be exemplary and fresh evidence of
the latest acts will be given at the required deposition, for the Bar to examine and the Court to

consider.

E. EFFORTS TO MAINTAIN LEGAL KNOWLEDGE
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Petitioner understands that he will be required to take and pass the Mississippi Bar Exam
if this petition is successful. He continues to read summaries of Supreme Court and Court of
Appeal decisions and has attended several legal seminars to include the March, 2017, CLE
seminar on Mississippi law, attendance at the expungement workshop in Holly Springs in
March, 2017, and attendance at the New Lawyers Orientation seminar in October, 2017. He
enrolled in a bankruptcy seminar held in November, 2017. Since the filing of his third petition
up until the present, Petitioner has attended the following continuing legal education seminars:
Attended 2019 and 2020 Summary of Recent Mississippi Law seminars and attended the
Bankruptcy Conference in 2018 & 2019. Petitioner took the 2 month long Bar-Bri Bar
Examination (for Mississippi ) course May & June of 2019, and has also since the denial of
Petitioner’s third petition successfully passed the Multi-State Professional Responsibility Exam
as required by Rule 12.5 of the Mississippi Rules of Discipline, receiving a scaled score of 89 on

this examination.

Exhibit “22" hereto shows additional CLE by Stewart, including a complete Bar-Bri

Bar Examination course.
VII. ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF REINSTATEMENT

Having been thrice denied reinstatement to the practice of law since his disbarment
nearly seventeen years ago, Petitioner will compare the reinstatement of other attorneys in an
effort to show that the continued denial of reinstatement to Petitioner is, respectfully, arbitrary

and capricious and, when compared to other cases of reinstatement.

It should first again be noted that the Mississippi Bar’s initial opposition to Petitioner’s

first Petition for Reinstatement was based upon the fact that
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“the underlying misconduct which led to (Petitioner’s) misconduct criminal conviction
violated the basic principles that attorneys must live by in order to honorably serve their
clients, the courts, and the legal system. His misconduct was of such a serious nature that the
Bar cannot support his reinstatement.”

Such an objection has no relevance to the applicable standard. Obviously, every attorney
disbarred for a felony conviction violated the basic principles attorneys must live by in order to
honorably serve their clients, the courts and the legal system. Yet, numerous attorneys convicted

of felonies have been reinstated, as will be shown below.

The applicable standard for reinstatement, as stated above, i1s governed by Rule 12 of
the Mississippi Rules of Discipline as further clarified by this Honorable Court in In re Benson,
890 So.2d 888, 890 (Miss. 2004); Miss. Bar v. Baldwin, 752 So.2d 996,997 (Miss. 1999) citing
In re Massey, 670 So.2d 843, 844 (Miss. 1996). Petitioner must (1) state the cause or causes for
disbarment, (2) give the name and current address of all persons, parties, firms, or legal entities
who suffered pecuniary loss due to the improper conduct, (3) make full amends and restitution,
(5) show that he has the necessary moral character for the practice of law, and (5) demonstrate
the requisite legal education to be reinstated to the privilege of practicing law. This Court stated
in In re Flautt, 890 So.2d 928,930 (Miss. 2004), that the Court's fundamental inquiry is whether
the attorney "has rehabilitated himself in conduct and character since the suspension (or
disbarment) was imposed,” (citing In re Mathes, 653 So.2d 928, 928 (Miss. 1995), and a firm
resolve to live a correct life evidenced by outward manifestation sufficient to convince a
reasonable mind that the person has reformed is all that is required. In re Underwood, 649 So.2d

825,828-29 (Miss. 1995).
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In the three (3) previous denials by this Court, Petitioner was found to have met his burden as
to 4 of the 5 requirements.® This Court has, however, found each of the previous three times that
Petitioner has failed to show that he has the necessary moral character for the practice of law.
With all due respect, Petitioner has led an exemplary life since his felony conviction and, when
compared to similar cases in which convicted felons have been readmitted, Petitioner has clearly
shown the requisite moral character and that he has a firm resolve to live a correct life evidenced
by outward manifestation sufficient to convince a reasonable mind that Petitioner has reformed.

This is all that is required. /d.

In In re Petition of Donald W. Medley for Reinstatement to Practice Law, 687 So.2d 1219
(Miss. 1997), Medley had been convicted of embezzling a $16,000 check from Engel Realty

Company, Inc., which was made payable to his former employer, James K. Dukes. /d.

Medley filed this petition for reinstatement on November 6, 1995, at least
three years after his disbarment became final as required by the Rules of
Discipline 12.1. The Mississippi Bar admits Medley has made full amends for
his conduct, and no restitution is owed or assessed against him. The Bar also
admits, on information and belief, that there are no parties who suffered
pecuniary loss due to the conduct for which Medley was disbarred.

Medley lists the following as reasons justifying his reinstatement: his conduct
since the incident which led to disbarment, the need to earn a living for his
family, and the fact that he possesses all qualifications for reinstatement.
Medley maintains that he has the requisite moral character to be reinstated,
and claims he has maintained his legal learning through continuing legal
education.

®Petitioner has, each time he has petitioned this Honorable Court for reinstatement, demonstrated
that he has continued his legal education annually, though if this Petition is granted, he will be required to pass
the Mississippi Bar Exam and Multi-State Professional Responsibility Exam before he can be reinstated to the
privilege of practicing law.
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The Bar maintains it has not discovered any reason to oppose reinstatement,
but takes no position, either in support or in opposition of Medley's
reinstatement. James K. Dukes, the individual from whom Medley was
convicted of embezzling, has indicated he would not write a letter in
opposition or in support of Medley's reinstatement.

Petition of Medley, 687 So0.2d 1219 (Miss. 1997). Embezzling $16,000 from his attorney
employer is certainly more egregious than Gregory Stewart’s underlying conduct. This Court
further reinstated Medley in spite of the fact that the Bar assumed “on information and belief”
that “there are no parties who suffered pecuniary loss due to the conduct for which Medley was
disbarred.” 687 So.2d at 1219 Yet, Medley embezzled $16,000. And the Mississippi Bar had
“not discovered any reason to oppose reinstatement.” Id. Medley was sentenced to ten (10) years
in prison. Id., at p. 1220. Petitioner herein was sentenced only to probation and paid a hefty fine.
“The Bar also concedes that Medley will have demonstrated the requisite legal learning when he
is permitted to take and succeésfully passes the Bar Exam.” Id. There was no evidence that
Medley maintained continuing legal education during his period of disbarment. Mr. Stewart has
been continuing his legal education all along and will, likewise, be required to take and
successfully pass the Bar Exam and MPRE. Medley’s prison sentence was commuted by the

Govermnor after serving approximately 5 % years after his conviction.
Medley’s rehabilitation of his moral character was addressed by this Court, as follows:

After the incident which led to disbarment, Medley was employed at Delmar
Industries, a company owned by his sister, and also by several oil companies
for the purpose of performing title work. Medley's embezzlement conviction
was then affirmed by this Court, and he began serving his ten-year sentence
with the Mississippi Department of Corrections facility in Pascagoula. He
worked as a clerk assisting in the day-to-day activities of the restitution
center, and became involved in several Christian organizations which
provided support to inmates and their families. He was transferred to the
Harrison County Community Work Center after his first year where he
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performed work for the Gulfport Police Department in writing their grant
proposals, and with the Director of the Gulfport Police Explorer Programs and
their summer camp, as well as with several of the Department's fundraising
activities. He also was involved with work for the Gulfport City Schools and
with adult education programs teaching men to read. Medley also helped Mr.
Gerald Gafford, the Inspector General for the Office of the Governor of the
State of Mississippi, prepare a report which helped the Governor reap more
than one million dollars for the State of Mississippi in the issuance of tax land
patents. Based on a report from the State Parole Board, the Governor signed
an order effective May 13, 1994, commuting his sentence.

Since his return to Hattiesburg, Mississippi, where he has joint custody of his
two boys after a divorce which occurred during his legal troubles, he has been
a member of the PTA at both of his boys' schools, a coach for the Hattiesburg
Recreation Department and an assistant for his son's soccer team. He is a
member of the First Baptist Church in Hattiesburg where he teaches sixth
grade Sunday School. He is a member of the Walthall Foundation which
works to preserve historical sites, and he has worked with Willmut Gas
Company performing non-legal services in negotiating easements and
conducting record searches.

Id. This Court then ruled:

Based on the evidence presented, and other decisions by this Court regarding
reinstatement, Medley has demonstrated the requisite moral character to
practice law. The Mississippi Bar does not assert any opposition to his
petition, nor does the individual from whom Medley embezzled money. This
Court hereby finds that Donald W. Medley should be reinstated to the practice
of law, contingent upon his passage of the Mississippi Bar Exam and the
Multi-State Professional Responsibility Exam.

1d. The majority in Medley rejected the reasoning of the dissenting opinion of Justice McRae that
compared the egregiousness of Medley’s conduct against the record of Medley’s post conviction
conduct. In comparing the record in Medley with the extensive record submitted by Stewart, it 1s
difficult to understand why Mr. Stewart’s three previous petitions for reinstatement have been
denied. Mr. Stewart was not provided the opportunity during his third petition to rebut the

accusations made by disgruntled former employees of Beauvoir, which was obviously generated
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from personne] files that were not authorized to be disclosed by Beauvoir. Mr. Stewart’s conduct
has been exemplary over a period of over 17 years since his disbarment. He has paid his debt to
society and has rehabilitated his moral character sufficiently to be readmitted to the privilege of
practicing law, based upon the applicable standards and this Court’s decisions in other

reinstatement cases.
VIII. CONCLUSION

It 1s respectfully submitted that Petitioner has demonstrated in the nearly sixteen years since
his disbarment that he is a changed person. He has a remarkable history of service to Mississippi
and to his community. He has met all jurisdictional requirements and has demonstrated a
remorse for his wrongful actions and a desire to atone for his prior unlawful conduct. While his
record of service to his community since those unfortunate incidents is impressive, he hopes to
accomplish even more if his petition for reinstatement is accepted. He, therefore, respectfully
requests that his application for reinstatement be accepted and that he be permitted to take the

Mississippi Bar examination.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 19" day of April, 2022.

Respectfully submitted,
JOE GREGORY

By: /s/Michael C. Barefield
Attorney for Petitioner
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

A true copy of the foregoing Petition of Joe Gregory Stewart for Reinstatement to the
Mississippi Bar has been mailed, postage prepaid, to the Honorable Adam B. Kilgore, Post
Office Box 2168, Jackson, Mississippi 39225-2168, attorney for The Mississippi Bar.

-This 19" day of April, 2022.

/s/ Michael C. Barefield
MICHAEL C. BAREFIELD

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER, JOE GREGORY STEWART:

MICHAEL C. BAREFIELD

Miss. BAR NO. 8322
BAREFIELD LAW FIrRM, PLLC
Attorneys & Counselors at Law
Post Office Box 16826

Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39404-6826
Telephone: (601) 336-7396

Facsimile: (866) 877-5521

E-mail: mcbarefieldlaw@gmail.com
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AQ245 S Sheet | - Judzment in a Criminal Ca:

-

b

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

.S, ATTORREY
B | G’XFDRB. MS

V.

JOE GREGORY STEWART
Detendant.

- JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAY CASE
© = (For Offenses Commitied O or After November 1, 1987)
The defendant, JOE GREGORY STEWART, was represented by Mr. David Bell.

The defendant pleaded guilty to count(s) 1 of the Information filed on May 30, 2003. Accordingly; the ‘defendant
is-adjudged guilty of such count(s), involving the following offense(s):

Date Offense Count.
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s) ;
18, U.8:C.§ 371 ‘Conspiracy to Commit Extortion 8/1998 T

Under Color of Official Right

As pronounced on March 4, 2004, the defendant is sentenced as provided in-pages 1 through4 of this Judgment.
The senteiice is imposed prirsuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

1t is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessmentiof $100; for count(s) 1, whichshall
be due immediately. Al crithinal monetary penalties to include special assessments, fine, and/or restimtion (including
community restitution)-shall be made to the Clerk, U.S. District Court, 911 Jackson Avenue, Room 369; Oxford, MS 38653.
"Payment shall be téndered in cash, postal money order, or certified bank check only. Personal checks will not be accepled.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States-Attorney for this district within 3¢ days of any

change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and Spacial assessment
Judgment are fully paid. If ordered to pay restitution, the defendant shall notify the co p lS lmmgﬁd b&l h]g
material change in the defendant’s economic circumstances.

o

Signed this the _/ & day of March, 2004.

o <l Ve

Glen . Davidson

urt and United States Attorney of any

CHIEF JUDGE
Defendant’s SSN: 426-27-1791 " Defendant's Date of Birth: 10/21/63
Defendant's Mailing Address: 803 Royal Oalks Drive; Oxford, MS 38655
Defendant's Residence Address: 803 Royal Oaks Drive; Oxford, MS 38655 CRIMINAL JUDGMENT BOOK Er
Defendant's USM No: 11791-042 )
P Book 77 paces) JF~37
AR A DATE: ___J3~E) 4
21 7
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A0 245 S Sheet 4 - Probation
Defendant: JOF GREGORY STEWART
Case Number: 2:03CR00048-001

Judgment--Page 2 of 4

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on Probation for a term of Three (3} years as to Count 1.
The defendant shall not commit another federal, stats, or local crime.
The defendant shall not tllegally possess a controlled substance.
For offenses commitied on or after September 13, 1994

The defendant shall refrain from any unlawfui use of a controiled substance. The defendantshall subnit to.one drug test w:thm
15 days of release from imprisonment and at Jedst two periodic ding tests thereafier, as directed by the probation o6fficer.

D» The above drug testing condition is suspended based on the. court’s determination: that the defepdant poses a. low risk of future
substance abuse. (Check, if applicable)

EdThe defendant shall cooperaie in the collection of DNA as directed by-the probation officer. (Check, if applicable)

If this judgment tmposes a {ine or 2 restitation obligation, it shall be a conditien of Probation that the defendant pay any such

{ine or restitistion that remains unpaid-at the commencement, of the term of Probation in accordance with the Fine and Restitution sheet
of the judgment.

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below) The defendant
shall also comply with the additional conditions on the attached page.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

1) The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without-the permission of the court or probation officer.
2) Thedefendant shall report to the probation officer as-directed by the:court or:probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete written
-report within' the first five days of cach month.
'3)  The defendant shall answer truthfully alf inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
4) The defendant shall support his or her dependents and mecet other family rmponsnbllmes
Sy  The'defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excuscd by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other acceptable
Easons.
G6)  The defendant shall notify the probation officer af icast 10 days prior 1o ariy change in residence or employment.
7)  The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol 2nd shall not purchase, possess; use, distribute, or administer any controlled substance,
or-any paraphemalia related to such controlled substance, except as prescribed’by.a physician.
8)  The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or admiinistered.
9)  Thedefendantshallnotassociate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted ofa felony unless
granted permussion fo do so by the probation officer.
10) The defendant shall permil a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation of any contraband
observed in plain view by the probation officer.
11) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer.
12) The defendant shall not cnter into any agreement (o act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the penmission of
the court.
13} Asdirected by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant's criminal record or
personal history or.charactenistics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such netifications and to confirm the defendant’s compliance with
such notification requirement.



s L5535 D dBECt 4a ~ Frobation

sefendant: JOE GREGORY STEWART
-ase Number: 2:03CR00048-001

Judgmeni--Page 3 of ¢

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is on probatior pursuant to this Judgment:

B PO

. The defendant shall not possess-a fifearm orother destructive device.

. The defendant shall pay any fine that is imposed by this judgment.

. The defendant shall provide the probation officer with:accéss to any requesied financial information.

. The defendant shall not incur néwcredit-charges or open additional lines of credit without the-approval o

the probation officer unless the defendant is'in compliance with the instaliment payment schedule.

. The defendant shall perform 50- non—compensated hours of community service as directed by the probatior.

officer.

. The defendant shall comply with the: condmons of Home Detention for a period of _6 months. The

defendant shall be reqmred to wear an electronic monjtoring dévice and follow electronic: moniforing
procedures specified by the probation officer: Thé defendant shall pay $3.47 each day while wearing an
electronic monitoring device t6 offset the:cost ofthe program.



AQ245S Sheet s - Fine

Defendant: JOE GREGORY STEWART
Case Number: 2:03CR00048-001

Judgment--Page 4 of 4

FINE

This amount is the totai of the fines imposed on individual counts, as follows:

Count 1 $20,000

Having assessed the:deféndant’s abiliiy to pay, payment of the total criminal moneiary pexia‘lﬁcs shall be due as
follows: '

Lump-sum payment of $20,000-due immediately, but in no event to be paid in full not later than March 31,.2004.

<

The défendant $hall pay interest on-any fine of more than $2,500, unless the fine is paid in full before the
fifteenth day after the dateiof judgment, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). Delinquency and default penalties apply

pursuantte 18 U:S.C. §3612(g).

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise in the special instructions above, if this judgment imposesa -
period of imprisonment payment of ¢riminal yionetary penalties shall be due during the period of imprisonment. All
criminal monetary penalty payments, éxcept those payments made through the Bureau of Prisons Inmate Firiancial
‘Responsibility Program, are made fo the clerk of the court, unless otherwise directed by the court, the probation officer,
or the United States attorney.

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties imposed.

FY] 1)

i hersby certify that the forsgoingls &
true copy of the original thereot now in
my office.

Attest ({4/[{2/"/’7‘ /
7 AﬁanB.Coyi / Clerk

oy W -AA s

Dsputy Cleric

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, (2) restitution pn'ncipa_l, {3} restitution intt?rest, {4) fine
principal, (5) community restitution, (6) fine interest, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost of prosecution and court
Costs. '



v, 215 O dheet /- Statemen! of Reasons - Attavianent A
efendant: JOE GREGORY STEWART
ase Number: 2:03CR00048-001

Judgment--Page 1 of ]

STATEMENT OF REASONS
(Not for Public Disclosure)
he court adopts the factual ﬁndmgs and guideline application n the presentence report.

‘nideline Range Determined by the Court:

otal Offense Level: 10

timinal History Category: i

iprisonment Rarige: 6 to 12 months
pervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

ne Range: $ 2,00010 $ 20,000
sstitution: $ N/A

The sentence departs from the guideline range upon the motion of ‘the._gov&;mmcnf as a result of defendant’s
sstantial-assistarce. ' .
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Serial: 220795 :
. IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

No. 2017-BR-01553-SCT
JOE GREGORY STEWART FILED Petitioner
v. SEP 13 2018
ey o OF&%% OF THE CLERK , »
THE MISSISSIPPI BAR COURT OF APPEALS Respondent
ORDER

Joe Gregory Stewart has petitioned this Court for reinstatement to'the Mississippi Bar
for the third tithe. The Bar opposes Stewart’s reinstatement. This Court requests additional
facts to'rule on Stewart’s petition.

In all attorney-discipline matters, the purpose of discipline “is not simply to punish
the guilty attorney, but to protect the public, the administration of justice; to maintain
appropriate professional standards, and to deter similar conduct.” Miss. Barv, Drungole, 913
So. 2d 963, 967 (Miss. 2005) {citing Miss. Bar v. Coleman, 849 So. 2d 867, 875 (Miss.
2002); Cotton v. Miss. Bar, 809 So. 2d 582, 585 (Miss. 2000); Miss. State Bar Ass’n v. A

Miss, Attorney, 489 So.2d 1081, 1084 (Miss. 1986)). Stewart first must satisfy the following

five jurisdictional requirements:

(1) state the cause or causes for suspension or disbarment; (2) give the name
and current address of all persons, parties, firms, or legal entities who suffered
pecuniary loss due to the improper conduct; (3) make full amends and
restitution, (4) show that he has the necessary moral character for the practice
of law; and (5) demonstrate the requisite legal education to be reinstated to the
privilege of practicing law. Though not a jurisdictional requirement, we
consider the Bar’s position as to reimstatement as a factor in determining
whether to grant the petition.




In re Benson, 890 So. 2d 888, 890 (Miss. 2004).
Beyond the jurisdictional minimum, the Court also considers nine other criteria. They
are as follows:
[iln assessing a sanction in an aftorney disciplinefcase, we apply the following
nine criteria: (1) the nature of the misconduct involved; (2) the need to deter
similar misconduct; (3) the preservation of 'I;he“qrgpity"and reputation of the
profession; (4) the protection of the. public; (5) the sanctions imposed in
similar cases; (6) the duty violated; (7) the lawyer’s mental state; (8) the actual
or potential injury resulting from, the: misconduct; and (9) the existence of
aggravating or mitigating factors,
Miss: Bar v. Inserra, 855 So. 2d 447, 450-(Miss. 2003). Neither Stewart’s Petition nor the
Bar’s Answer sufficiently address all.
This Court has the awesome responsibility for declaring that disbarred attorneys are
“fit to be entrusted with professional and judicial matters, and to-aid in the administration of
justice as an attorney and as an officér-of the Court.” M;R.D. Part Orie: Rules of Discipline,
Grounds for Discipline. “To reach a just decision is indeed a difficult task which requires the
highest objectivity in evaluating all the pertinent facts.” Petition of Mé¢Hann, 691 So. 2d
422, 423 (Miss. 1997) (quoting Miss. State Bar Ass’n v. Wade, 250 Miss. 625, 630, 167 So.
2d 648, 650 (1964)). “The supreme court shall consider the evidence in the case, as disclosed
by the record, and such other evidence as it may deem necessary for the administration of
justice. . . .” Ex parte Marshall, 165 Miss. 523, 147 So. 791, 798 (1933). See also Miss.
State Bar v. Phillips, 385 So. 2d 943, 945 (Miss. 1980). In undertaking this responsibility,

this Court should be provided with the benefit of all relevant evidence and pertinent facts

necessary before making such a decision. See M.R.D. 12.8.




In order for this Court to make a determination as to whether Stewart should be
reinstated, we deem it necessary to consider additional evidence referenced in the pleadings
and Stewart’s depositions, infer alia. Thus, we defer this matter to allow Stewart and the
Bar to further develop the record.!

Stewart is ordered to provide to the:Bar all records and documents, in whatever form
kept, which are in his‘or his attorneys’ possession that were referenced in his reinstatement.
petitions ‘and depositions including but not limited to the box of documents and files
previously provided to and tetutned by the federal government in Cause No. 2:03-cr-00048;
all documents related to any civil or criminal legal proceeding filed by or against Stewart;
and all documents-related to any formal or informal bar complaints against Stewart.

The Bar is ordered to obtain and review documents referenced in Stewart’s
depositions. Once the: documents have been received and reviewed by fhe Bar, the Court
instructs the Bar to decideif further investigation is warranted as provided by the Rules. See
Gibson v. Miss. State Bar, 531 So. 2d.800, 800-01 (Miss. 1988). See also MR.D. 2.

The Bar, upon completion of its duties pursuant to the Rules, shall file an amended
answer. See Miss. State Bar v. Gautier, 538 So. 2d 772, 773 (Miss. 1989). Once the matter

is returned to this Court for its de novo review,” all documents obtained, reviewed, and

considered by the Bar shall be filed with this Court.

! See In re Prisock, 5 So. 3d 319 (Miss. 2008). See also M.R.D. 12.8.

2 See Miss. Bar v. Mathis, 620 So. 2d 1213, 1218 (Miss. 1993).
3




IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that within thirty days of the entry of this order

Stewart shall produce to the Bar all documents and records, in whatever form they are

received and kept, within his possession and control related to this proceeding, beginning

with his applicatidns.to law school and for admittance to the Bar through his disbarment and

reinstatement petition including but not limited to:

a".

All formal and informal complaints filed with the Mississippi Bar against
Stewart, all material generated from those complaints, and all corresponidence
from the complainants and/or Stewart or his attorneys;

All correspondence and/or responses to or from Stewart, his attorneys, or the
Bar related to Stewart including but not limited to Mike Martz’s July 2007
letter to the Bar and the complete “packet” sent by Stewart requesting letters
t6 be written on his behalf referenced in Stewart’s depositions;

The following documents from USA v. Stewart, U.S. District Court, Northern
District of Mississippi Cause No. 2:03-cr-00048: Plea Agreement, Criminal

Information Sheet, Waiver of Indictment, Information, Noti¢e of Penalties,

Criminal Minutes for Waiver of Indictment, Taking of Plea, and Filing of
Information, Transcript of Waiver of Indictment and Plea, Motion by USA for
Downward Departure, Motion to Continue Sentencing, Response to Motion
to Continue Senteéncing, Order Granting Motion to Continiue Sentencing, Pre-
Sentencing Report, Criminal Minutes for Sentencing, Judgment, and
Transcript of Sentencing Proceeding;

The following documents from Lafayette County Circuit Court Record No.
11,530: Indictment, Plea, Plea Agreement, Plea Colloquy, Pre-Sentence
Investigation Reports, Judgment, and Sentencing Hearing Transcripts;

All documents, records, exhibits, reports, plea colloquies, transcripts, pre-
sentence investigation reports, judgments, and sentence hearing transcripts
related to any other legal proceedings, civil and criminal alike, filed against
Joe Gregory Stewart including but not limited to Jack Tucker v. Stewart,
Tunica County, Cause No. Unknown; Unknown former employee fired for
embezzlement v. Stewart and/or Gulf South Hospitality, Cause No. Unknown,
referenced in his depositions; and




f. The box of documents and files previously provided to and returned by the
federal government in Cause No. 2:03-cr-00048 referenced in his depositions
to the Bar.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Bar shall obtain and review all documents and
records, in whatever form they are received and kept, related to Stewart, beginning with his
applications to law school and for admittance to the Bar up to and including his reinstatement
petitions, to include but not be limited to:

a.  All formal and informal complaints filed with the Mississippi Bar against
Stewart, all miaterial generated from those complainits, and all correspondence
from the complainants and/or Stewart or his attorneys;

b. All correspondence and/or responses to or from Stewart, his attorneys, or the
Bar related to Stewart including but not limited to Mike Martz’s July 2007
Jetter to the Bar and letters and documents teceived from Beauvoir employees
and/or attorneys referenced in Stewart’s depositions;

c. The following documents from USA v. Stewart, U.S. District Court, Northern
~ District of Mississippi Cause No. 2:03-¢r-00048: Plea Agreement, Criminal
Information Sheet, Waiver of Indictment, Information, Notice- of Penalties,
Criminal Minutes for Waiver of Indictment, Taking of Plea, and Filing of
Information, Transcript of Waiver of Indictment and Plea, Motion by USA for
Downward Departure, Motion to Continue Senteneing, Response to Motion
to Continue Sentencing, Order Granting Motion to Continue Sentencing, Pre-
Sentencing Report, Criminal Minutes for Sentencing, Judgment, and
Transcript of Sentencing Proceeding; '

d. The following documents from Lafayette County Circuit Court Record No.
11,530: Indictment, Plea, Plea Agreement, Plea Colloquy, Pre-Sentence
Investigation Reports, Judgment, Sentencing Hearing Transcripts, Post
Judgment Pleadings, and Orders;

e. All documents, records, exhibits, reports, plea colloquies, transcripts, pre-
sentence investigation reports, judgments, and sentence hearing transcripts
related to any other legal proceedings, civil and criminal alike, filed against
Joe Gregory Stewart including but not limited to Jack Tucker v. Stewart,
Tunica County, Cause No. Unknown; Unknown former employee fired for




embezzlement v. Stewart and/or Gulf South Hospitality, Cause No. Unknown,
referenced in his depositions; and

£ All other correspondence, electronic or any form, or information reviewed,
used, and/or considered by the Mississippi Bar to support its opposition to
Stewart’s reinstatement.

1T IS ORDERED that Stewart shall file an amended petition with attachments with

this Court withinisixty (60) days of the entry of this order.
IT IS ORDERED that the Bar shall have 120 days from the date of entry of this order
to review the supplemental records and conduct further investigation as it deems necessary.
IT IS ORDERED that the Bar shall file an amended response, attaching all documents

obtained and reviewed referenced herein or otherwise considered pursuant within 150 days

of the entry of this order.

SO ORDERED, this the_{__é\ day of September. @
NS

MICHAEL K. RANDOLPH, \)
PRESIDING JUSTICE
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CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND LEGAL SERVICES

This agreement, made and effective as of the 15T day of January, 2017, between THE MISSISSIPPI DIVISION
OF THE UNITED SONS OF CONFEDERATE VETERANS, INC (hereinafter referred to as Beauvoir) and

Tom Payne.
PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the BEAUVOIR desires to secure the services of the Chief Executive Officer/General Counsel
(hereafter CEO/GC) and Tom Payne desires to enter into a contract-to provide these services.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration ‘of the- mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and intending to be
legally bound, BEAUVOIR and TOM PAYNE agree as follows:

MUTUAL COVENANTS

1. The term Chief Executive Officer (CEO) shall be synonymous and interchangeable with the term
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR throughout this agreement. Tom, Payne will personally render Chief Executive
and Legal services to BEAUVOIR ‘il the ¢apacity of CEQ/GC at the campus location of the Jefferson Davis
Home and Presidential Library in Biloxi, Ms. The CEO/GC will at 4ll times, faithfully and industriously,
perform all duties that may berequired by vittite of the position.as:CEQ/GC and-all duties set forth in the
BEAUVOIR Organization bylaws and in policy statements of theé Board 'of Directors (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board™). It is understood'that these-duties shall be substantially the same as those of-a CEQ/GC of a
non-profit corporation. The CEQ/GC shall be have the same powers and: responsibility of Executive
Director of a non-profit organization.

2. In consideration for these services:as CEQ/GC, BEAUVOIR: agrees to pay TOM PAYNE a contract amount
of Sixty Thousand dotlars (860,000.00) per annum; along thh the costs'of medical insurance and taxes
saved by Beauvoir by employing TOM PAYNE as'a-contractor (recexvmg a 1099 form, instead of a regular
employee). - The savings to the institution is-agreed and ‘estirnated this first contract year to represent twenty
thousand dollars ($20,000.00). This total of eighty. thousand dollars {$80,000.00) will be paid in equal
payments on a bi-weekly basis. This dollar amount represents the projected total amount of regular pay and
benefits as if hired as a regular employeé of BEAUVOIR. This amount can be adjusted to reflect the actual
compensation package whether higher or lower based on a regular employee being paid Sixty thousand
dollar per annum base salary and the cost of benefits if an employee. Adjustments can be agreed upon at an
annual review of compensation after an annual performance by the Board. This annual review shall occur
three months prior to the end of each year of the contract for the express purpose of considering adjustments
to the base contract amount. This is a personal services contract with Tom Payne.

(2) In the event of a single period of prolonged inability to work by Tom Payne (Individual) due
to the results of a sickness or an injury, BEAUVOIR will continue to pay the full contract
amount for at least thirty (30) days from the date of the sickness or injury.

(b) Tom Payne will be permitted to be absent from the campus of Beauvoir during working days
to attend business and educational meetings and to attend to such outside duties of Tom
Payne as have been agreed upon by the President of the Board. Attendance at such approved
meetings and accomplishment of approved professional duties shall be fully compensated
service time and shall not be considered outside the scope of this agreement. BEAUVOIR
shall reimburse Tom Payne for all expenses incurred by the CEO/GC incident to attendance

it ] Beawvoir Executive Director/General Counsel Contract




at approved professional meetings, and such entertainment expenses incurred by the CEO/GC
in furtherance of the duties under this agreement. All reimbursements must be approved by
tic Clialtinan of the Board. It is understood that T'OM PAYNE will maintain a limited
practice of law.

©) A performance bonus of up to the percent (10%) of the salary of Tom Payne can be awarded
by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion in the event that the Board determines that the
Executive Director has substaiitially improved the financial héalth of Beauvoir. “The borus
shall be-paid-in the sole discretion of the Board in a good faith assessment of the financial
health of Beauvoir and of the pjcffOnnanc'e of the Executive Director.

orgamzatzons and clubs of whlch the CEO/GC isa mcmber No reimbursement shall be made without the
written approval of the Chairman of the Board as being in the best interests of BEAUVOIR.

4. The Board:may, for cause, terminate.this Agreement and the CEO/GC’s duties hereunder. Such action shall
require a majority vote of the eiitire Board and become effective upon written notice to the TOM PAYNE.
Cause can include the fact.that the CEO/GC has been charged with any felony criminal offense, or ariy
misdemeanor criminal-offense-related to substance abuse, crime of moral turpitude, violext crimes, sexual
misconduct,.crimes mvolvmg children, any act that brings discredit upon Beauvoir or repeated failure to
follow the: gu1delmes or.directives of the Board of Directors. Otherwise, this contract continues from year to
year with reviews every tenth calendar month.

5. Should TOM PAYNE in his discretion elect to terminate this contract for any reason he shall give the Board
90 days’ written notice.of the decision to terminate. At the end of the 90 days, all rights, duties and
obligafions of both parties to the contract shall cease.

@T he CEO/GC.shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that he receives in the course of his
employment and not disclose any-such information. The CEO/GC shall not, either during the term of
employment or thereafter, use or permit the use of any information of, or relating to BEAUVOIR in
connection with an ex_zactw;ty ot business and shall not divulge such information to any person, firm,.or
corporation whatsoever, exccpt as.may be necessary in the performance of their duties hereunder or as'may
be required by law or legal process.

7. The CEQ/GC shall not directly or indirectly through his own efforts, or otherwise, during the term of this
Agreement, and for a period of 24 months thereafier, employ, solicit to employ, or otherwise contract with,
or in any way retain the services of any employee or former employee of BEAUVOIR, if such individual
has provided professional or support services to at any time during this Agreement without the express
written consent of BEAUVOIR. The CEO/GC will not interfere with the relationship of BEAUVOIR and
any of its employees and the CEO/GC will not attempt to divert from BEAUVOIR any business in which
BEAUVOIR has been actively engaged during the contract period.

8. Terms of a new contract shall be completed not later than October 31%.
9. This contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and contains all the agreements between
them with respect to the subject matter hereof. It also supersedes any and all other agreements or contracts,

either oral or written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

10. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the terms and conditions of this contract may be amended at any
time by mutual agreement of the parties, provided that before any amendment shall be valid or effective it

(K a)—
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shall have been reduced to writing and signed by the Chairman of the Board and TOM PAYNE.

11. The wavalidity ur uuculorceability of any particuiar provision ot this contract shall not affect its other
provisions, and this contract shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision
had been omiited.

12. This agreement shall be binding upon BEAUVOIR, its successors and assigns, including, without
limitation, any corporation into which BEAUVOIR may be merged or by which it may be dcquired, and
shall inure to the benefit of TOM PAYNE, his administrators, executors, legatees, heirs and assigns.

13. This agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in accordance with the laws of the State of
Mississippi.

14: This:agreement is considered to be fair and reasonable to both parties and is contingent upon Board
approval.

“This.contract signed this &‘T day of PQM\ , 20 | ? and becommies efféctive January @ ,20 /7 in
- accordance with paragraph 8 of this instrument..

- THE MISSISSIPPI DIVISION OF THE UNITED SONS OF CONFEDERATE VETERANS, INC

3 Beauvoir Executive Direcior/General Counsel Contract
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ing for Reinstatement to the Practice of Law - Bar Seeks
Support or Opposition

art applied for reinstatement to the practice of law on Nove
ice with Rule 12 of the Mississippi Rules of D1sc1plme. in an

the Bar an opportunity to express their opinion to the Supre
awrding a petitioner seeking reinstatement and so that the Ba
sy those attorneys and judges that previously practiced with
as to that attorney’s practice habits, standing, character an
legal community, the Bar adopted a policy on March 3, 200¢
f the Bar to express their support or opposition to-any petit
he Office of General Counsel for the Bar will receive corres
asition of the instant petition until December 15, 2017. Al
ubmitted will be provided to the Supreme Court in the Bar’
’lease mail correspondence to the attention of the Office of
Vississippi Bar.

‘egory Stewart for Reinstatement in The Mississippi Bar
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Date: 3/5/2014
TNANE TIRAISE . JRAISE  |RAISE . |RAISE [RAISE [RAISE [RAIGE |
! e ____MAINTENANCE o
'?/, {Quentinerster— [méint. foremn | 5/24/2003]28,0007yr. 28,6641y, 20,438lyr.  130,212/yr.  |31,118/yr. . |33,000/yr.
| 472012004 - 8/1/2005 2/172007 1/172008] _ 5/31/2013
'rﬁ?ﬁ'il;onna Barnes’ maintendance ' 3/31‘/5009_ 8:00/hi:  {8.50/hr. ]
T 53112013
S6njaJones.. maintenance | 3/12/2013|8.00/0r,  |8.50/hr,
~ 5/31/2013
bﬁ{. as-Nyors—, maintenance | B/25/2011]8.60r.  |9:00MF. |
~ , . 513172073
ﬁ maintenance | 11/26/2012|B.60MF.  [9.00008
L i A ~ 5/3172013]
“u[c,g.GleirReyner-—: malntenancs | 6/6/2013]9.00/hr.
'7“" e N < .
| 7 {BertiaRichburg, N [maimtenance | 3/12/2013|8.00/r. . |8.50/hr.
i N— ] . T B/31/2013
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SD2-1.26 T 513172013
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n SDZ-1.25 7172008 5/31/2013] _ .
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FISUAL YEAR-MONTHLY P&L RECAP FY-2013
MONTH INCOME EXPENSES P&L MEMO
May $33,522 {558,514} ($16,392) |grand opening loss, 3 payroll mth
June $41,407, {365,035} | {524,618)
july $48,398 {$54,530) | (36,132)

August $22,500 {563,191) | (540,291} |Gs purchase X-Mas ornaments
September $24,561 {s83401) | i338.840) |

{October $38,301 {564,484) | (826,153) |6S purchase X-Mas T-Shirts
November $26,175 ($74,985) {548,790) _ |3 payroll month- gﬁ' irh&&é’
December $15,567 {$60,905) | (345,338) {auditbil, banus, high power bill e “\J@-

January $24,078 {540,854) | {516,776} |xtrahigh powerbill _ g 8O .

February $26,449 | (357,525) | (531386) 7.2= ok

March $63,433 | ($58,733) | $4,700 | - OUK e

April $34132 | (357,337) | 1373,505) A5 N I

TOTAL $404,923 (3719’,3,3&)." ($314,461) | 9?‘ M\
Avg: ger month $33,744 {55552 ) {$28,205) ; - W
FISCAL YEAR-MONTHLY P&l RECAP FY-2014 : 6

MIONTH INCOME | EXPENSES P&L_ MEMO e wa?;}!}
' B B 89 SV SR

May $17,353 (595,472) L?.:- 119 erandopening loss, 3 payfallmth | 68 W%é o5 §0d 2 7’7"

June $46,938 | {$69,553) | {822,615) | ‘ N {hﬁS Mo l%

Py $62,809 | (384.278) | (S1.469) ] g 0

{August $15,901 (;‘.‘7’3,579’)' 1 {$57,978) Asi“gérasasex-.masomameqs o gf”f A wAt %/

Iseptember | $28,289 {358,566) |(1540,377) ' . - Lot :

{October $39,748 (573,725) | (333,981 les purchase)( MasTShlrts i : N M‘”
N'ovgmber 430,065 {586,099} (;Sb 0:—’1) 3 payroll month 4 5 WR) A;u@ }C
DE,C'ember 532)878 i (574,59*3) Z¥ vAudn‘. bill, bonus, high puwerbxll &HO lﬁe’abo O?J& eﬂs‘ﬁ
lanuary’ $22,455 (583,700). 5 ) Ybx:tra bigh povrer bir V4~ LAISE b
February $21,233 | {358,825} (;;,,/ 400)

March $42,347 ($58,667) | (316,320} *®@ Mﬁ?bﬁeﬁ ), veses® Ff

April $73,530° | {$52,235) | $21,205 T ? . < ewWANT

TOTAL - 5433,546 (éam,saﬂ; {3407,123) | -

Javg permonth | $36,129 1$70.058) | (533.927)

FISCAL YEAR-MONTHLY P&L RECAP FY-2015

MONTH INCOME EXPENSES P&L MEMO
May $41,277 \.,9() 191) (;:5—1,9.!.4) Insuiance down payments
june $63,000 (361,302) 41,698
July $63,966 {$53,935) | $10,031
August’ $44,343 (854,871) | (510,528)

September $43,202 {$67,428) | {$24,228)

October $57,721 {374,940} | (517,218}

November $34,647 {354,380) $20,233)
December $47,877 {354,303) [58,331)
January $38,945 {581,732) {$23,787)
February $48,602 ($53,524) | {$4,972)
March $58,369 {559,253) $114
April 558,978 {360,637) | {51,659)
TOTAL $601,927 {$752.503) (s; 50 y75)
Avg. per month $50,161 {562,722} | (§13581 ;
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CONFIDENTIAL REPORT ON BEAUVOIR FINANCES
2014 Fiscal Year End-April 30, 2014

As of February 27, 2014, Beauvoir’s total cash and investment balance is $572,325.09. Of that
there is $64,810.03 in donor restricted money leaving a total useable balance of $507,515.06.
Most of this isiin our Schwab-W.D. McCain Endownient fund. (see breakdown, attached)

We should receive $37,600.00 from:FEMA in the next couple of months. After that, there is
possibly $230,000:that-'we could receive from FEMA by the end of this year.

| am estimating $90,000 in income from admissions and gift shop sales through the énd of our

fiscal year, April 30, 2014.

In estimating our expenses for the balance of this fiscal year, | will take our average of $76,000
per month x 2 months which equals $152,000 plus $34,000 left on a contract with Watér
Managemiént to-identify the leaks in the JDPL. Total estimated expenses équal.$186,000.

Summary:
Money-available $507,515 _ .
Earned income: 90,000  admissions & gift shop sales through April
FEMA income: 37,600
Total $635,115
Expenses $186,000 includes payroll, a/p and water management

cost through April.

We will be down to under $450,000 in our total reserves by the end of this fiscal year. At the

current time we are losing over $40,008per month on average. This will put us out of money &:#
within 10 months. Wen/f_&dto get thedDPL water tight, get our Jefferson Davis and
Confederate Soldiers Museums finished in order to attract more visitors and we need to
consideg@_iﬁng Qur admissions pri@as we are the cheapest place on the coast and we have
not raised our prices since before Katrina while the cost of doing business has increased

dramatically.

t should be available on my cell phone (228-861-9405) if you need any further explanation.
Sincerely, ' -

e T e,
e ~

( Rusty Trowbridge
~Business Manage:
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June 5, 2015

Greg,

Q0] }L
Since you and Leroy Waller arrived here in March of 20350 run Beauvoir since BHD’s"departure | hdve
not always understood or appreciated you.

At times | have even been angry but have ultimately come to tinderstand that-to save the place many of
the old habits the staff had grown into were goingto have to change.

| am shocked and embarrassed that the personal notes | kept for myself diririg one of my periods of
adjustments with you were used by Wallace Mason to try‘to attack you. for his. personal vendetta That

TR T e e £~ i menepra

was not the purpose of my personal notes and he did not have my. permxssxon 10 use them

i know that Wallace has been angry with you. ever since you dismissed Kali H:ghbaugh for mappropnate
dress While | do niot kriow what his interest was in her, the entire: staff at Beauvoir was .generally aware
that he supervised the pay raises given to her m the space “of one year that took her from 7. 50/hour to

13r567h0ur v .

e
xaar e

I knéw what you must have thought when you first read the: material that was never suppsed to go
anywhere, just me venting. Most managers would have srmply dxsmlssed me. Thank you for

considering first that Wallace Mason mampulated me for his own purposes. | really do love Beauvoir
and, as | have said before, consider you the best hope to save Her. ‘

ofor me,

Rgsie Boardman




Stewart o

From: rpotter@beauvoir.org

Sent: Monday, April 28, 2014 8:36 AM
To: gstewart@beauvoir.org
Subject: Kali dress issue

Greg,

| was asked by everyone on the staff this weekend why Kali was not dressing in period or a facsimile of

o b,

period as is everyone one else,. Not only the ladies but the men also asked me and | told them | had no answer for

T

thém But Twould let you know this was an issue to be addressed.

Fran asked Kali why she was not: dressed in penod and she told her.she.did not have to dress that way.

Temven e
TR e o 2w
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g e

Please do not shoot the messenger.. Just wanted to make you aware that everyone feels if the rest of us are
doing our best to be dressed as asked then she should also. We'thought when you said ALL you meant ALL.

| need something to tell everyone that will satisfy them-and me too.
Thanks!

Rose Mary



Stewart

LY S L

Greg

From: Sullivan, Charles [charles.sullivan@mgccc.edu]
Sent: Saturday, May 10, 2014 6:42 AM

To: gstewart@beauvoir.org

Cec: - Sullivan, Charles

Subject: Kali and Wallace

Greg,

I am sorry Kali had to go and I am sorry that Wallace is trying to change this. I told
Wal’lace 3 that T woﬁ have to go with you on any decision you make. The bottom line is--if
you go--Beauvoir goes. If you go, I probably will quit too. I think if I do, Pat will
probably go out too. You are the only hope that Beauvoir has. I am with you all the way.

e e

L

Charles



From: GLEN & FRANKIE STOGNER [stogners2@bellsouth.net]

Sent: Friday, July 18, 2014 11:26 AM
To: g stewart

‘We had a party of four from Tylertown, MS to visit Beauvoir recently. The house tour was very good but we
were very disappointed that we were not able to complete our tour of the grounds! We were the last tour and
were told ‘at the admissions gate that we had plenty of time. We were really looking forward to seeing

the grounds by wagon but the wagon driver did not return to get us, By the time we left everything was locked

ST L A .

up including the gift sfop! We felt we did not get our money's worth by not getting the complete tour.




June 26, 2014
Mr. Richard V. Forte, Sr., Chairman of the combined Boards of Beauvoir

Mir. Greg Stewart, Beauvoir Administrator |

Beauvoir, The Jefferson Davis Home & Presidential Library

2244 Beach Boulevard

Biloxi, MS 39531

Dear Mr Forte & Mr. Stewart;

| am writing this letter to you-as a result of my conversation with you two on Wednesday,
Junel8 2014 per your requests after telling both of you about what had taken place just prior
to our talking.

On Tuesday, June 17% Kathy & | had driven to Beauvoir to see about taking a tour of the
property. After talking with the woman at the counter and seeing as it was already mid-
afternoon we decided to come back the next day so we could take it all in including the tour of
Jefferson Davis’s home, wagon ride and Presidential Library. This we conveyed to the woman
and she said would look for us tomaorrow.

My wife, Katherine and | came over the next day (6-18-14) and took the 10:30AM Tour of
Beauvoir which we wish to add that the -gentle'ma;n that gave the tour gave an outstanding
presentation. We finished the tourat il:OSA;M. He also allowed us time to take photos which
| took quite a few. At the conclusion of the tour he told us that the wagon tour should arrive
to take us sometime within the next 30 minutes. He said she was a contract person and they
haven’t gotten their schedules totally synchronized as yet but it should be sometime within
the next 30 minutes. The temperature was in the low 90’s and the humidity was extremely
high. The tour guide told us we would have to wait in the back of the home as that was the
only place passengers are picked up. There are a couple of benches there but in that heat and
humidity it really does not help much if you have to stay there an extended length of time.

During the time we waited three (3) different workers stopped and spoke with us telling us
they did not know just where she was but that she should be here soon. One, | believe his
name was Jay even tried calling on his cell phone to find out where she was but to no avail.
After waiting approximately 50 or so minutes, Kathy went over to the gift shop to see if they
could tell her anything which they could not. They did see that Kathy was quite hot and
somewhat dehydrated and gave her a bottle of water for herself and also one to bring back to



me which were much appreciated. We thought of going into the main building but were afraid
we would miss the ride if we did so we tried to wait patiently, but have to admit that was not
easy under the circumstances.

'Fmally, after 1 hour and 20 minutes (12:20PM) Kali and her wagon showed up. | believe her
name’is Kali Hughbaugh | told her we had 5’;’;5 waxtu@nfgfgﬁ hour and a. quarter and asked
why she was so-long in getting there. Without even an apology she stated she had taken her
lunch break. (Later when speaking with you two | learned she was not supposed to take her
lunch break till after 12:30PM) | mentioned that it would have been nice if someone had let us
know so we would not have remained out in the heat all that time. Again, she said nothing. !
then-told her that Jay had mentioned that | should tell her we would like to see the sheep on
the ride so.she would go that way. |told her and her comment to us was “l do not go that
way” and that énded that.

When we started waiting for the wagon we were the only two and not till after the next house
tour finished did more people come so they did not have a very long wait. By the'time she
arrived there were enough people to fill the wagon. She asked if people wanted to go the
shady route or sunny route. | spoke up and said Kathy & I have been waiting for 1 hour and a
quarter and would appreciate the full tour. One gentleman said he liked the idea of the shady
way.

Kali turned the horses around and we headed out by the entrance and then over a. bridge and
through the trees. She pointed out, if | remember correctly, the Head Caretakers and Head of
Security homes plus the mobile home that was used for a gift shop after Katrina. She then
proceeded to the cemetery. She told us about the entrance gate and the unknown soldier.
One of the other gentleman on the ride commented to Kali that if that was the shady route he
would hate to see the sunny one. She never offered to let us off to look at the tombstones,
etc. She was there about 5 minutes and then started to leave. | asked her where she was
going now and she informed us that she was going back the same way we came. | asked why,
as we really had not seen anything worthwhile except for seeing a bunch of trees. | then asked
what was the other road we could see and could we go that way. She said that takes you back
by the gardens. She stated that if we wanted to go that way we could get off the wagon and
walk, which Kathy and | proceeded to do.

As you may imagine Kathy and | were very upset over this incident. To us Kali was not trying to
give anyway near her best and was just going through the motions. We both felt that she was



giving Beauvoir a black mark. She was not someone we would want representing our name or
organization.

When we arrived back at the main building and entered | saw the sign saying Administration
so l entered. No one was at the desk but just then a man came over and asked if i had been
helped and | responded no. He said he would help. 1told him | was looking for the
administrator and he informed me that was him.. Greg, you know the rest-and Kathy and |
want to thank you so much for taking your time, and for taking us to the vault and other areas
that people usually do not get to see. One of the original Confederate flags, Davis’s death
mask, getting to learn about the pistols and rifles and having another gentleman tell us about
how:the cannonballs, etc. work. Getting to see the original sign in'book forthe inmates and
everything else you took the time to share with us. Getting to put-on the confederate uniform
and holding the rifle so Kathy could take my picture. It will bea day we will remember with
much gratitude for a long time. Also, thank you for introducing me:t6 the Chairman of the
combined board of Beauvoir.

We also want to thank all the others that took part.in making our day including Pat Alford, the
Curator and Rosemary Potter, the gift shop manager and the grounds people that did what
they could including your offer to refund our:admission and sharing:a drink for each of us as
we left.

If I may, from our experiences of the day, would like to share a few thoughts.

With the hot weather in season possibly have people go and wait in the main building for the
wagon, if in fact that continues to be part of the experience. A ticket could be given to each
visitor at the end of their house tour, by the tour guide, to help control overcrowding or
people cutting others off or people just arriving at Beauvoir from jumping the line.

Add some chairs on the back porch of the home, as you have on the front porch for people to
wait for the wagon. Also, add two fans similar to those in the home at each end of the porch
facing toward each other to assist for those waiting in the chairs. Also have a cooler or bottles
of water to be given to those waiting when it is real hot and humid.

if Kali is kept.on.she.needs to go through some public relations seminar.on how to interact
with her customers (Beauvmr’ s visitors) as from what we saw she is far from belng a credlt to

Beauvonr at the moment.



It would be nice to have known when at the cemetery that Jefferson Davis’s dad was one of
the ones buried there. If possible would be nice if at the cemetery the people can get off the
wagon to look around the cemetery and take photos of graves, such as Jefferson Davis’s dad.

Maybe the route should be fixed by your personnel and not Kali’s and maybe it should be
somewhat flexible to add more feeling of seeing the grounds and not just the back woods such
as'when | asked if we could see the:sheep. You felt it was a good idea to have the sheep so it
should be a good idea to help visitors get'to seé them. By the way I also asked about the
peacocks and she said they were at the hitching post but never said where that was and we
did not see them either.

Also, it would be nice if Kali, or whoever you have drive a wagon, dress in the period of the
day.

Hope you didn’t mind my thoughts. Hopefully this will help make a very nice place to visit
even a nicer one.

Again, thank you all for making what could have left:a very miserable experience turn out to
be such a nice one.

Kathy & | both send our thank you. Greg, you are a real credit to Beauvoir and our Country.

Sincerely,

Robert L. (Boh) Rodd

Robert L. Rodd

12527 25" Court East, Parrish, FL 34219
941-776-0937

roddbobkat@aol.com



EXHIBIT “6"



My name is Evelyn Provost and | worked at Beauvoir from before the time that Greg Stewart

arrived until approximately one year after he left and 1 can speak to the following matters as |
understand they are an issue:

HACKING

On more than one occasion my Facebook and computer was intentionally hacked by one or more

-of the staff loyal to Tom Payne. | cannot say that Payne did it himself but I know for a fact that

my personal information was intentionally accessed and distributed in an effort to humiliate and
harass me.

Tom’s hatred for Greg Stewart was not immediaté. In fact, his first targets included staff
members, eventually me, but also included at least two of the members of the Board of Trustees
who he denied access to the property and had them escorted off the property by Biloxi PD.

He drove off the Business Manager, Donna Cobb, in tears one day and accosted her in the parking
lot, again driving her off in tears, when she had been specifically invited by the Board of Directors

t0 come to their meeting. Consequently; they never got to hear from herand she refused to ever

step foot on the property.

The laptop Stewart used while at Beauvoir was in plain view, all of the time, on his desk. He
would riotsit in the Executive Director’s office because it didn’t give a view of Varina’a Garden
and Beauvoir House, and the staff. He did not use a password and would have to lend out his
laptop from time to time to visiting authors or presentéers. When he left; he left the laptop was

still there, on the desk where he sat. When | left, it was still there.

Bricks for Beauvoir Mismanagement by Payne

Payne’s ire turned on Greg Stewart sometime after June 2017 when the institution began to show
the signs of his maniacal mismanagement. Upon arriving in March of 2014, Greg had inherited a
Bricks for Beauvoir project and spent much of his time and energy ordering and indexing, and
placing the Bricks for Beauvoir project, which at different times in my stay there, I helped organize
and manage as well. He personally retrieved the bricks from Jackson and personally delivered
them to and from Arcola, a small town in the Delta, about 4 hours north of the coast.

| remember that after Greg had left at the end of 2016, he had offered to finish the project by
processing the orders (sending the engraver the orders, indexing the newly placed bricks, and
driving to Arcola free of charge for gas or mileage). This rocked along well until he sent an email
to staff member Kitsaa Stevens with a simple request that the Beauvoir staff join in on their social
media (Facebook) to help pitch “The Last 100", a sort of big ending to the Walkway that would
coincide with a large number of regular brick buyers {SCVers) on the campus anyway for the
Annual Fall Muster.



Tom Payne’s management style was, by then, well established and he had begun to be paranoid
that he would be fired and that Greg, being the last executive Director, would be an easy stand-
in. He was threatened by Stewart’s \)ery existence and tried to blame him for his sagging
attendance numbers and soaring expenses. In response to Stewart Last 100 email, Kitsaa was
instructed by Tom to inform Greg that he would not be getting approval for the promotional
effort and to not tell the SCY members that the project would be finished, even though it would
have finally completed the project quickly.

It got so bad that Payne decided. that he would do the Bricks for Beauvoir project himself (in
house) and countless dollars were spent buying the wrong equipment, putting beach sand
(wrong sand), and getting the wrong size bricks {when the bricks he needed to finish were already
in Arcola with the professional brick engraver). Eventually, the méss was so bad that Greg was
asked by the Board to just finish up the project. That was a major embarrassment for Tom and
his other problems with the Board mémbers and staff were only getting worse.

Dennie Spence

| was employed before and after Dennie Spence and Kali (Beavers) Highbaugh came and left
Beauvoir and remember the:reasons why.

Dennie would not stay in his asjsigned«area and insisted in “walking the property” with Kitsaa just
about anytime the two wantéd to go-walking. This left the Library area and artifacts upstairs in
the Museum unattended. Greg Stewart eventually sent out a memo that was to everyone,
covering more than one item, biit the one about staying in the assigned area and not eating or
drinking in the Library or Museum was specifically aimed at Dennie, who apparently thought that
when he was in his assigned area, that he could just eat and drink. He was famous for having a
cup of coffee wherever you saw him.

When it became apparent that the assigned area and no eating or drinking in the Library or
Museum policy would be enforced Denhie resigned. Greg did not fire him or ask to leave but he
might have over the loss of different artifacts during Dennie’s tenure, including a rare
confederate belt buckle found on the grounds by metal detectors, his abuse of the camel, and
harassment of the Boy Scouts trying to complete some sort of Eagle Project on the Bayou, clearly
not in his assigned area, inside, upstairs in the Library and Museum.

Kali Highbaugh

Kali Highbaugh arrived at Beauvoir and was given a raise at the very next Board meeting, then
the next, then the next, then the next and then the next. The rest of us were not getting raises
during the same time. Wallace Mason, who was the Personnel Chairman of the Board at the time
preferred her company and spent his time, while at Beauvoir, parked at her desk. She was about
25 and | would guess his age at around 65.



After Donna Cobb gave her 2 weeks’ notice, Dr. Payne stated it was effective immediately. After her
departure from Beauvoir, | was informed by Dr. Payne | would be taking over duties of Human
Resources along with all the other duties | was already assigned. | tried explaining to him | do know
have the experience of HR other than what Donna Cobb had previously shown me. When | inquired
about a raise, he said no raise, but it will look good on my resume. | accepted that at thetime only
because | know of the financial situation. This fist inquiry was back in November 2017.

Since then, | was assigned even-more responsibilities. In addition to the above duties,.| was also now

responsible for the following:

>
>
>

Keeping up with time sheets for accuracy
Keeping up with all sick, vacation, and Flex time (_fo‘r,séiar;ie'd.'émployees}
Took over the Friends of Beauvoir; Bricks for Beauvoir,and all other
donations that came in
Working with the accountant, Dylan Mears
Graphing and showing percentages for all reviews from Trip Advisor,
Google Reviews, Yelp Reviews, Facebook Reviews, and:any othér review
pages ‘
Ordering office supplies
Assisting other departments as needed with purchasingitems online
(primarily for maintenance)
Comparing invoices to charges
Processing checks that came in through-the mail

o 1would make copies of the checks.along with all attachments.

o Give Rasie the checks for deposits'and forward all documents to

the appropriate destinations
o 1 would keep a copy of all transactions

In addition to the above duties, my tasks were to include whatever else Dr. Payne wanted me to-do as
his:assistant. Tasks would vary from sending emails, replying to emails, eFaxing documents, etc...

On January 12, 2018, Dr. Payne came into work approximately 8am and stood by my desk and made-the
comment he was “thinking” about making me and Andrea Little both salaried employees. He never said
anything more about it. Around 3pm that afternoon, Andrea Little, Jay Peterson, Kitsaa Stevens,.and Dr.
Payne were all at my desk talking about Monday being a holiday, if they were off or not since they were
salaried. 1got out the Employee Handbook (revised in April 2017) and informed them, no, it’s not a
Beauvoir holiday and they needed to come into work. It was at that time | found out Andrea Little was
placed on salary. After everyone was cleared from my desk area and Dr. Payne was alone and available
to discuss Andrea’s salary. | went into his office (as HR) and made inquiries. | asked when does this take
effect and what is her salary. He said it was to be effective January 1, 2018. | had to ask him again
about her salary. His response initially was, “It is none of my business and why do | need to know?” |
calmly replied, | am HR and | need to know so | can update her employee file. He was not too thrilled
about giving me that information, but he gave it to me. Andrea Little went from an hourly rate of
$9.38/hour to an annual salary of $25,000/year.

After that conversation about Andrea Little, he mentioned the security guards we also going up to
$10/hour as well effective January 1, 2018. This was to include both Aaron Williams and Brad Carter.



Tanner Goff was brought in under as a contractor in Aaron Williams place until he was able to return to
work and stable enough to complete his duties. To the best of my knowledge, Tanner Goff is still
employed and Aaron Williams is still there as well. All 3 securities guards were brought in by Dr. Payne
as he knows them from the same church they all attended.

On January 26, 2018, Dr. Payne called me into his office and stated he was hearing rumors about my
looking for another job and | would be leaving. | had been looking, but not very hard-basically just
seeing what else was out there and what the pay is for someone in my position. That is when |
discovered the average pay for someone in-my position is averaging from $15.75/hour to $19/hour. |
told him I.was not looking but | had been seriously thinking about getting life-insurance license back
again because | can work that in the evenings and on weekends a’n’d; I'should not affect my job here. |
also informed hirm that if it went good, then that would become full time and | will give Beauvoir up.
That is when | asked about a raise for the thifd time. He told'me thathe did not have the authority to
give me a raise and the Board would have to approve. Also mentioned | got my-raise back when the
alighment was done last year. Stated everyone:gota raise according to their position and léngth of time
of employment and nobody else would be'getting a raise anytime $6ari. |justlooked at him and said,
OK.

While I went back to my desk, | was furious at his comment-and did some serious thinking about what
hesaid. My conclusion was:
o He did not have the authority to give me a raise, yet-he gave Andrea Little a
great increase in pay
o Gave the security.guards a raise
o Now with the security guards-SUPPOSEDLY. they were to have been
hired in at $16/hour but Danina.Cobb made:sure that did not happen
(putting the blame on her). 'S_b""why did it take until now to make that
happen? ‘As the Exécutive Director; he should have taken care of that
once he was told by the guards they-were not getting what was told
from the beginning
o If the hourly pay was adjusted according to our current position at the time,
then my position, duties, and respansibilities have changed very dramatically
and | should have received an increase as well

I was still willing to let it go up until Andrea Little came up to my desk while Dr. Payne was standing
there talking with me about the incoming mail and Andrea Little just reached over my desk took an
application for her Jazz Event. | looked at Andrea little with the “What are you doing taking things off
my desk” and | looked at Dr. Payne with the same look. I thought he would have said something to her
about removing the mail from my desk, but he did not. | felt so small and belittled. | looked at it as-Dr.
Payne gives me tasks to do and they have procedures. When incoming checks come in, | am to make
copies of all attached documents along with the check, then give the originals to who they are assigned
to. When Dr. Payne did not say word to her, that is when | said to myself, enough was enough. If he will
not let me do my job as described by him, then I do not need to work under him any longer.

| finished out my day, completed everything as if | was coming back the next business day. 1did not
leave early, | did not leave work incomplete, finished everything | started that day as normal.

Other incidents on property:




v" Bobby Sue Sargent was hired in as a contractor after her volunteer work was
completed. Reasoning for her being placed on contract (per Donna Cobb) there
was a special/separate account for contractors to be paid and the current
employee account where the employees pay came from was already depleted
and.employees were being paid from the Reserve Account. After the first of the
yea'r,(2018) when the budget started again, Bobby Sue Sargent was to be hired
on the Beauvoir payroli as an official member of the staff. This was done on

. January 5, 2018 and: effective January 2, 2018 at the pay rate of $10/hour.

v In'Decerbér 2017, | received 2 applications from 2 African Americans. ttold
‘them were not currently hiring until after the first of the year but | will take their
applications-and keep.them on file

6 I'was instructed by Dr. Payne to make the applications disappear as if
they. never camé in-so | shredded them

v" Ihave:gone out-of my way to try and get inactive members to becoming active
-agaif, sending invitations to join Friends of Beauvoir to current and previous
donors tothelp generate money back to Beauvoir.

My hours there was:from 8:30a- -5p. Every morning | was usually there between 7a-7:30am usually doing
work off the clock. Whe# Dr. Payhe would.come in around 8am he would ask me to start doing things
since | was'there. 1 usually had no‘problem:with that ifice | was already there but on occasion, he
would seém to-be irritated with-me:because | was not jumping right on it at that time. | respectfully
reminded him-| was noton the clock yet-and I will get'to it once I clock in.

Rumors. Beauvoir has becomeé:a place of a lot of gossip-and rumors. | know since | have left, it has
gotten back to me that | have cussed 6ut Andred Little:and Dr. Payne and that is why | was fired by Dr.
Payne. | have been.informed that I-had:indecent photos of myself on the computer. That is:not
accurate. I'have never:and never will éVér place indecent photos of myself and any employment
computer. ‘After|gotto thmkmg about somethmg, } reahzed the only way they could have been found:is
when someone Iogged into my Faceboo m. Sinéé my
Féc/eb_ga_laccount is-associated with: my phone rumber and my phone every picture | have taken on.my
phone can be seen via Facebook.. Although photos were not shared on my Facebook account, they are
still accessible. Since I'found that out; | have since changed my password to my Facebook account and
also disconnected to all'ether devices.

With everything that happened-over the course of the past 2 months, | kept everything very professional
and never once let him see-how much things bothered, irritated, and just down right made me angry at
his choices.

There are more things to discuss, but failing to come to mind at this time. | will write things down as
they come to me and try to have them typed out by the Board Meeting on February 10, 2018.

Evelyn “Ellie” Provost
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Maybe Evelyn

Tuesday 4:20 PM

' "Hey Greg when you get thls
ally: | need you to call me
yack ASAP.: There is some
e )p-that 'S gomg on and I'm
-about ready to get pissed
Tand start going

postal on some people. |
told- Polly what was going on
~and it is still happening and
itis’in regards to my
Facebook account. Proline -
suggested that | cal

1 you and get some advice
- from you as to what to do
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Maybe: Evelyn

Friday 10:52 AM

Ok, Greg.... thisiis
happening again.... did y
find the number to:Chris so |
can tall to him...2??

This is now the-3rd time

B3 Facebook

Hi Evelyn,

5 Your Facebook password was reset.
using the'email address
provoste@aol.coin on Friday,
February 9, 2018-at 10:37am (CST).

Operating Windows
system:

Browser: Firefox

IP address: 69.92.114.38
Estimated Biloxi,

location: MISSISSIPPI], US

If you did this, you can-safely
disregard this emai.

If you didn't do this, please secure

your account.
Thanks,
_ The Facehook Seruritv Team
@ tome

4:05 PM View details
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* Thanks, )
o The Facehaok Security Team
2 tome

4:05 PM View details

Ea Facebook:

Hi Evelyn,

&% Your Facebook password was reset
using the email address
provoste@acl.com-on:Tuesday,
February 6, 2018.at 4:05pm (CST).

Operating

system: Windows
Browser: Firefox
IP.address: 69.92.114.38
Estimated Biloxi,

location: MISSISSIPPL, US

If you did this, you can safely
disregard this email.

-t memar s

tome

Hide details

From: Facebook security@facebookmail.com
Reply-ta:  noreply noreply@facebockmail.com
To. Evelyn Provost eveypro@gmail.com
Date: feb 6,2018, 4:05 PM

View security details

%ﬂ Facebook




Maybe: Evelyn

1 17%8 3

HI'EVEIyN;

5
i
4

Your Facebook password was reset
using the email address
provoste@aol.com on Tuesday,
February 6,2018 at 4:05pm (CST).

Operating

system: Windows
Browser: Firefox
IP-address: 69.92.114.38
Estimated Biloxi,

focation: MISSISSIPPI, US

If you did this, you can safely
disregard this email.

to me

Hide details

Fram: Facebook security@facebookmail.com
Replyto: noreply noreply@facebookmail.com
To! Evelyn Provost eveypro@gmail.com
Date: Feb 6, 2018, 4:05 PM

View security details

ﬁ Facebook

Hi Evelyn,

We received a request to reset your
Facebook password.

Click here to change your password.

Alternatively, you can enter the




EXHIBIT «7"



Darel Balius

Dennie Spence
1 knew Dennie Spence when | worked at Beauvoir.

He had a very strange:hatredlf()rth’é animals at Beauvoir, but particularly the camel that | witnessed him strike
across the face-with no warning orprovocation one day. His explanation, as he hit the animal between the eyes
with a large stick was “this camel needs discipline”. The rest of us were horrified.

On ohe occasion | left work early because Dennie threw a shovel at me. | do not remember why he was even
out where we were since his job was:inside:the Presidential Library, upstairs, in the air-conditioning.

Part of his anger at me that day may havestemmed from the fact that he had practically given me a car; sold
for much, much less than its actual value. I think that he thought we could be closer friends and even
roommates. | was uncomfortable:with that thought after some time with him alone.

I never reported it to Stewart b'u,t'my-ﬁnjal' straw-with Dennie and his time with me came after a trip off campus
to get some Beauvoir supplies in the Beauvoirtruck; just he and I. He hemmed and -hawed around and'told me
about an injury to his penis that left-a;scar'then asked me if it would be weird if he showed it to me there while
we were alone in the titick: 1'declined the offer and told him that I did think that was weird.

| remember when Dennié quit, without notice. He-was angry about being confined to his assigned area-and that
his coffee cup and snacks would no I_fonge;r' be allowed in the Library or Museum part of the Jéfferson Davis
Presidential Library. That had aiwaY‘Sebfe'E'ri the policy but he didn’t think it should apply to him. He was 5o angry-
about it he resigned.

Varina’s Garden

| was on the Maintenance and Grounds crew and remember firsthand the effort it took for Greg Stewart, the
Executive Director, to ke‘e‘_p‘ the staff focused on it. Greg would work himself in the garden. In fact, | had been
at Beauvoir several weeks before someone explained to me that Stewart was the Executive Director. He would
routinely pitch in and help in outside projects'and did not strut around in a sit or hide in an office behind closed
doors.

The Garden was obviously very large, and very expensive, and needed constant attention. Since it was an
attraction and was taxpayer funded Greg had to constantly remind the staff that it could not get shabby.

Bricks for Beauvoir

| was aware of the Bricks for Beauvoir project and worked on placing the bricks myself pursuant to the index
Stewart had prepared so that people could find “their” brick in the Walkway. Greg would drive in his own truck
from time to time to retrieve the engraved bricks from somewhere up in the Delta.

After Stewart in December 2016 left Tom Payne slowly began to hate Greg Stewart. | had a front row seat to
that process. But, it didn’t start with Greg. By the time the Bricks for Beauvoir fiasco had begun Payne had
already banned two of the regular Board members from the property. Since Stewart only came out to the



property to deliver Bricks and place them Payne never got a chance to confront him and “trespass” him as he
was doing the Board members. 1 have no doubt he wanted to.

Don Green

Don Green was Leroy Waller’s son-in-law. When Leroy and Greg first got to Beauvoir Don had no job and was
living with Leroy’s daughter. There was a cottage in the back of the property and Greg agreed to hire Don, who
had some grounds work experience and allow him-to move into the:property so long as he married the woman.
He:would not allow open cohabitation. Don agreed and almost immediately decided that he only worked 9-5
Monday-Friday, which is not the rule when you “live onthe place”. Léroyagreed with Greg that Don was shirking
his on-call status and the father-in-law and son-in-law had many, many other issues that might have been
stemming from Don’s méf’riag_e-to Leroy’s daughter.

Don gvéntually quit on his own one day and left the property with Jenny, Leroy’s daughter. Greg did not fire
him.. To my knowledge he has been job hopping since.

Last I heard.Donand Jenny divorced and he is unemployed again.

My cell number is 228 297-8040 if anyone needs to call me to discuss any of this.

Darel Balius



Greg Stewart

From: David Flautt [dflautt@belisouth.net}

Sent: Tuesday, September 22, 2015 1:49 PM

To: gstewart@beauvoir.org

Cc: 'David Flautt’

Subject: David Flautt, Jr - Original Copy Order Number 9

Attachments: 9.21.2015 Scan 20000711 Beauvoir-David Jr. Lease Cover Letter.pdf; 9.22.2015 Scan

20000711 Beauvoir-David Jr. Surrender Order Number 9 Lease.pdf

Greg,
As follow up to my e-mail of yesterday afternocon, attached please find scanned copies of the following:

1. David’s correspondence dated July 11, 2000, from Patrick Hotard, then Curator of Collections at Beauvoir
2. David’s copy of the Incoming Loan Agreement for Original ‘Copy-of General Order Number 9, dated July 11, 2000,
for a lease term from July 23, 2000 to'July-22, 2001.

David’s recollection is that the Order was already on'loan to Beauvoir when Wilson Duvall gave it to him. 1 know that
David visited Wilson in Pascagoula dunng late June-early July, 1998, and David returned the following summer, likely late
July; which coincides with the lease dates.. They went:to Beauvoir where Wilson signed over the Order to David, and
David, in turn, loaned it to Beauvoir for. display. David said there were other documents included with the Order that
substantiated its authenticity. The scanned corréspornidernce and Loan:Agreement with Beauvoir were mailed to our home
in 2000. 'We may have copies of other pre-Katrina Loan . Agreemeritsfor other years.

| wanted to copy-Martha Duvall with this.correspondence, but I cannot find a current e-mail address for her. If you have
‘one, you may forward this e-mail to:hier along with these attachrnents; Itis our desire that Martha will voluntarily and
‘promptly returh David’s General Order Ntimber'9 to Beauvoir: In fact, all ofus. would appreclate her contacting me
directly and advising in writing that'she is'going to do'that. Davidis very pleased that-his Order was not destroyed by
Hufricane Katrina as Beauvoir officials:had told him after the storm, and he would like to enter into a new Loan Agreement
with Beauvoir.

Let us know if you need anything else. We look forward to.resolving this misunderstanding as soon as possible.

Regards,

David E. Flautt

299 South 9™ Street, Ste. 201
P. O. Box 1401

Oxford, MS 38655
662-281-0678 (Work)
662-205-5175 (Fax)
662-816-8279 (Mobile)

‘CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and may contain information which is privileged,
confidential, and/or protected by the attorney-client privilege or attorney work-product doctrine. It is not intended for transmission to or receipt by any
unauthorized person. {f you are not the intended recipient or have received this transmission in error, please delete all copies of this message and all
attachments from your system without copying it, and notify the sender by reply e-mail. Any unauthorized disclosure, reproduction, distribution or use of
the contents of this message and/for any attachment thereto is prohibited.



PEAVOIR

f\,/ Tie Jefferson Davis Hume
& Presidentiol Librayy

INCOMING LOAN AGREEMENT

LENDER:  Mr. David Flautt, Jr.
ADDRESS: 210 Colonial Road, Oxford, MS 38655

PHONE NO: (662) 234-8279
| hereby deposit on-loan the following described items:

One (1) original copy-of General Order Number 9, detailing the Surrender of the
Army of Nerthern Virginia

The above items will be on loan to Beauvoir, The Jefferson Davis Home and
Presidential "rary from _23 July 2000  to __22 July 2001 - ., 1 have read and

understand t evst.te'r‘ n tHe i‘}everse of this 2greement.
LENDER'S | <} . j N a Aon ,
SIGNATURE: </

RECEIVED: P
TITLE: Curator of Collectlcns

Patrick Hotard

DATE: 11 July 2000

i 30337 o (i}l 388-9074
i £ gidieed Seans of Confedderate Seterans. Jiic,




Itis undérst’ood that the conditions of this loa"p are as follows:

Beauvoir, The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library will
give to these articles the same care and sttention With ‘which the permanent
collections are treated. All artifacts are maintained in a stable, secure,
insured environmerit and are treated with the care and concem deserved by
such historically significant objects.

The term of any loan will not exceed one year. Loans: ‘may be
renewed at or before the expiration of their term by the' ‘mutual agreement
of both parties.

All artifacts shall remain the property of the lender and shall be
subject to withdrawal by same, provided noticé ofinténtion to withdraw
shall have been given.in writing thirty days in advance of desired date of
withdrawal.

Beauvoir will normally hold loans for the full length.of the termof
the loan. If, however, circumstances require the early’ términation of the
agreement, Beauvoir will notify the owner, who will then be responsible
for arranging the disposition of said loaned artifacts Wlthln thity days.
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< the Jefferson Deris Holie
Ry esideitlien] Libror P

11 July 2000

Mr. David Flautt, Jr.
210 Colenial Road
Oxford, MS 38655

Dear Mr. Flautt:

On behalf of Beauvoir, The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library, | wish to thank you for
the loan of an original copy of General .rder Number, 9. ThlS is.a most welcome addition to the
~-museum's collection. . Coa -

In order to document properly' this. loan; | hHavée.enclosed two copies of our Incoming Loan form.
Please sign both copies, reading the. condmons listed on.the/back: ‘Please keep one copy for your
records and retum the other to Beauvoir in the-postpaid-envelope provided.

that Beauvoir is able to contlnue 1o. grow

%/ R

Patnck Hotard
Curator

Sincerely,




Greg Stewart

From: David Flautt [dfiautt@bellsouth.net]

Sent: Monday, September 21, 2015 5:30 PM

To: gstewart@beauvoir.org

Cc: 'David Flautt’

Subject: David Flautt, Jr. - Original Copy of General Order Number 9, Loaned to Beauvoir on or about
July 11, 2000

Greg,

I tried calling you a little while:ago concerning my son'’s original copy of General Order Number 9,.which Beauvoir
mistakenly gave to Martha Duvall last week. Martha's father; Wilson Duvall, late of Pascagoula, gave the Order to David,
Ji. sometime prior to July 11 0.. Wilson was the brother of David’s grandfather, Howard Duvall, Jr., late of Oxford,
Mississippi: It is'my understan ng that before: gwmg it to.David, Wilson had loaned his copy of Order Number 9to.
Beauvoir since about 1991, David, Jr: wanted it to-remain-on display with Beauvoir, and he entered into an Incoming
Loan Agreement with Beauvoir, on-or-about July 11, 2000. This lease agreement was executed by Patrick Hotard, who -
appears to have: been Beauv r's Curator of Collections at that time. Around this time, and perhaps later, there were
family-conversations concemlng the:Order, Wilson’s gift to David, and the continued lease to Beauvoir, Ourrecollection is
that Martha Duvall:and. my wife’s-sister, Ruth.Ellen Duvall' Kuhnel, were present during some or all of these conversations.

David Jr: contacted Beauvoir after Hurricane Katrina hit in 2005, and he was informed that his copy of the Order had been
lost or destroyed by the storm:. Itcame:as‘a. complete surprise to. him last week to learn his: Order was still in existence. |
have David’s copy.of the aforémentioned incoming Loan Agreement, as well as July 11, 2000 transmittal letter from
Patrick Hotard, memorializing Beauvoir's acknowledgment of Order Number 9, and instructions for the execution and”

-return of the. Lease Agreement. I'm'sure youwill agree that Beauvoir does not enter into Lease Agreements-with persons
who do not own' the'loaned documents it possesses-and safeguards

All of my contact information is listed below: Please give mea call or drop me an e-mail at your earliest.convenience so
that we canall rechfy the mistake Beauvour and Martha Duvall have made as quickly and amicably as: possibie.

Best regards,

David E: Flautt

299 South 9" Street, Ste. 201
P. O. Box 1401

Oxford, MS 38655
662-281-0678 (Work)
662-205-5175 (Fax)
662-816-8279 (Mobile)

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and may contain information which is privileged,
confidential, and/or protected by the attormey-client privilege or attomey work-product doctrine. It is not intended for transmission-to or receipt by any
unauthorized person. Ifyou are rot the intended recipient or have received this transmission in error, please delete all copies of this message and all
attachments from your system without copying i, and notify the sender by reply e-mail. Any unauthorized disclosure, reproduction, distribution or use of
the contents of this message and/or any attachment thereto is prohibited.



Greg Stewart

From: Leroy Waller [leroywaller@yahoo.com)
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2015 4:45 PM

To: Greg Stewart; Greg Stewart

Subject: Your Boy Dennie

1. I'brought up the hitting of the Camel in the meeting this moming and he told me that if the Camel tried to bite him he would
hit him.with whatever he could, My reply was I will make sure you are terminated.

2. The Loading Dock looks like a Junk Pile, Suppose to represent Katrina.
3. Denie ran off Copies answering your email with smart ass answers, I have.a copy for you.

4. The Peacock pin would make the perfect Chicken Pin with no Lumber needed.
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12!27/202(_) Cable One Webmail

Cable One Webmail gregstewart@cableone.net

Re: Brief History of Varina's Garden at Beauvoir

. N

From : Ken Ppool <kppool@mdah.ms.gov> Tue, Sep 24, 2019 05:44 PM
Subject : Re: Brief History of Varina's Garden at Beauvoir
To : Greg Stewart <gregstewart@cableone.net>
Cc : Jim Woodrick <jwood@mdah.ms.gov>

Greg,

Thanks for your follow up ‘on the project to restore Varina Davis? Garden at
Beauvoir. My apologies for the delay in answering, but I am presently in
Tennessée dealing with settling my mom’s estate.

Since I am out of state and not able to access the grant records for the
garden restoration project, I cannot verify specific figures for the total
project. However, considering that approximately two years of éxhalistive
research was undertaken prior to the preparation of detailed plans and
specifications for the project in 2012 and of the actual construction of
the garden in 2013, the figure you cited is likely accurate. Part of the
cost of the project was due to the need to accurately replicate specific

—  aspects of the historic garden (i.e., such as the custom fence palings
that were originally designed by Jefferson Davis, exotic heirloom plants
used by Varina, historically accurate Victorian trellises, etc,) as well as
installation of an extensive irrigation system to facilitate future
‘maintenance of the garden.

Because the grant funds used to restore the garden and numerous other
aspects of the National Historic Landmark Beauvoir property were federal
funds from the National Park Service and through MDAH to Beauvoir, a
Historic Preservation Easement in perpetuity was required to be executed in
order to protect the public’s investment in Beauvoir. The Historic
Preservation Easement was executed by Beauvoir’s governing Board and
required that those items restored with public funds would be maintained in
good condition; that all work undertaken would be done in accordance with
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Historic Preservation
Projects; and that any proposed alterations must be approved in advance by
MDAH .

In addition to the Historic Preservation Easement, Beauvoir is also a
designated Mississippi Landmark under provisions of the State Antiquities
Act. That designation was made by MDAH’s Board of Trustees in the 197@s at
the request of the combined governing Boards of Beauvoir. The Antiquities
Act also requires that all proposed work on a Mississippi Landmark property
(both buildings and landscapes) be approved in advance by MDAH by issuance
of a Mississippi Landmark Permit. Penalties for violations can be up to

https://mail.sparklight.com/h/printmessage?id=65578&tz=America/Chicago 12



12/27/2020 . Cable One Webmail
o $5,000 fine and up to 3@ days in jail for every day of violation.

Obviously, considering the requirements of the signed Historic Preservation
Easement and the Mississippi Antiquities Act, failure to maintain the

..  Barden in good condition and/or alterations to the garden without prior
authorization by MDAH (such as removal of the publicly funded irrigation
system) would be violations of said legal instruments. Violators could be
subject to prosecution.

In MDAH’s digital files for the Hurricane Recovery Grant Program for
Historic Preservation are numerous photographs of Varina’s Garden
restoration, as well as all of the other grant-assistéd restoration
projects at Beauvoir. Since I am out of state and cannot access MDAH’s
digital files, I have copied Jim Woodrick: on this email in hopes that he
can track down the images you seek.

Again, I appreciate your continued interest in the restoration of Varina
Davis”s Garden and hope this info will be helpful to you.

Best, Ken

Kenneth H. P?Pool

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer (retired)
Mississippi Dept. of Archives and History

P. 0. Box 571

Jackson, MS 39205

From. Greg Stewart <gregstewart@cableone.net>
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 12:34:09 PM

To: Ken Ppool <kppool@mdah.ms.gov>

Subject: Brief History of Varina's Garden at Beauvoir

Ken,
Can you confirm that Varina's Garden was the resuilt of an MDA&H grant of about

$480,000.00 sometime in 2013 (?) and that the Board of Beauvoir signed a raintenance
agreement that put a violation of the same under the Antiquities Act?

In other words, would allowing the Garden to degrade have brought about the possibility of
the sanctions available under the Act including civil penalties and jail time?

Also, if you have them or can point me in the right direction, | would love to see the pictures of
the Garden once it was completed in 2013. | seem to recall a time lapse photography project
but cannot remember where | found it.

Thanks,

hitps://mail_sparklight.com/h/printmessage?id=65578&tz=America/Chicago 212
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STATE OF MISSISSIRP|

JIM HOQD.
ATTORNEY GENERAL
OPINIONS
DIVISION
April 7, 2014

Mr. Richard V. Forte, Chairman’

Combined Boards-of Beauvoir

Mississippi Division of the Sons of Gonfederate Veterans
2244 Beach Boulevard

Biloxi, MS 38530

Re: Mississippi Antiquities Law Violation
Dear Mr. Forte:

It has come o our attention that work:was recently undertaken on the Beauvoir
mansion in violation of the Antiquities Law. Dunng 3 recent siie mspecnon by MDAH
staff, it was noted that Beauvoir has tundertaken major work on the front porches
without a Mississippi Landmark Permit: This work invelved overlaying the existing
porch floor with another porch decking’. You are hereby notified to cease and desist
any further work or repairs unless and uhiil you have been issued & Permit for same.

As you know, the entire Beauvoir estate was designated as a landmark by the Board of

‘MDAH staff informs us that although "the existing porch flooring was votting in sections,
overlaying it with a new floor was not the appropridte means of addrc.ssxnu the problem. Rather than
solve the prob}em. the new flooring has created new problems for the preservation of Beauvoir. Among
these are:

-Trapping moisture in the existing flooring, promoting further deterioration of that flooring:
-Raising the level of the porch fleor up to ‘touch the bottom rail of the porch balustrade,
preventing rain water from properiy draining off the porch and causing rotting to spread to the
balustrade and the column bases; )
-Creating a "well” in front of the main entrance and the loor-length windows, which traps rain
water and promotes rotting of the sills and bottom rails of the door and windows.

Consequently. Beauvoir's governing boards have expended a great deal of money acrually to make the
problem worse. Additional funding will now be required 1o remove the inappropriaie overlay of flooring,
as well as the rotiing flooring beneath it, before a proper porch fleor can be installed.”

WA
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Mr. Richard V. Forie, Chairman
April 7 2014
Page 2

Trustees of the Department of Archives and History (MDAH), in accordance with the
provisions of the Mississippi Antiquities Law, 39-7-3, et seq, Mississippi Code of 1972.
This action was taken at the request of the Board of Directors of the Mississippi Division
of the United Sons of‘Confederate Veterans, Ed C. Sturdivant, President. on August 7,
1974. The property was also re-designated as a "Mississippi Landmark” following
amendment of the Antiquities Act in 1983.

Pursuant to the ._req‘uirem’ents of the Antiquities Law, 39-7-11 (2), Mississippi Code of
1972, as amended, "...All such designated sites [Mississippi Landmarks]...may not be
taken altered, damaged destroyed, restored, renovated, or excavated without a permit
from the board [Board of Trustees, MDAH] or in violation of such permit.” Obvrously
what this méans in regard to Beduvoir is that all proposed construction and repair work
on the buildings or ‘modifications to the Beauvoir property and iis-landscape requires
issuance of a Mississippi Landmark Permit prior io starting work. Since the entire
acreage: of the: Beauvoir-property is included in the Mississippi Landmark designation,
all-such projects are covered by the Mississippi Landmark designation, including but not
limited tothe mansion house, the cottages, the cui-buildings, the fences, Varina's
Garden, the cemetery, the bayou, the historic trees, and ali other structures on the

property- regardless of the source(s) of funding for the proposed work. Failure to

securea Mississippi Landmark Permit prior to undertaking work on the property
constitutes a violation of state law.

In addition to the Antiquities Law, MDAH is also responsible. for administration of the
Hisioric Preservation Easement executed on the property pursuant te requiréments for
obtaining the substantial amount of grant money that was used in restoring Beauvoir
after it was, damaged by Hurricane Katrina. The Historic Preservation Easement you
executed in orderio be ehglble for this grant funding was recorded in the Harrisory
County iand records on March 17 2019 as Instrumem #2012 571 D-J2. This

MDArl regardmg( the on-going restoratron/rehabmtatron of Beauvolr. It spells out in
great detail your obligations both during the grani-assisted work on the property and
following completion of the grani-assisted work, for the life of the Easement, which in
this. case is in perpetuity.

In signing the Easement you agreed that you would . ..take all reasonable steps to
prevent inappropriate, incompatible, and/or irreversible changes to the subject
property..." and that you would not ".. .begin any work, modifications or improvements
to said subject property without the expressed written approval of the Grantee [MDAH]."
Further, the Easement states, "In no case shall approval be granted for any proposed
work, modifications, or improvements that do not comply with the Secretary of the
Interior's Standards, as determined by MDAH review "

The easement document is also specific in regard to enforcement of the terms of the
easement, stating in section 4:

WALTER SILLERS BUILDING - POST OFFICE BOX 226 »1aCKS0: SSISSIPPT 392056220
TELEPHONE {8011 350-3685 - TELEFA 1601) 358-3023




Mr. Richard V. Forte, Chairman

April

7, 2014

Page 3

b) The Grantee [MDAH] may, following reasonable written notice to the Grantor,
institute suiji(s) to enjoin any violation of the terms of this covenant by ex parte,
temporary, preliminary. and/or permanent-injunction, including prohibitory and/or
mandatory injunctive refief, and to require the restoration of the subject property
to the condition and appearance that existed prior to the violation. The Graniee
shall also have available all- legal and other equitable remédies to. enforce the
Grantor's obligations hereunder.

c¢) In the event that the Grantor is found to have vioiaied any of its

obligations, the Grantor shall reimburse the Grantee [MDAH] for any costs
orexpenses incurred in connection with the Grantee's ériforcement of the
tefms and condiiions of this Easement, incl'uding, but not limited to, court

costs, and atiorneys’, architectural, engmeermg, and expert witness fees.

In addition thereto, the Grantor shall be liable for the return of all funids
awarded under the Act with interest in an amount to be established by a

court of competent jurisdiction.

d) Exercise by the Grantee [MDAH)] of one remedy hereunder shall not

have the effect of waiving or li'niiing any other remedy and the failure to
exercise any remedy shall not have ’the effect of waiving or limiting the use

of any other remedy or the use of such remedy at any other time.

Therefore, this letter is to inform the Combined Boards of Beauvoir, Mississippi Division
of the Sons of Confederaie Veierans, Inc., that by May 23, 2014, you aré réquired to
submit the following to the Mississippi Department of Archives: and History:

1. Pursuant {o requiremenis of Seciion 39-7-22 of the Aniiquiiies Law,
Beauvoir shall submit a "Noiice of Intent” form for construction, io include
removal of the overlay flooring and restoration of an appropriate porgh
floor. A copy of the form is enclosed.

2. Architectural plans and specifications for the removal and proper
replacementi of the porch floer, prepared by a gualified restoration
architect, must be submitted with the "Notice of Intent’ form.

3. Cost estimaies for the proposed porch restoration, prepared by the
architect and a qualified coniractor, must accompany the "Notice of Intent”
form and the architectural plans/specifications.

4. Certification that the Combined Boards have allocated sufficient
funding to cover all costs of the porch restoration project (i.e., both
architectural planning/oversight and construction costs) and are prepared
to enter into a contract for the porch restoration work, once the required
Mississippi Landmark Permit has been issued.

Remedies available o correct violations of the Antiquities Law are found in Sections
39-7-35 and 39-7-37. and include both criminal penalties and injunctive relief. Please
contact me as soon as pessible so that we may confirm the Boards' intent o comply
with these legal requirements.

WalTER SILLERS !-L:I’ DING - POST OFFICE BOX 220 -t ACKSON. MISSISSIPPI 302050220
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Singerely,

Michael Lanford
Deputy Attorney General
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Donna Barnes

| have worked at Beauvoir for the past 17 years. Greg Stewart came at a time when the place was at its lowest
and turned the attendance and crew around.

Not everyone was glad to see that but | love Beauvoir and wanted it to stay open.

k-did everything Greg Stewart asked me to do and am a witness to the staff that actively resisted him and was
glad when he finally left after his recovery effort was completed. Almost as soon as he was gone the old
habits returned and-now the place is in shambles again. | blame Tom Payne for it.

Tom Payne would yell at the staff and hated the Board of Directors and the most of the Board of Trustees. He
banned two of them from coming onto the property within months of his arrival.

Hacking

Tomalso hired five people from his church and they spent their time setting up anyone they thought were not
!Qxa!\‘to‘fTo“m. One or more of them were involved in hacking Evelyn Provost’s.computerto get dccess to
information that they printed off and shared to embarrass her.

Varina’s Gardens

| was-here when Varina’s Garden was put in. Itis a huge Garden and takes.a lot of workto maintain. Bythe

end-of his first year it was such a mess that | would not encourage thé guests to walk through it anymore. It

was envibarrassing. Everyone had a long title and no responsibilities and it'really:showed as the Garden went
from a beautiful (and expensive) showpiece to a goat pasture.

Rosie Boardman

‘Rosie Boardman convinced Tom to move the Admission Booth back into the Gift Shop where potential guests
that pull onto the property would never see it. From the front porch of the Beauvoir House where | am the

Tour Guide, | could watch the cars venture up onto the driveway, wonder for a minute, then turn around and
leave.

Putting the Admission booth back in the Gift Shop, where Rosie “worked” meant that the person in that booth
was now in the Gift Shop, which would relieve her from having to sell tickets or gifts. It also gave her another
employee to have clean the bathrooms which she absolutely refused to do even though she used the same
bathroom herself all day.

As a result of the movement of the Admission booth the attendance is down 40% from when Greg Stewart
was here. | know because all the guests come by me at some point. There are some tours (every hour) where

I have no guests and | have days were the guest count is under 30. It takes 150 paying guests a day to cover
the electric bill and wages. :

I was here when Kali Highbaugh, Don Green, and Dennie Spence came and went.
Kali Highbaugh .

Kali Highbaugh refused to dress in period dress which was one thing, but her typical attire was a low-cut shirt,

high cut shorts and little booties. It wasn’t fitting for her job or the institution. She had gotten away with it
for over a year since her arrival because one of the Board members took an obvious shine to her. He also



made sure she got raises at every opportunity. | cannot say what their relationship might have been but the
staff noticed it. When Greg Stewart arrived he blocked her 4% or 5% pay increase in a row at his first Board
meeting by pointing out that she had had successive raises at every single Board meeting over the past year,
and that Beauvoir could not afford it. Shortly after that her refusal to comply with the new dress code forced
him to dismiss her, but he did allow her to operate her carriage rides on the property. That eventually ended
when she left on her own accord. As a Tour Guide with constant access to the guests | knew that her Carriage
Ride attendance had gotten sloppy-and she still-continued to dress provocatively. | do not know what
happened to her but her new hushand did not stay with her.

Don Green

Don'Green hated Leroy, his fat'h‘er—in—law “far more- than he disliked Greg Stewart but he blamed Greg for

He greatly resented getting adwce f_rom hg_n.s_ fat_her-m—.law because,rt undermmed his authority, or so he
thought. His wife Jenny, Leroy’s daughtér, carhe to.morethan once after they were married and moved onto
the place in that cottage in the back. Don’sinterestin her had waned because he was addicted to porn and
she had caught him “actively” watching it on-more than one occasion. They would not have been married'in
the first place except that Greg Stewart would riot allow them to live in sin on Beauvoir property. Theyare -
divorced or are in the middle of a-divorce now; He cannot seemto hold a job.

Dennie Spence

Dennie Spence was just a strange bird. ?Shﬁﬁ'ly"aft‘ér‘arriv'ing hetook.up with Kitsaa and they went around the
property together all the time. Thatfinally resulted'in Greg Stewart issuing an email that addressed staying at
your assigned area and not walkmg about th  property with a coffee cup in your hand all day, among other

things. The other things probably were aifiéd at the fest of us in-some way but we all knew who the roaming

around and public consumption of food and drink was aimed at.

As a result of being confined to his work area and cut off from his non-stop coffee and snack, Dennie got very
angry with Greg and resigned. Kitsaa blamed Greg for running off her friend which he did not do.

Why Tom Payne hated Greg Stewart:

The people hired in at Beauvoir by Tom Payne from his church never even met Greg Stewart but said nasty
things about him as Tom’s prospect of staying much longer got dimmer. As the attendance number dwindled,
Tom would stay in his office, in the dark for hours, supposedly with a migraine headache. Sometimes it was all
day. We never knew when he might come out and if he did his screaming fits could be head all over the
building.

I want whoever reads this to know that Beauvoir is a special place and can be run successfully. | have seen it
with Keith Hardison 15 years ago and | saw it with Greg Stewart. Tom Payne’s mistake was thinking that it was
going to be an easy job and that he could just give everyone a title and a raise. That isn’t how it works.

I am happy to answer any and all questions about Greg Stewart, Tom Payne and the staff and can be reached
on my cell at 228-327-3609 or by my email:donnabarnes1948@gmail.com

Donna Barnes
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Kitsaa Sievens :

From: Greg Stewapt—[gregstewart@cableone nei]

Sent: Saturday, November 18, 2017.8:56 PM

To: ‘Kitsaa Stevens? ]ﬁ"terso“'@beauvoxr org

Ge: '‘Knox Paole’; '_Leroy Waller'; "Jason Smith'; ‘Bruce Warret
Delashmit’; ‘Mi}ge‘ Woolen”; 'Jessie Sanford'

Subject: RE: August 12th-event

Attachments: image001.jpg

From: Greg Stewart [mailto:gregstewart@cableone.nei]

Sent: Saturday, November 18, 2017 8:44 PM

To: 'Kitsaa Stevens’ <kstevens@beauvoir.org>; ‘jpeterson@beauvair:org’ <jpeterson@beauvoir.org>
€c 'Knox Poole’ <sledgeall7@gmail.com>; 'Leroy Waller' <léroywaller@yahoo:coms; Jason Smith’
<mosquitoranchl@aol.corm>; ‘Bruce Warran* <eastmsgreys1666@gmail.com>; Johnny McDowell'
<Johnnymcdowen@bellsouth net>; "Frances Delashmit! <frances.delashmit@gmail.com>; 'Mike Wooten'
<pftr72@ao!-ccm>- ‘lessie Sanford’ <jessieSanford101@comcast.net>

Subjec’c ‘RE: August 12th event

Kitsaa Stevens
Director of Development < Prograrms |
Beauvoir, the Jefferson Davis Home L residential Lz‘Emgz

Lwill finish the Bricks project to caincide with the Mississippi Division Sons:of Confederate Veterans Reunion in June.
That is normally the first Saturday after lefferson Davis’ birthday, when we hang the very large Batile Flag, with nary 3
word from MDAH.

You are welcame to-attend and if you guys feel like it you can even promote the event at Beauvoir and spur attendance.
“The Sun'Herald publishes, for free, Lynn Meadows Discovery Center, WAMA, Marcy C. The Seafood Museum, and Ohr-
O’Keefe programs & events every single week in the Friday Margquee and the Monday What's Happening. If you cannot
get ta it, mayhe your assistant can. Anyway, that is up o you guys and the Division membership on hand for our
‘ceremony will be glad for any outsiders watching us congratulate ourselves for finishing the project {this part of it).

‘Come to think of it the last brick placed {by Larry McCluney) would be perfect for the Sunday Morning Church Service
that officially ends the Reunion. So, June 10%.

As Ambassador of the Bricks | will promote the sale of the last 80 or so and will need the information on the ones that
have 1o be redone. | need to know who ardered more than one so that their bricks are placed together.

| am attaching photos of the effort to do this in house not embarrass anyone or come oif as an “] told you so” but to
make the point that the “in house” product for the Walkway completion, did not work and must be redone.

As part of my Ambassadorship | aim to conduct an exhaustive analysis of the costs the in house effort ran up. | believe
the startup costs may actuslly be recavered over time, if we can learn to engrave and if there is a way around renting a
compressor. But, in order to endorse it, { have to have some hard figures.

| would appreciate you and Jay, and whoever else can find the numbers to teli me:

What did the engraving machine cost? Is it new or used? Was the cost of it taken from the 8ricks account?



Besides the engraving machine, what other materials and equipment were required to make even the first bricks

engraving effort a “go”? Are some of those costs variable (like the sand} and are others fixed and final {like the safety
mask)...

What is the daily rental cost of the compressar? What would a used one, appropriate forthe engraving machine’s
requirements, cost us?

How many man hours so far, and at what cornpensation rate, have gone into the 42 bricks ordered since we abandoned
the matching bricks on hand at the engraversin Arcola? What | mean here is that my understanding Is that Jay (whoisa
salaried staff member) that has been engaged in this over several months and drove to get the bricks, or some of them.
Is there someone paid at-a lower rate thatwe.could usein the future?

There are 398 bricks in Brookhaven thatmatch the 100 oversized ones on campus now? | think we can use them, evefi
the “engraved” anes (by using the: othef side) s6 wha i is the contact person there? When I go up to Arcola to recover the
right sizéd, engraved, britks ] williswing downi 55 and cross over at- Magee and we can just have them.

| will have more than one opportunity to go horth between now and the first week of June, so, as before, 1 will do this
driving and picking up at hiocost to:Beauvoir. No man hours, no gas.

Finally, the quickest way to wrap:this up is to.pay the guy in-Arcola to do the ones that Jay has told me are already'in
process. There are.5 outatthe Walkway’ {on the oversized hricks) and Jay says there are 38 others stenciled-{on'the
oversized bricks). That-means wa have 43 fot which Beauyoir-has presumably received payment.

There are exactly 124 spaces left-for the right sized bricks on the Walkway. So, if we re-do the 43, that leaves me 81,
EXACTLY, to sell. Ido not intend to sell moré thanthat because so far as | am concerned | am Ambassador through the
Walkway portion-only. lhave no strong opih?tp'n-ab_out where another Brick effort should go. T only want to finish:this
one with a good looking product and'a pot 6Fmoney for the Cemetery enhancement going forward.

So, Alan Orlicek, the professional engraver; in Arcola, where the right bricks are, will need to be paid to do the.43 bricks.
that we already have on order-and we might as-well pay him for the next 81. They are going to sell fast. We are under
100! | have notseen a word-about-that’ anywhere that might have spurred sales even for a wrong-size brick, but WEARE
UNDER 100! Mariy of ourfolks have been waiting around to get their ancestor’s brick closer to the Holy spot, the Tomb.

124 bricks X 525.00/brick = $3,100.00 {check my math). Have your Business Manager, Security Chief, Grant Writer, or
whoever is handling the money (with proper oversight) cut that check and get it to Orlicek and let me know when it is
done.

) left 23K in that Brick account so | frust there is enough to front the cosis of the 81 to-be-ordered bricks. Surely thereis
$2,025.00 left from the 23K to do this.

! will get an the marketing of “The Last 100” tomarrow. As always, the orders and the money will go direcily to
Beauvoir to be processed by the Business Manager or whatever bondable person there is handling the money. 1 only
need to see the order form and know about any special placement requests. Email works for me.

One last thing. | had sent you an editable index before so that our patrons can easily find “their” brick. An updated
index, properly laminated to withstand the elements, ought to be out at the Cemetery, near the Walkway for them.
That is better done in house.

Greg Stewart
His Excellency, Ambassador of the Bricks
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Pauline Hansford

Who is the racist?

I was the only black employee at Beauvoir when Greg Stewart hired me on in 2015. The previous
one, Bertha Richmond was fired by Don Green while Greg was out of town in July 2015.

Greg Stewart tried every imaginable way to attract as many people as he could to Beauvoir and

wanted more Black visitors. He made a point of employing TNT Ranch hands, almost all Black, at
big events.

He opened up the property to Black Spring Break to parking since the property is right next to
the Coliseum and regular Museum & House visitors were prevented by the Black Spring Break
traffic from being able to get the house and grounds anyway on that crowded weekend. Not
everyone on the staff were welcoming and, in fact, sore of them, Rosie Boardman and Kitsaa
Stevens, in particular, were loudly opposed to it. They didn’t thirk Black people should even
come to Beauvoir. ’

Tom Payne did not like me or any Black peopleand it wasn’t hard to tell. He was on his cell phone
one day when he did not know | was in the adjacent'breakroom and told whoever he was talking
to that “we just have the one, but she is so light shé might pass for.a dark skinned Asian. That
nigger-lover, Greg Stewart, hired her”.

Hacking

I remember that after Greg Stewart left the laptop he had used during hisitime there on the desk
where he used to sit. | was at Beauvoir when Evelyn Provost’s’ 'ctom‘pmer had.been hacked by
one of Tom Payne’s church members. He had hired five froim his church very quickly after arrival,
along with Andrea Little, who wasn’t a church member but'was yoting:and perky. She watiched
movies on her computer all day long with her headset on and I'was never able to figure out what
she really did except leave at the same time he did for lunch.

| left Beauvoir for a time but when | came back | knew about the hacking of Andrea’s computer
and Brad (church member with Payne) and Andrea laughed-about their hacking skills. | got the
impression they were not just crowing about their success with. Evelyn’s computer.

Why Rosie Boardman hated Greg Stewart

| knew that Rosie Boardman could not stand Greg Stewart because she told me that over and
over. She had been against him moving Admissions out to the Booth near the entrance (to
increase sales). If the Booth were manned out there then she couldn’t have another person with
her in the Gift Shop and might have to get up from behind her desk and actually wait on somecne.

Worse, Greg Stewart required all staff members, regardless of title to be available to do light
cleanup work throughout the course of the day, including cleaning the guest bathrooms that we
used ourselves. This was obviously beneath Rosie and she almost quit over it. Greg was satisfied
with her verbal confirmation that she would keep the bathrooms tidy during the course of a day,
but the truth was she never did it and that work was left to me. | did not mind it one bit.



Rosie’s other chief complaint with Greg Stewart was his disallowance of “two free drinks a day”
tor the yard crew. That practice made inventory control impossible and Rosie knew it. That
would allow her as many drinks for herself every day, for free. When he made it clear that
everyone would pay for their drinks, with the employee discount, it cut her out of her 6 soft

drinks that she normally consumed, every day at work, plus whatever she might take home in
her purse.

Kitsaa Stevens missed Dennie

When Dennie quit after being told he would have to stay in his assigned are and not snack and
drink coffee in the Library around the books or the Museum around the artifacts, Kitsaa lost her
walking around friend. If they had just toured the grounds together once or twice, | doubt Greg
would have have even said anything, but he would have noticed. But, they quickly developed a
property tour that would.sometirhes go-an hour all-over the 52 acres practically every day so he
had to stop:it. When Dénnie got angry and quit as a result of it, Kitsaa lost her friend. To my
knowledge they still-got to see each othef at lunch on Tuesdays, their Taco Tuesday lunch date.

Tom Payne had more probleris than his hatred for Greg Stewart

Tom was obsessed with Greg but his paranoia was not confined to Stewart alone. He had
rearranged the flicniture inhis office “in.case someone would try to shoot him” through his office
window. He hired Tanher Goff, another of his fellow church members, to dress like a Secret
Service Agent and follow him-around the property or drive him in his golf cart. He would sit in.
his office for hours in the dark which was always fine with us because if he was awake and up
and around he woui’dﬁi'be‘,scréanf'l‘i‘r{glat:one of us. As the attendance numbers continued to fall it
only got worse.

Tom accused Greg of stealing the .g‘iant battle flag that was hung from the Beauvoir House on
certain dates. I'was workingin:the Gift:shop at the time the flag was sold by Rosie Boardman to
an SCV camip in Florida without Board ‘-knd_wled_ge or approval. Tom did not want the flag hung
from the house and thought'that by saying someone (Greg Stewart) had stolen it, that the Board
might just go along with his removal of it by simply not buying a new one. This lie told about
Stewart by Tom Payne enraged the Fall Muster crowd (the SCV group on hand when the flag
could not be “found”. Immediately after Tom Payne quit (April 2018) with no notice another of
the staff members (Jay Peterson) admitted to the Board that Greg Stewart had in fact, not stolen
anything but that Tom had instructed Jay and others to spread the lie that, but for Greg’s stealing
of the flag, it would have been hung by Tom from the House.

Tom Payne laughed about the flag iie and boasted that he had included it in the information
he had gotten to the Bar to foil Greg’s readmittance effort. He also went into the Personnel
files of Beauvoir employees to get his “information”, without the employee’s permission, and
without the Board of Beauvoir ever knowing about it.

| can reached on my cell phone at 228 313-5242 or by email at

Bt S

Pauline Hansford
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Sharon Granberry Reynolds

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

CIRCUIT COURT TUNICA COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT
HON. ALBERT B. SMITH P.0.BOX 184 HON. CHARLES E. WEBSTER
P. 0. DRAWER 478 TUNICA, MISSISSIPPI 38676 P. O. DRAWER 998
CLEVELAND, MS 38732 662-363-2842 CLARKSDALE, MS 38614
662-843-3346 FAX: 662-363-2413 662-624-3017
FAX: 662-846-2930 FAX: 662-624-2515

HON. LINDA F. COLEMAN
P. 0. DRAWER 548
CLEVELAND, MS 38732
662-846-2939

FAX: 662-846-2937

| am the 20-year Circuit Clerk of Tunica County and would like the Mississippi Bar and the
Supreme Court to know the following things that | know:about Greg Stewart.

‘When:Greg arrived in Tunica in 1990 Tunica was a different place than itis now.

Very sh,ortly- after his arrival there'was a lot that was.in the wﬁitepa_;_tj of the Town of Tunica for
sale. A black-woman bought the lot and'no.other attorney wotild handle the closing. Greg did
and | know that he caught some heat for it. But, that is onlythe beginning.

He was the first lawyer in Tunica to hire a black secretary, and 3s far as | know, the only one to
date.

A few years after that he hired another secretary who was widely known to be involved with a
black man. No one else would have hired her at the time for that kind of offense.

He was a friend of and Aaron E. Henry, the head of the Mississippi NAACP for many, many years
and the Tunica County representative on the A. E. Henry Community Health Centers,
headquartered in Clarksdale, with a clinic in Tunica County.

While he lived in Tunica he was invited and came to speak at the Rev. Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Observances.

He greatly admired and respected my father, the first black elected Tunica County School Board
member and later penned a tribute to him, this past Black History Month, that ran in our local
paper. | am attaching a copy.

Probably one of the most difficult things Greg did, related to racial divisions in Tunica County
was to stand on the side of right in 1995. There was a black young man, his name is
unimportant now but | can provide if need be, who was on the school bus one day, with many



others who thought it would be funny to “flip off” the driver of a pickup truck following along
behind the bus on a gravel road.

The boy could not have known that the driver was the son of a large landowner (a planter) and
that the bus driver, when not driving the bus, was one of that plantation’s tractor drivers.

The young planter was very angry with the symbolic insult, so angry that he drove up alongside
the bus and forced it over on the side of the road, got out in a hurry, and banged on the bus
door, demanding to be let in. The bus driver, an employee of the angry young planter,
complied.

What happened after that is debatabie. The school children on the bus told their parents that
the young planter boarded and flashed-a gun, said he would kill them, and generally put them
in fear of their lives.

At the time Greg Stewart was the newly-elected County Prosecutor and the upset community
came to him. He advised them ali to file their charges on behalf of their own kids and that they
would be heard. The youing planter'was charged in Justice Court by the affidavits of some 29 or
30 parents. and the matter was to be heard in Justice Court. But, the matter was never heard:
The Justice Court Judge; on motion by the defense attorney and without Greg’s knowledge or
notice, “consolidated” the matter into the action-of one parent but then shortly thereafter the
court file, which was kept séparately in the Justice Court safe, disappeared one night when the
front door of the Justice:Court building was srashed. in and the Justice Court safe was taken. It
has never been found.

| know for a fact that the white community had put tremendous pressure on Greg Stewart
leading up to the safe theft. His answer had been to them that the matter had to be heard, else
none of us had a system. Though théy are very good people, all in afl, the idea that one of their
best-bred sons would have to answer to his response to a 16-year-old black boy was an affront
or some kind of humiliation.

They blamed Greg Stewart for it and | think his disappointment with their deliberately
ostracizing him for insisting on doing the right thing was the reason he moved his family back to
Oxford.

Anyone who has any questions about any of these matters or the Greg Stewart that | know can
me on my cell at 662 363-6018. | will happy to give more details or even the names of other in
the community that would tell the same information and may have even more.

/
Yot
‘Shartn Granberry Y

" Tunica County Circuit Clerk
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Cable One Webmaii

Cable One Webmail

gregstewart@cableone.net

2018 Stephen D. Lee Institute at Shreveport. B%U vion s

SPY/LLVQ"W’ could et }}
From : Greg Stewart <gregstewart@cableone.net> e Mon, Feb 19, 2018 08:16 PM

Subject : 2018 Stephen D. Lee Institute at Shreveport v ¢hew Op YRL  p1 attachment

To : 'john echols' <soucom@att.net> ")(910-; co-/m/; hew B e

The 2018 Stephen D. Lee Institute, sponsored. by National was held in Shreveport February
16 & 17. The event is always well attended and Mississippi. Division members on hand for
the various symposium subjects included Division -Commander Jeff Barnes (the East
Mississippi Greys of Forest), Division an Lt.. Commander; Carl Ford (the Rosin Heels of Jones

County), Jerry Franks (the Columbus camp), Kenny ‘ of t_he Columbus Camp),
Greg Stewart (the University Greys of Oxford), : an { ~_Ql Camp).

The annual event differs from the annual Reunion in tha,t‘ th‘er'e,, is no business meeting, no
vendors, no ball, and no politics. The entire event is-devoted to-academic study. The
speakers have detailed knowledge and experience and deliver stirring information.

This year’s topics included: Past:National SCV Conimander Chuck McMichael addressing the
recent history of monument protectiofi-ahd what SCV mefribérs and camps can do, Marvin
Lee Bright, III one of three State Senate members in South Carolina who voted to keep the
Battle Flag at the State Monument and his targeting by the anti-flag lobby for that vote,
Professor Jeffery Addicott addressing his experiences with the media defending Southern
icons, Paul Graham, author of a recent best seller, Confederataphobia: An American
Epidemic, Ryan Walters author of Remember Mississippi, a detailed story of the McDaniel-
Cochran race of 2014, and James Ronald Kennedy,-author of The South was Right, a well-
known best seller well known in our circles.

Carl Ford, and his wife Nancy were e'lated\tos_ee Donny and Ronny Kennedy who , it turns
out, they have known for 50 years now. The “Kennedy Twins” are well known for their book
The South was Right and have been in the Louisiana Division for years. But, the brothers hail
from Crystal Springs.

: The Kennedy brothres and The Fords 50 year friends.jpg
1 2 MB

hitps://mail.sparklight.com/h/printmessage?id=15241 &tz=America/Chicago
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Melissa Scott

From: Melissa Martin

Sent: Monday, January 15, 2018 2:10 PM I‘Nz H Al

To: Tom Payne
Subject: Re: Testing email-address
le) L

Gotit /M |
Sent from my iPhone i / IS / IR%

On Jan 15, 2018, at 2:02 PM, Tom Payne <drtompayne(@gmail.com> wrot FTEN RLJL('
t -- S

est

Dr. Thomas:E. Payne: J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis Hoiie and Presidential Library




Melissa Scott

From: Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, January 26, 2018 10:50 AM

To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Re: Testing email address

Melissa,

What is a good phone number | can call to discuss documents.

tom payne

Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The. Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library

On.Mon, Jan 15, 2018 at 2:09 PM, Melissa Martin <mmartin@msbar.org> wrote:
Got:it

Sent from my iPhone

OnJan 15, 2018, at 2:02 PM, Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com> wrote:

t
est

Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library



iVielissa Scott

From: Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2018 12:48 PM
To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Re: Stewart Reinstatement

Melissa,

Thanks, Mr. Sullivan is a little skittish but is willing to speak to you for background info and to
confirm some of the information you already have. He advised that he would be willing speak to you
-and provide you with some names of others who were affected. His phone number is 228-669-3491
he'was a secretary to the combined board and is privy to the issues mentioned.

Tom

4(‘,75 \/c/(/‘f

N n
Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D. Cosprvt

Executive Director/General Counsel SCL |
The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library // S;LU/‘/W 07-’ .

\/ efesv
On Tue, Jan 30, 2018 at 12:36 PM, Melissa Martin <mmartin@msbar.org> wrote: J’O_’V /9 /

Y loy cey
. ml/éw\ QM/ \
Tom, 'j)gA«OW, K- pmlk ,44(,0/«

Mr. Stewart’s deposition will not reconvene until February 13", T mentioned before I would be out of town the
rest of this week. I’d love to try to speak to Mr. Sullivan next Monday afternoon. And I'll send any affidavits
to you next week also. Thank you for all your help with this matter. }D ondt o A Hwio A

dplraer st I Fht Z/{(,
Beayvorm  p ct 7:/(,,
Missye / 7[0 Q/OVt A nnve [';
%

¢ //"e ‘ - ,qJ'r
' e
Melissa Selman Martin /9 . cks — obvi
» An_ Slevort”
wewr 0 )
‘Deputy General Counsel +hu Y,
. fo /7 ﬁ'\_ h/( f e
1 ';17& Ryt -

Z(;UWL 2 0vn daso’



Melissa Scott

From: Tom Payne{drforﬁ“paéyne@gmarl .com>
Sent: ' Monday/February 5, 2018 12:21 PM
To: Tanya W’e\bB‘e‘r“"/ '

Subject: Re: Finishing the Walkway

Mrs. Webber,

Thank you for your prompt reply. | understand the position of the Secretary of States office. My
purpose in discussing this particular issue is because | am also the Board attorney and want to give
the best !egal advnce As both the Executlve Director and the Board attorney I am aware’ that the
-words | beheve thaf Greg Stewart controls the Board Chairman and the Chaxrman has done Greg
Stewart's: brddlng in the past. This is:evidenced by the letter in support of Greg Stewart's
reinstatement to'the:bar. A letter rife with false and misleading statements. The fact that after | as
Executive Director took: control over the brick program, the Board allegedly (according to Greg
Stewart) made hrm over the entrre Bnck program and took the funds away from B eauvorr‘s
'whrch ! have not been pnvy to date. leen these facts, | believe that hlS lnﬂuence is sufﬁcrent to
trigger the safeguards of the:statute. My question to you is whether given this factual scenario would
this be in violation of the statuté if he continues to have that kind of influence over the current Chari. If
so | need to-advise the Board: accordingly, if not then I will be obliged as Executive: Directorto follow
the mandates of the Board. I simply need some guidance. Thank you.

‘Tom Payne DQML o3 /.Q
4. darachve
Ey\(/\{&d 5 ‘!’?:31.\/\-\
e
Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D. Jrr\r }’3 7
Executive Director/General Counsel YL r\;)‘*’*'k ”L

The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library WAV s

On Mon, Feb 5, 2018 at 11:05 AM, Tanya Webber <Tanya. Webber(@sos.ms.gov> wrote:

" Good morning, Mr. Payne.

1 will start by staving that it is the policy of the Charities Division (”Division”) not to interfere with the daily operations
of charities. However, itis the Division’s duty to make sure charities-comply with the Charities Act and to answer
questions regarding this Act.

1



. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 79-11-509(1}){f) of the Mississippi Regulation of Charitable Solicitations Act, the
* Secretary of State shall revoke a charity’s registration or exemption if any applicant, registrant, officer, director, or

. partner, agent, or employee who has been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving misrepresentation,

! misapplication or misuse of the money or property of another maintains a paosition where he or she has access to or
! control over the funds of the charitable organization.

y

- | know that [Mr. Stewart’s felony conviction meets this definitien. Therefore M. Stewart cannot have access to.and

+ control over the funds of the charity. Access and control would include writing & signing checks, custody of cash,

i alithority to:acceptand disburse donations, as-well as making decisions on how the funds will be spent. Since you and

* the Board know exactly what duties Mr. Stewart has with the charity; you willneed to determineifhe will have any of

{ theduties stated above, if so, he.cannot assume the duties. If he will not have the duties rientioned above or ANY duty
- involving access to of control f of the funds, he can assume the duty.

+ Thanks,

- Tanya G.' Webber
| Assistant Secretdry of State
Charities Division

i ‘Mississippi Secretary of State's Office

125 S Congress Street

. Jackson, MS 39203

1

! (601) 359-6742 (phone)

! {601) 359-9070 (fax)

Tanva.Webber@sos.ms.gov

From: Tom Payne [mailto:ditompayne@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, February 05, 2018 10:01 AM




To: Melissa Martin; Tanya Webber
" Subject: Fwd: Finishing the Walkway

- Dear Ms. Martin and Webber,

. lreceived this email from Greg Stewart on Friday: | have not responded, as is my custom because of
- his juvenile attempts at harassment. However, | do have a Board meeting on Feb 10, 2018, and

- would like to express to the Board the violation of the statute as it relates to felons having any

* influence over fundraising. | believe-his direct control of the program is facilitated by Owen McDowell
! the present Chairman of the Board. 1 was hoping for an email or letter from the Sec of States office

i meémorializing our conversation and supporting the fact that his attempt to gain funds and his

* influence over the project is in violatiori:of thé statute. | have included Ms. Martin on this email to

! peint out the continued harassment and the state of mind of Mr. Stewart as of last Friday. As soon as
: | can get confirmation from the Secretery of State | will email Mr. Stewart and advise him to do

! nothing further on the Beauvoir Brick program. Your promipt respense and attention to this

: communication is greatly appreciated.

Tom Payne

: Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
~ Executive Director/General Counsel

. The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library

——————— — Forwarded message ----——-—-

From: Greg Stewart <gregstewart(Zcableone.net™>
Date: Sat, Feb 3, 2018 at 1:45 PM

Subject: RE: Finishing the Walkway

W



To: Kitsaa Stevens <kstevensi@beauvoir.org>, Tom Payne <drtompayne/@gmail.com>

Cc: Johnny McDowell <johnnymcdowelli@bellsouth.net>, Jessie Sanford <jessiesanford101{@comeast.net>,
* Frances Delashmit <frances.delashmit/@email.com>, Mike Wooten <pfir72i@aol. com™>, Marc Thompson

- <mnarc.thompsongéscvivealthmanagement.com™

« OK,
~ This orderis ready to go out.

~ The center column is the form that the Professional Brick Engraver prefers, to avoid mistakes and unhappy
¢ brick purchasers. The ones:that colored the:same are meant to go next to each other out of respect foi'the
. purchasers wishes.

They -are:not in malphabgtjgal;ordef but in-the order that they were given to me, which, I can oﬁiy-aSSume,- ishow
- they came in. There are-also some gaps in the brick purchaser information that might be filled in later.

: Itismy understanding that the last:person to “manage” the brick orders at Beauvoir has recently resigiied or
* quitin disgust. So; at some. point T hopeto get the brick purchaser information so‘that a proper “Thank you”
| can.go out:

’

¢ T will reassume thc’ihﬁéxi"_ng} and hope that someday the Walkway Index can go back out where the paying
. patrons can find their brick quickly and easily.

I have noticed that for some reason bricks that I put down months ago, to comport with the brick purchaser

. requests that their ancestors be placed together, have been rearranged. I have photos of the bricks properly

+ laid, and that match the existing index that I last updated, so when this batch is finally placed in the Walkway I
- will fix-that too.

" For the record I did not find Alan Orlicek or negotiate the rate for the engraving. His address is Alan Orlicek
* Post Office Box 452 Arcola, Mississippi 38722.

The check can be mailed directly to him. There is no good reason to delay completing this Brick
Walkway. Not one properly engraved brick has been placed since the last order was picked up after the
Reunion in Oxford.



[ suspect that other orders have come in since my receipt of this present batch.

. Hopefully, we can find out where they are so that Alan can get working on them and they can be placed. There
. is.only room for 75 more after this batch is placed on the Walkway.

_ 1 still have no information abouit the location of the Beauvoir-owned, wrong-sized, bricks somewhere in
+ Brookhaven. My offer to retrieve them and deliver them to Beauvoir stands. There is a possibility they can be
! | used in ariother phase of the Cemetery enhancement.

On sottie of the order forms I have found a curious symbol that appears to be a “butt with a line through it”.

'~ ‘Everyone who has seen it laughs and agrees that it must be a “Butt with a Line through I”.
Not all of the forms have this so [ am trying to find out what the “Butt with a Line through It” means.
. Cheers!

- Greg



From: Greg Stewart [mailto:gregstewarticécableone.net]
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2018 3:05 PM
To: 'Kitsaa Stevens' <kstevens{zbeauvoir.org™>; "Tom Payne' <drtompaynei@iemail.com>

- Ce: Johnny McDowell' <johnnymcdowell&abellsouth.net>; Jessie Sanford' <jessiesanford1071@icomcast.net>;
'Frances Delashmit' <frances.delashmit@gmail.com>; 'Mike Wooten' <pfir72:@aol.com™>; 'Marc Thompson'
<marc.thompson{@scvwealthmanagement.con™

* Subject: Finishing the Walkway

Kitsaa,

I am ready to gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Beauvoir in early June. I expect
. tobe back and forth from North Mississippi a few times between now and then so picking them up at no cost
* to anyone can be done. ’

What I need is for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks needed to finish the

¢ Walkway ($3,100.00 for 124 properly done-bricks). That can be mailed directly to Orlicek or Tom can hand

. the check to me on the 27" when we are both-at the EC meeting in Jackson. I plan to leave that Saturday

! meeting early after my business there and ;go, on north (and can go through Arcola). Sadly, I will have to miss
¢ the Executive Director’s regular Beauvoir report later in the meeting. Orlicek already has the right size bricks,
! right color, and is able to engrave them deeply énough so that the product is'the same from the Archway to the
i Tomb of the Unknown Corifederate Soldier.

I have a copy of the 40 or so orders that were pending. If there have been more please forward the same to me
so that I can send them on to Alan in the right order and complete the index, which was not in the Cemetery the
last time I looked where people might actually attempt to locate “their” Brick.

6



When I get the current order in I will go ahead and update the index to be placed in the Cemetery on my own
dime. There is an index in the JDPL and I will bring the updated and laminated new sheets to supplement that
one. Ifthere is one in the Library please advise me so that I can update it as well.

Finally, it is'my understanding that the lot of oversized bricks is somewhere in Brookhaven. Originally there

. were 498'0r so? The gray truck can easily haul 500 bricks but I can retrieve those too in my ‘truck oby looping

through those parts on some trip-south from Jackson or Oxford. Just need the address. If weican find a match

" or small ‘project. (lfwe can find no match) for those then we need to have posséssion of them sooner rather than
- later (before they walk off).

: Greg

i The inferfmatidn <

-

i dhe sénder and

]

Ammibassador for the Bricks for Beauvoir

' T inférmption: Eohtdgined in this'email is.not-ad-official opinion. Ydu should net consider anything in this emall from the iissis sippl Sstrstasnyer.Size's Stfica te
i belegal ddiice. o

nutified thar any

rmauenﬂy éerete gl e-mali and any altachments lmmedlately You sheuld not rcfam Poa oF lise rhts e

v any ita»hnang_s for any
purpoese, nor disclose alf er.any part of the contents to ariy other person.



So, with the 22 on hand, and 24 ready to be picked up in Arcola, the Walkway should be finished with just 120 more
orders.

s,

Otherwise, updating the index, typing out each brick order for the engraver, making sure the bricks are laid together
when requested, and sending personal “thank you” cards, ought to be'done in-house:

1 will happily retrieve the bricks in Arcola to get you within 100 and the “Last100” at no ¢ost to Beauvoir. We need 1o
finish the Walkway and build up that restricted fund so that more ¢an be done to make the Cémetery-more attractive,
inviting, and patron-friendly, as planned.

Greg

- e e - Ce e e S T T .

From~ Kltsaa Stevens [*na;xac:ks‘zevens@.beauvoir;prgl
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2017 3:49 PM

To: 'Greg Stewart' <gregstawart@cableons. net>

Cc: 'Tom Payne' <drtorpeyna@amail.cony>

Subject: August 12th évent

From: Greg Stewart frnailto: §
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2017 7:32 PM
‘To:'Kitsaa Stevens’ <kstevens@beauvoir.org>; dcobh@heauvsir.org
Sx;_xb’jé_c’t:ﬁjéson‘ Smith Beauvoir Brick announcement

Y you guys:think of.a way to make this announcement on your: Beauvair Facebook.and website? Hf the 66 go down in
August that leaves “The Last 100", a catchy phrase that will sell half of that just by the mere utterance. With any luck we
can'pldce the very last brick in some pomp and dircumstence duririg the peak dttendance at Falt Muster {ahd:get more
media coverage for Beauvoir).

1-atn working the marketing of this from the Division side, any help you can send will-help.

Oreg

kY]

In response to your email above:

Al svents must be cleaced throngh Heavvolr's Executive Director first,
Al publications announcing evenis ar the Beauvolr proparty mnast he cleared through Beauvoir,

All avents that take piaes on the Beay

have o proposal snbmitied to the Beauvolr property.

The k.tupn,r procedures vere
Programs. I have been instrw ;
{:000m will vot take placs on r‘m ﬁ’,ch_w\_‘?- sroperiy

s
SLE IR

{ respectiully ask that any covrespnndence that
ST S v -



Witsas Stovens

Director of Developinent & Programs

Beauvoir, the jkjjerson Davis Home & Presidential Library

.l-

2244 Beach Blvd. Biloxi, Hs. 39531

Lsterens@beauvoir.ong
2_28 8 8.4

’OO ext216 Fax # 228.388.7800
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Brick order February 5, 2018

to Alan Orlicek in Arcola, Mississippi

Honoree

inscription

Purchaser

i [Seickiand, Andy

Esq.

Andy G. Strickland, Esq.
1%, Lt.
Judah P. Benjamin #2210

2 | Bruce, Calton

"Andy G. Strickland

5850 Oakhurst Drive
Seminole, FL 33772
727 424-0478

'3 [ Junkin, Samuel
Wesley

Jimmy 0. orLillian R..Junkin

1 27539 Ranch Creek

Highlands Ranch
Boerne, TX 78006-4824

4 | Carter, Murphy
Wright

Jimimiy 0. or Lillian R. Junkin
27539 Ranch Creek
Highlands Ranch
Boernhe, TX 78006-4824

W.r‘ig't;{l(\/ilurpﬁy
Carter Capt, GA
Sharpshooters

Marcia Ja‘s‘pérs_é.
89 Apple Valley Farm Ln.
Jasper, GA. 30143

5 | King, William W.

6 La:ngiey, Math ié‘s

| W.langley

~Private;-Co. A" .
et IS Infantry ¢

= | W.langley

7 Jonés, A.C. Sgt. A. C. Jones Bert Jones
P CB Massingill 274 CR 1i9L —
Inf. remen,
1&8Inf. CSA 256 287-1077
8 | Lipps, Jonas A. Jonas A. Lipps Tom & Marty McKenney
Capt. Co. H, 1212 Bridwell Lp

Six Hundred

Marion, KY 42064
270 965-2174 or
228 990 8880

9 | Lipps, Jonas A.

Capt. Jonas A. Lipps
Immortal
Six Hundred

Tom & Marty McKenney
1212 Bridwell Lp
Marion, KY 42064

270 965-2174 or

228 990 8880




10

Bonds, G. B, Jr.

T Bonds, G B
. Company A
267 Miss. Infantry -

Don Weathers

52 43 Antioch Blvd.

Baton Rouge, LA 70817-2502
225 753-6678

Pvt. Co. C
14 Miss Lt. Arty

11 | Bonds, J. K. PFC Don Weathers
52 43 Antioch Blvd.
Baton Rouge, LA 70817-2502
225 753-6678
12 | Bonds, R. A. PFC Don Weathers
52 43 Antioch Blvd.
Baton Rouge, LA 70817-2502
] 225.753-6678
| 13 | Smith, Mountford Pvt. Mountford Street Danetta J. Rutten723 East 6t
| Street Smith Co. E Street
" #The brickfofm listed Moutford, ' dasha@wanecable.com
not Mountford, | googled and Kathleen Dudley
' :Zf:f:eclsikzgoumy CSA veteran kdudley@cableone.netN
v 14 | Fayard, Louis " Pvt. Louis Fayard Charles Fayard
: Company F 18164 Cardinal Lane
rd - Gulfport, MS 39503
A g n
. 3, MS Regiment | 228 224-5565
' 15 | Children of the Greg Marbury
Confederacy 3601 Knapp Road
S Ocean Springs, MS 39564
16 | Stevenson, James Greg Marbury
William. 3601 Knapp Road
' ‘Ocean Springs, MS 39564
17 | Young, Thomas Thomas Harrison
Harrison Young Pvt. Co. A
6" Miss. Regiment
18 | Smith, John John Culpepper Alfred Canon
Culpepper Smith Pvt. Co | 35 Southfolk Cove.
Pettus Rifles. 17" MS Senatobia, Mississippi 38668
?
19 | Toole, William A. William A. Toole J. M. Toole
Pvt. Co. C 92 Enid Teasdale Road
. Enid, MS 38927-2403
14* Miss Lt. Ar ’
ty 662 647-2792
20 | Toole, Robert F. Robert F. Toole J. M. Toole
Pvt. Co. C 92 Enid Teasdale Road
. Enid, MS 38927-2403
th ’
14™ Miss Lt. Arty 662 647-2799
21 | Toole, Virgil C. Virgil C. Toole J. M. Toole

92 Enid Teasdale Road
Enid, MS 38927-2403
662 647-2792




22

Toole, Dixon L.

Dixon L. Toole
Pvt. Co. F
215t Miss Inf.

J. M. Toole

. 92 Enid Teasdale Road
Enid, MS 38927-2403
662 647-2792

23 | Toole, Joseph T. Joseph T. Toole J. M. Toole
Pvt. Co. F 92 Enid Teasdale Road
21 Miss Inf. Enid, MS 38927-2403
662 647-2792
24 | Toole, James I. James |. Toole J. M. Toole

Pvt. Co. F
215 Miss Inf.

92 Enid Teasdale Road
Enid, MS 38927-2403
662 647-2792

25 | Lauderdale, Samuel Lauderdale
Samuel Sergeant Major

, 2" Tenn. Cavalry

26 | Fain, William D. William D. Fain
Pvt. Co. H

, 51°t VA Inf.

27 | Davis, Edward L. ‘Edward L. Davis

Put. Co.G
BN Cays

28

Porter,R. B

29

Abel, William A.

PVt. Co. A
38t Miss Cavalry

'Wiliia m‘ A Abel

Nathan Wright

30

Tallahatchie Rifles

Tallahatchie
Rifles
Camp #2287

31

Worley, Ephraim E.

Ephraim E. Worley
Pvt. Co. K
31° LA Inf.

Merry Worley

32

Davis, William E.

William E. Davis
Sgt., Co. |
58 AL Inf.

Merry Worley

33

Fain, Henry B.

Henry B. Fain
Pvt., Co. |
5t VA Inf.

34

Teasley, William B.

William B. Teasley
Pvt. Co. A
30t Reg. MS Vols.

Nick Crutcher




40 |

Fountain, J, B.

35 | Bailey, John W. John W. Bailey
34 1t. ComE
1%* Reg Ark Cav
36 | Wells, John W. John W. Wells
Sgt. Co. K
. 48" ALVolInf. | |
37 | Havard, Murdock Murdock Havard | Gainsville Violunteers
Corp, Co. A SCV Camp 373
11/17 AR Inf. ¢/o Jim Huffman
1230 Stemwood Drive:
Picayune, MS 39466
Huffmani2344®@bellsouth.net
. . 601 916-1783
38 | Hailey; James '
139 | Jewell, Wm Henry

J. B. Fountain
Put:Co. A =~
“ MSinfantry, .

Gainsville Volunteers

SCV Camp 373

c/o Jim Huffman

1230 Stemwood Drive
Picayune, MS 39466
Huffmani2344 @bellsouth.net
601:916-1783

) F A. Wright

41 | Wright, F. A. ] Gainsville Volunteers
s PutsCo. E : SCV Camp 373
40thAL i.'nfantry‘ c¢/o Jim Huffman .
ST ' ;.- 1230 Stemwood Drive
. | Picayune, MS 35466
- | Huffman12344 @belisouth.net
. 601 916-1783
42 | Holder, James James McDaniel
McDaniel Holder
Co. D Moreland’s
43 | Andrews, James " 'Robert James Andrews. Nancy Johnson Long
Robert - CeAChlefBUgler e 160 Rivoli Downs Drive
Phiiliﬁs"[_e"gion,“GJAi;; Macon, Georgia 31210
S e | 478 954-4234
44 | McCowen, It. Benjamin Butler ?| Nancy Johnson Long

Benjamin Butler

- McCowen €o. K

53 Rgt. McCowen Grds

| 160 Rivoli Downs Drive
| Macon, Georgia 31210




| 478 954-4234

45 | Stephenson, Miles Pvt. Miles Bart
Bart Stephenson Co. F
_ 37 AL Infantry
46 | Rial, John John Rial J.R. Estill
Corp. Co. E 1072 Village Shore Drive
17t LA Regt. Canyon-Lake, Texas
830 660-5133
47 | SCV Camp 1838 SCV Camp 1838 J. R. Estill
Gustav Hoffman 1072 Village Shore Drive
NB Texas Canyon Lake, Texas
- ' 830 660-5133
48 | Shoemake, Michael David Shoemake
49 | Robertson, A. J. David Shoemake




Melissa Scott

From: _ Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:17 PM
To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Re: Greg Stewart

Attachments: GregStewartsEmail.pdf

Yes, Friday morning is finé and very timely. | just got another email from Greg Stewart which clearly.
shows his bullying and'his intent.to violate-the Secretary of States admonishment that as a convicted
felon he is not to involve himself inany financial matter involving Beauvoir. You can tell by his tone
that he has no regard for the law or staff at Beauvoir.

Tom

Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library

On Wed, Jan 24, 2018 at 1:41 PM, Melissa Martin <mmartin@msbar.org> wrote:

, Thanks for checking in. Are you available Friday morningto discuss the docu ments?
i

Melissa Selman Martin
Deputy General Counsel
The Mississippi Bar
P.O. Box 2168

Jackson, MS 39225-2168

Telephone: 601.048.0568

i Fax: 601.608.7869



¢ www.mshar.org

From: Tom Payne [mailto:drtompayne @gmail.com]
1 Sent: Wednesday; January 24,2018 11:45 AM

| To:Melissa Martin <mmartin@msbar.org>

i Subject: Greg Stewart

Just touching base.to make sure you got the info you requested. If you have had some time to

' review and have any guestions please advise. | had a meeting with Mr. Forte one of the letter writers
and he mentioned the subject matter without indicating awareness of the Beauvoir's documents sent
- to'you guys. Thanks for your time in responding.

| Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
i Executive Director/General Counsel

| The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library




Kiisaa Stevens

From: Greg Stewart [gregstewart@cablecone.nef]

Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 2:34 PM

To: 'Kitsaa Stevens'; "Tom Payne' :

Ce: ‘ *Johnny McDowaell’; ‘Jess;e Sanford’; ‘Frances Delashmit'; 'Mike Wooten'; 'Marc Thompson';
‘Jeff Barnes'- .-

Subject:. " RE: Finishing the Walkway

Attachménts: image001 )pg

Kitsaa,

| communicated my desire -t‘o wrap up the Br-icksfor“ Beauvoir project on January, 9 (see below).

There is an Executme Councﬂ meetmg thlS Saturday where | expect the subject to.come up and some kind of accounting.
if.1.don‘t have. anythmg from: Beauvexr (check made: payable to the engraver oran accountmg, of a date certain when the
check:can: be delivered fo the epgravery: ;the:memberswill only have their: m‘agmatxons If Dr. Payne has another
tummy-ache: and -doesn't come to do. b gular (requared) EC.Beauvoir Diféctor’s Report: this: Saturday dt 9:30 at the
War Memorlal Building 1 have no information to head off any wild eonjecture.

Thé engraver, Alan Orlicek; is standing by to receive the orders-and I am-ready té. give him what | have but I-have noticed
theinformation sent to me'included bricks already properly engraved and placed. This means I-rieed to come back out
thera (again) and see that we dor’t request engravings-of some bricks twice.

I did: {in'the January 9™ email) request that.a check be written to'the eng‘raverfrom the restricted account. I'have heard
hothing; from:yau-or-anyone-else at Beauvoir regarding this: | was told that this particular restricted account balance
would never dip'below 5K. This pains me as | was careful not to ‘use’that money, ever, for anything: other than Walkway
related.expenses. | left about 25K there. Now, with:no check, evento payfor the'bricks: to be engraved that people '
have paxd for, | am left wondering how we'can finish, orif there isany money left atall.

ifit makes it easier you can simply reply to this email and let me know when |-can send out-what is probably gomg to be
the second to last order as we close this part of this project that the Division is watching closely.

Greg

From: Greg Stewart [mailto:gregstewar{@cableone.net]

Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2018 3:05 PM

To: 'Kitsaa Stevens' <kstevens@beauveir.org>; ‘Tom Payne’ <driginpayne@gmail.com> _

€c: Yohnny McDowell' <johnnvmcdowell @bellsouth.net>; Jessie Sanford’ <jessiesanford101@comcast.net>; 'Frances
Delashmit' <frances.delashmit@gmail.com>; 'Mike Wooten' <pftr72@aocl.com>; ‘Marc Thompson'
<marc.thompson@scvwealithmanagement.com>

Subject: Finishing'the Walkway

Kitsaa,

I am ready to gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Beauvoir in early June. | expect to be back
and forth from North Mississippi a few times between now and then so picking them up at no cost to anyone can be
done.

What | need is for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks needed to finish the Walkway
{63,108.00 for 124 properly done bricks). That can be mailed directly to Crlicek or Tom can hand the check to me on the
27" when we are both at the EC meeting in Jackson. | plan to leave that Saturday meeting early after my business there

1



Melissa Scott

From: Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 25, 2018 2:25 PM
To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Fwd: Finishing the Walkway

My response to thé email from Greg Stewart of yesterday. Would 10:30 be a good time to call
tomorrow.

Tom

Dr. Thomas E. Payhe J.D.; Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library

--------- Forwarded message ~----—----

From: Tom Payne <ditonipay ne;fuomau com=>

Date: Thu, Jan 25, 2018 at 2:00 PM

Subject: Fwd: Finishing the Walkway

To: Jeff Barnes <emgl666{@yahoo.con™>, OWEN MCDOWELL <johnnymcdowell@@bellsouth.net>, Jessie
Sanford <J es»lesanfordlOl@uomcaat net>; Boyce Delashmit <boyce.delashmit@contractfab.com>, Knox
Poole <sledgeall7{@gmail.com>, Rick Forte <rfortesr{@att.net>, Mike Wooten <Pfir72(@aol.com™, Marc
Thompson <mar¢.thompson{@scvwealthmanagement.com™>, Kitsaa Stevens <kstevens@@beauvoir.org>

Commander Barnes,

Relating to the EC meeting on Saturday, | wanted to take this opportunity to again thank you
for your courtesy in your recent email. I had briefly discussed the matter with Rick Forte and
appreciate his guidance, too. I regularly meet with Rick when he comes down for stays in the Hayes
Cottage and it is hoped that these briefings will also help in communication with the SCV. In an email,
‘yesterday afternoon Greg Stewart made reference to my required attendance and | wanted to make
sure that the SCV was aware of Beauvoir's position regarding Greg Stewart and the Bricks for
Beauvoir program. | was not present at the last Board meeting and have not been privy to any of
those minutes and therefore am not in a position to alter the current practice relating to the Bricks.
The only Board minutes that | have seen were dated Feb 15, 2015, in which the Board of Beauvoir
turned the Bricks for Beauvoir project and all proceeds over to Beauvoir. According to Greg he is now
the Ambassador for Bricks and he has requested, in a separate email, that he be given
approximately $3000.00 dollars to pay the Brick engravor. | cannot authorize any expenditure of
Beauvoir funds for a job that has not been invoiced or completed and it is my legal opinion that Greg
cannot be associated with or have influence over any of the charitable projects or funds solicited by

1



I did (in the January 9" email) request that a check be written to the engraver from the restricted account. I
have heard nothing from you or anyone else at Beauvoir regarding this. T was told that this particular restricted
account balance would never dip below 5K. This pains me as I was careful not to use that money; ever, for
anything other than Walkway related expenses. I left about 25K there. Now, with no check, even to pay for the

bricks to be engraved that people have paid for, I am left wondering how we. can finish, or if there is any money
left at all.

Ifi it makes it easier you can simply reply to this email and let me know when I can send out what is probably
oomg to. be the second to last order as we close this part of this project that the Division is watching closely.

Greg

From Grecr Stewart [maﬂto oregste\x an @ cableone net]

Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2018 3:05 PM

Tot 'Kitsaa Stevens' <kstevens@beauvoir.ore™>; 'Tom Payne' <drtompayne/@email com>

Cc: Johnay McDowell <10hnm mcdou eH(?I bellsouth.net>; Jessie Sanford’ <jessiesanford101@comeast.net>;
-‘Frances Delashmit' <frances.delashmit@gmail.com™; ‘Mlke Wooten' <pfir72@#ol.coni>; ‘Marc Thompson'
<mare thompson{@scvwealthmanagement.com>

Siibject: Finishing the Walkway

Kitsaa,

I am ready to gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Beauvoir in early June. I expect to
be back and forth from North Mississippi a few times between now and then so picking them up at no cost to
anyone can be done.

What I need is for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks needed to finish the
Walkway ($3,100.00 for 124 properly done bricks). That can be mailed directly to Orlicek or Tom can hand the
check to me on the 27" when we are both at the EC meeting in Jackson. I plan to leave that Saturday meeting
early after my business there and go on north (and can go through Arcola). Sadly, I will have to miss the
Executive Director’s regular Beauvoir report later in the meeting. Orlicek already has the right size bricks, right
color, and is able to engrave them deeply enough so that the product is the same from the Archway to the Tomb
of the Unknown Confederate Soldier.



Melissa Scott

From: Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2018 12:48 PM
To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Re: Stewart Reinstatement

Melissa,

Thanks, Mr. Sullivan is a little skittish but is willing to speak to you for background info and to
confirm soeme of the information you already have. He advised that he wouild be willing speak to you
and provide you with some names of others who were affected. His phone number is 228-669-3491
he was a secretary to the combined board and is privy to-the issues mentioned.

Tom

Dr. Thomas E. Payne J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis Home and Presidential Library

On Tue, Jan 30, 2018 at 12:36 PM, Melissa Martin <mmartinf@msbar:erg> wrote:

: Tom,

- M. Stewart s dep051t10n will not reconvene until February 13™ /T mentioned before I would be out of town the
“Sullivan next Monday afternoon. And I’ll send any affidavits
to you next week also. Thank you for all your help with this matter.

i Missye

Melissa Selman Martin

- Deputy General Counsel



- The Mississippi Bar
P.O. Box 2168

Jackson, MS 39225-2168

: Telephone: 601.948.0568

Fax: 60L.608.7869

 www.msbar.org




Melissa Scott

From: Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, February 2, 2018 1:25 PM

To: Melissa Martin

Subject: Dr. Sullivan's documents

Attachments: Alfordstatement.pdf; DrSullivansListofNamesStewartCase.pdf;

ResignationLetterMuseumDirector.pdf

Missy,

Dr. Sullivan sent me an envelope of documents, most of which | had already. he gave me a list of
names and phore-numbers of interested parties. | include that in this.email. He also had two
documents that:l did not have and thought may be of interest to you for subject and background. If |
can be of any further assistance please do not hesitate to ask.

Dr. Themas E. Payne-J.D., Ph.D.
Executive Director/General Counsel
The Jefferson Davis: Home and Presidential Library
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.. From: Greg Stewart [maiito: )

Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2017 7:32 PM
To: 'Kitsaa Stevens' <kstevens@beauvoir.org>; dcobb@beauvoir.org
Subject: Jason Smith Beauvoir Brick announcement

-Can you guys think of a way to make this announcement on your Beauvoir Facebook and website? If the 66 go down in

August that leaves “The Last 100", a catchy phrase-that-will sell half of that just by the mere utterance. With any luck we
can place the very last brick in some. pomp and circumstance during the peak atténdance at Fall Muster (and get more
media coverage for Beauvair).

| amy working the marketing of this from the Division side;.any help y }/) !Zf ¢ K/fé
Greg, )

In response to your email above:

All events must be cleared through Beauvoir's Executive Direc
All publications announcing events at the Beauvoir property nv
All everits that take place on the Beauveir property must bavez

The proper procedures were not followed for this-event and as-
Programs, | have been instructed to inform youthat the event y 1
1:00pm: <will niot take place on the Beauvoir property.

1 respectfully ask that any correspondence that'you have-sent out by email be rescinded.

Kitsaa Stevens

Director of Development & Programs

Beauvoir, the Jefferson Davis Home o Presidential Library
2244 Beach Blvd. Biloxs, Ms. 39531

kstevens@beauvoir.org

228.388.4400 ex216 Fux # 228.388.7800

= & This email has been checked for viruses by AVG antivirus software.
__F WwWw.avo.com




11/14/2017 RE: your uniform - driompayne@gmai.com - Gmail
, . Morz

o me

me Greg Stewart [mallto ragstewart abinone ne
Sent: Tuesday, Nevember 14, 20179:34 AM

Tor Jay Peterson <!EEL€3?‘SG§’)@DEBL‘:’JI«.0(_'2>

Subject; Ré: your-uniform

"My" bricks were the last of the original run, which is why I did some serious hand wringing about the si
and color before I 'went.to J ackson, there and back the same day, in the rain, to-make double dog sure theéi
was a match. T physwally took a brick from Don's original pile to compare it to the partial pallet in the
brickyaid. 1 wasn't going to bring back bricks, even free ones, that couldn't be used to complete the
Walkway: in the way that people wanted. So, stop the presses. We can use the larger bricks somewhere:
They have-a second side. ‘So long as they are not placed too near the others we mlc,ht get away with plag
tham in-some part of the larvez plc‘l'ure Otherwme the purchasers were told that the bncks Were for the
WEre too b1g mn thc_ Wa_lkway It simply isn't going to work The font is right, I will say that b.m is
noticeably not as deep or bold as all the others. So, I need to sit down and run the numbers. Apparently,
there has been a significant use of rnan hours and money in the in-house effort, that, so far, looks like a
Keystone-Cop exereise. However, thewup front expenditures may be over and AFTER the Wallkeway
completion, may be the best course. Iwas told Sunday thai I was now the "Ambassador" of the program.
prany 1y mind that is'to finish the Walleway only.

How did the bricks that aretoo large get to Beauvoir?

~ . o -

A,
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Kitsaa Stevens

From: Jessie Sanford [jessiesanford 101@comcast.nef}

Sent: Tuesday, January 8, 2018 3:29 PM

To: Greg Stewart

Ce: Kiisaa Stevens; Tom Payne; Johnny McDowell; Boyce Delashmit; Mike Wooten; Marc
Thompson

Subject: Re: Finishing the Walkway

Greg

Do we have orders for all 124 bricks?

Jessie Sanford, 1SG USA (RET)
Commander

LTG Nathan Bedford Forrest
Camp 1353 SVC

106 East 6ty Ave.

Petal MS 39465

601-447-1929 ‘
iessiesanford10l@comeast.net

Live The Chargell!

On Jan 9, 2018, at 3:04 PM, Greg Stewart <gregstewarti@cableone.net> wrote:

Kitsaa,

I-am:ready to'gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Beauvair in early.June. | expect 1o be back
and forth from North Mississippi'a few times between now and then so picking them up at ho costto anyone can be
done.

What | need is for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks needed to finish the Walkway
{$3,700.00 for 124 properly done bricks). That can be mailed directly to Orlicek or Tom-can hand the check to me on the
27" when we are both at the EC meeting in Jackson. | plan to leave that Saturday meeting early after my business there
and go:on north {and can go through Arcola). Sadly, | will have to miss the Executive Director’s regular Beauvoir report
later in the meeting. Orlicek already has the right size bricks, right coler, and is able to engrave them.deeply enough so
that the product is the same from the Archway o the Tomb of the Unknown Confederate Soldier.

<image002.jpg>

{ have a copy of the 40 or so orders that were pending. If there have been more please forward the same to me so that |
can send them on to Alan in the right order and complete the index, which was not in the Cemetery the last time |
looked where people might actually aitempt to lacate “their” Brick.

When I get the current order in | will go zhead and update the index to be placed in the Cemetery on my own dime.
There is an index in the JDPL and | will bring the updated and laminated new sheets to supplement that one. If there is
one in éf:the Library please advise me so that | can update it as weli.

Finally, it is my understanding that the lot of oversized bricks is somewhere in Brookhaven. Originally there were 498 or
so? The gray truck can easily haul 500 bricks but I can retrieve those too in my truck oby looping through those parts on
some trip south from Jackson or Oxferd. lust need the address. If we can find 2 match or small project (if we can find no
match) for those then we need to have possession of them soeoner rather than later {before they walk off).

1




Greg
Ambassador for the Bricks for Beauvoir

<InkedBrick comparison LILjpg>




rt shared a memaory,

Meet Alan Olicek, the engraver of the Bricks for Beauvoir Walkway.
He lives in .Arcbla;,'.Mi ssippi. Engraving bricks is an arl. You don't just buy a new machine:and
_then you aré an engraver.......

o
Eife

[ikeShow more reactions

Comiment
4 Jason Smith and 3 others




1/9/2018 Gmail - Finishing the Walkway

Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>

F:mshmg the Waikway

2 'nessages

Gi‘eg Stewart <gregstewart@cableone .net> Tue, Jan 9, 2018 at 3:04 PM
: Kitsaa Stevens- <kstevens@beauvoir.org>, Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>

Johnny McDowell <JohnnymchWell@bellsouth net>, Jessie Sanford <jessiesariford101@comcast.net>, Frances

Delashmit<frances: delashmit@grmail.com>, Mike Wooten <pftr72@aol.com>, Marc Thompson

<mare. thompson@scvwealthmanagemant com>

Kitsaa,

l:am ready to gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Beativoir in early June. | expectio be back
‘and forth'from North Mississippi 2 few times between now and then so picking them up at-nio cost to ‘anyone can be done.

‘Wha'{ 1 need“"i's' for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks ‘needed to finish {he 'Wallcway

27"“ when we'are both at the EC mentxng in Jackson. | plan to leave‘that Saturday meetmg eariy aﬂer my busmess there
):08 N (and carn go through Arcola). Sadly 1 wnll have to mISS the Executxve Director’s regu}ar Beauvo:r report
i k

“ay

I have a copy of the 40 or so orders that were pending. If there have been mare please forward the same to me so that |
can send them on to Alan in the right order and complete the index, which was not in the Cemetery the last time [ looked
where people might actually attempt to locate “their” Brick.

When | get the current order in | will go ahead and update the index to be placed in the Cemetery on my own dime.
There is an index in the JDPL and | will bring the updated and laminated new sheets to supplement that one. Ifthere is
one in the Library please advise me so that | can update it as weil.

hiips:/imail.gcogle.comimailicalu/0f?ui=2&ik=505d8efd 1e&jsver=pkG7biCEwPU.en.&view=pl&search=inbox&th=160dcd32d06b551b&simi=160dcbd7e
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1/9/2018

Gmail - Finishing the Walkway

Finally, it is my understanding that the lot of oversized bricks is somewhere in Brookhaven. Originally there were 498 or
s0? The gray truck can easily haul 500 bricks but | can retrieve those toa in my truck oby lcoping through those parts on

some {rip south from Jackson or Oxford. Just need the address. If we can find a match or small project (if we can find no
match) for those then we need to have possession of them sooner rather than later (before they watk off).

Greg

Ambassador for the Bricks for Beauvoir

‘inkedBrick comparison__LLjpg
{ 557K

Jessie Sanford <jessiesaniord101@comeast:nets

To: Greg Stewart <gfegstewart@cablecne.net>

Ce: Kitsaa Stevens <kstevens@beauvoir.erg>, Tom Payne <drtompayne@gmail.com>, Johnny McDowell
<johnnymcdowell@belisouth.net>, Boyce Delashmit <frances. delashmn@gmarl com>, Mike' Woeten <pftr72@aol.com>, Marc
Thompson <marc. thompson@scvweaﬁhmanagementcorn>

Greg

Do we have-orders for all 124 bricks?

Jessie Sanford,1SG USA (RET)
Commander »

L7TG Nathan Bedford Forrest.
Camp 1353 SVC

106 East 6th Ave.

Petal MS 38465
501-447-1929
jessiesanford101@comecast.net

Live The.Charge!ll!

nttps:i/mail.google.com/maillca/ui0f7ui=2&ik=5b5d8eid 1e&jsver=pkG7biCEwPU. en . &view=pi&search=inbox&ih=180dcc32d06b551b&simi=16Cdchd7e ..

On Jan 8, 2018, at 3:04 PM, Greg Stewart <gregstewan@cableone.net> wroie

Kitsaa,

i am ready to gin back up the Bricks project and finish it by Reunion there at Seauvoir in eariy June. |
expect to be back and forth from North Mississippi a few times between now and then so picking them
up at no cost to anyone can be dona.

What | need is for a check to be cut to Alan Orlicek for the entire number of Bricks needed tg finish the
Waikway {$3,100.00 for 124 properly done bricks). That can be mailed directiy to Grlicek or Tom can
hand the check to me on the 27" when we are hoth at the EC meeting in Jackson. i plan to leave that
Saturday meeting early after my business there and go on north {and can go through Arcela). Sagly, |
will have to miss the Executive Director’s regular 8eauvoir report later in the meeting. Orlicek already
has the right size bricks, right color, and is able to engrave them deeply enough so that the product is
the same from the Archway to the Tomb of the Unknown Confederate Soidier.

Tue, Jan 9, 2018 at 3:28 PM
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‘Reference: Antiquities Act

THOMAS E. PAYNE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND GENERAL COUNSEL

BEAUVOIR

October 17, 2017
Via Email attachment

Owen McDowell

béar President McDowell,

Pursuant to your request | have completed the legal research you requ’
of Mississippi. I have attached the “Antiquity Act” Miss. Code Ann,-39-7-1 et. -
Government Historic Preservation Law” Miss. Code Ann. 39-13-1et. seq, For tl -
I will addressyour two questions in order.

1.) Question: Please explain what legal “risk” we would be taking anc
continue to display the flags, even on a limited basis.

‘Research Results: The Antiquities At (The Act} sanctions violators in tWo ways. The first is by
CIVIL faw and the second is by CRIMINAL law. See, 39-7-5; 39-7-11; 39:7:33: Beauvoir's “risk”
undér the CIVIL law is by injunction and fine. In addition, Beauvair could be forcedto pay attorney
fee's and any cost of enforcement. The second sanction is-under thé CRIMINAL law. The sanction
for a CRIMINAL violation “any pérson violating this chapter or any provisions are guilty of a
misdemeanor, punishable by up to 30 days in Jail and up to' $5000.00 fine per count.” “each day
of continued violation of any provision is a separate and distinct offense. The CIVIL sanction will
be against Beauvmr as-a corporate body the CRIMINAL sanction will be -against any individual
authorizing or otherwise participating in the violation. It is a violation to “alter or disfi igure” an
historical site. ‘Alteration “means any change in the exterior appearance of a landmark or a
structure.” See, 39-13-2 MCA. In correspondence to then Executive Director Greg Stuart, Ken
Ppool, Mississippi Department of Archives and History, advised that”. . . Therefore, it is
inappropriate to fly flugs, Confederate or otherwise from the house.” see, attached document.
This correspondence gives NOTICE to Beauvoir and any violation after this notice is therefore
easier proved and raises the culpability and criminal liability to any actor who, with notice, violates
the statute. Ken Ppool later reinforced this position in answering the same request from the
current Executive Director in February of 2017.

Legal Opinion: Based on the above, it Is my legal opinion that Beauvoir is on notice that to place
any flag on or about the house would “alter” its exterior appearance and be in violation of the
Antiquity Act and our “risk” is both CIVIL and CRIMINAL.




THOMAS E. PAYNE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND GENERAL COUNSEL

2.) Question: If a complaint were to be filed, who would have the burden to prove either of the
Flags violate “The Act”, what Agency is charged with enforcing “The Act” and what are the
potential penalties.?

Research Results: The penalties hdve been discussed above. A complaint can be filed by any
citizen or law enforcement officer. Seg, 39-7:37 and 39-7-39, The Agency charged with oversite of the
compliance with the Act oni the State level, isthe: Miss. Dept. of Archives and History. See, 39-7-5 MCA. As
with most State Agencies the enforcement powers are carried out. by the Attorney General of Mississippi.
In addition to the Miss. Dept of Archivesand Hlstory, Beauvoir, has been listed by the City of Biloxias a
Landmark site and is therefore under the purview-of local ordinances and State law as it relates to the
“Mississippi Local Government Historic:Pres: i Law” See, 39-13<1 MCA. The:sanctions for violation
under this chapter are the same for the violation of the 'Antiq:u‘itiéé Act. :

3.) Question: Are there any éxceptions; waivers,-or varmnces, that we can seek that would not place
Beguvoirin leopardy?

Research Resulis: There are no:waiversas such in'theé Antiquities Act. The ohly waiveror variance
available was found in the Local Gove oric Preservation Law which allows for a local
historical society to.give an 6wneraCertificate: of Appro prfateness Itis unclear whether the State
Department of Archives-would i recogmze such document.

Legal Opinion: The “excepftibn;.waiiféri of variance” would only be: available on a local level.
However, the Certificate of Appropriateness is’based:on'the same standards of the State law and
it is unlikely that we could get a-local varfance to flyflags from thé Jefferson Davis Home.

If you have any questions of tén;erns relating to this matter please do not hesitate to contact me.

7
Respectfully submitted,
— /’ 2

Thomas E. Payne
Executive Director/General Counsel
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2010 Ma%égglppl @@d@
TITLE 79 - CORPORAT]H
AS@@@EA?I@N% AN@ ?ART%%RS%E?S
Chapter 11 - @ﬁmm Nonshare
@@m@r’a@a@m and Religious Societies.
79-11-509 - Effective date of registration;
denial, suspension or revocation of
registration or exemption; grounds for
denial, suspension or ?@V@ca&a@ﬁ
procedure; violations and penalties.

§ 79-11-509. Effective date of registration; denial, suspension or revocation of
registration or exemption; grounds for denial, suspension orrevocation;
g)rocedure violations and penaities.

(1) The Secretary of State shall. deny suspend or revoke a reglstratlon oran exempt:on
for the:following reasons:

(a) The application for registration or renewal is incomplete.
(b) The application or renewal fee (where applicable) has not been paid.

(c) A document filed with the Secretary of State contains one or more false or
misleading statements or omits material facts.

(d) The charitable contributions have not been or are not being applied for the purpose
or purposes stated in the documents filed with the Secretary of State.

(e) The applicant or regisirant has violated or failed to comply with any provisions of this
chapter or any rule or order thereunder.

(f) Any applicant, registrant, officer, director, or partner of the applicant or registrant, or
any agent or employee thereof who has been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor
involving misrepresentation, misapplication or misuse of the money or property of



another maintains a position where he or she has access to or control over the funds of
the charitable organization.

(g) The applicant or registrant has engaged in the use or employment of dishonesty,
fraud, deception, misrepresentation, false promise or false pretense.

(h) The applicant or registrant has had the authority to engage in charitable or fund-

raising activities denied, revoked or suspended by the Secretary of State or any other
state or jurisdiction.

(i) The applicant or registrant has been convicted of any criminal offense committed in
connection with the performiance of activities regulated under Sections 79-11-501
through 79-11-529 or any criminal offensé mvohnng untruthfulness or dishonesty or any
criminal offense relating-adversely-fo the registrant's.or applicant's fitness to perform
activities regulated by Sections 79-11-50% through 79-11-529. For the purposes of this
paragraph, a plea of guilty, hon vult;-nolo contendere or.any other similar disposition of
alleged criminal activity shall be deeméd a:conviction.

(i) Any applicant, registrant, officer; director, or partner of the applicant or registrant, or
any agent, volunteer or employee thereof, who has been convicted under federal or
state law of any criminal offense mvolvmg acts against’ children maintains a position
where he or she is in close contact with-children,

(k) Any officer, director, partner, employee;.agent or volunteer-has accrued three (3) or
more unremediated citations issued by thé Sécrétary of State pursuant to this section.

(I) The applicant or registrant has engaged in other forms of mlsconduct as may be
determined by the rules adopted by the Secretary of State.

(2) The Secretary of State shall notify the applicant or licensee of his intent to deny,
suspend or revoke a license. The notn" cation shall contain the reasons for the action
and shall inform him of his right to request an administrative hearing within thirty (30)
days of receipt of the notification. The denial, suspension or revocation shall become
effective thirty (30) days after receipt of the notification unless a request for an
administrative hearing is received by the Secretary of State before the expiration of the
thirty (30) days. If a hearing is requested and the denial, suspension or revocation is
upheld, the denial, suspension or revocation shall become effective upon the service of
the final administrative decision on the applicant or licensee.

(3) Registration shall become effective no later than noon of the thirtieth day after a
completed application is filed, if no denial order is in effect and no proceeding is pending
under this chapter. The Secretary of State may, by rule or order, specify an earlier
effective date, and the Secretary of State may, by order, defer the effective date until
noon of the thirtieth day after the filing of any amendment.



(4) Whenever it appears to the Secretary of State that any person has engaged in or is
about to engage in any act or practice constituting a violation of any provision of this
chapter or any rule or order hereunder, he may, in his discretion, seek one or more of
the following remedies in addition to other remedies authorized by law:

(a) Issue a cease and desist order, with or without a prior hearing against the person or
persons engaged in the prohibited activities, directing them to cease and desist from
further illegal activity;

(b) Administratively dissolve or seek the judicial dissolution of a domestic corporation
that is a charitable orgamzatlon or revoke the certificate of authority of a foreign
corporation that is a charitable organization; or

(c) Issue an'order’i xmposmg an administrative penalty up to a maximum of Twenty-five
Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) for each offense, each violation to be considered as a
separates offense in a: single: proceeding or a series of related proceedings;

(d) For the purpose of determining the amount or extent of a sanction, if any, to be
imposed under paragraph (b) or (c) of this subsection, the Secretary of State shall
consider, among other factors, the:frequency, persistence and willfulness of the:conduct
constituting a violation of this. chapter or a rule promulgated thereunder or an order of
the Secretary of State, thé number of persons adversely affected by the conduét, and
the resources of the person committing the violation.

(5) In-addition to the above remedies, the Secrétary of State may issue a citation to any
person -engaging in any act or practice constituting a violation of any provision of this
chapter.or any rule-or order hereunder. The Secretary of State shall establish rules
providing rémediation of certain citations, and the decision whether to allow such
remediation will be within the Secretary of State's discretion.

(8) Whenever it appears to the Secretary of State or Attorney General that any person
has engaged in or is about to engage in any act or practice constituting a violation of
any provision of Sections 79-11-501 through 79-11-529 or any rule or order thereunder,
either official may, in his discretion, take any or all of the following actions: bring an
action’in-chancery court to obtain a temporary restraining order or injunction to enjoin
the acts or practices and enforce compliance with Sections 72-11-501 through 79-11-
529 or any rule or order thereunder; collect administrative penalties imposed under this
section; or obtain on behalf of a charitable organization the return or repayment of any
property 'or consideration received as private inurement or an excess benefit in violation
of Section 79-11-519(3)(j). Upon a proper showing a permanent or temporary injunction,
restraining order or writ of mandamus shall be granted and a receiver or conservator
may be appointed for the defendant or the defendant's assets. In addition, upon a
proper showing, the court may enter an order of rescission, restitution or disgorgement
directed to any person who has engaged in any act constituting a violation of any
provision of Sections 79-11-501 through 79-11-529 or any rule or order thereunder. In
addition the court may impose a civil penalty up to a maximum of Twenty-five Thousand



Dollars ($25,000.00) for each offense, and each violation shall be considered as a

separate offense in a single proceeding or a series of related proceedings. The court
may not require the Secretary of State or Attorney General to post a bond.

Sources: Laws, 1991, ch. 515, § 5; reenacted and amended, 1992, ch. 446, § 5;
Laws, 1997, ch. 444, § 6; Laws, 2009, ch. 547, § 8, eff from and after July 1, 2009.
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tha charitable organization.

It you read the whole statute the only part whére there-is any discretion is in the second

part where the discretion is allowed to the SoS to not ramp .up.the penalties, orto ramp
them up; depending upon the situation. But, clearly, the very first line of the statue

where the word "shall" appears give rio discretion at-all. If section (f) really applied to

‘me-then:Beauvoir's charity status would have had to béén revoked or suspended, if
even for one day.

BTW: Beauvoir's status has been expired now on fwo occasions sifice my.departure, never while | was
there (or before | came along) and not because of anything | ever did. Late in'2018 they were expired,
and they have been expired since September 15, 2020, for the same reason: nobody is-tending to the
matter. On this day, December 27, 2020 they remain expired, (see attached screen shot).and seem not to
know it. Any solicitation for donations since September 15 are illegal, along with the use of the annual
appropriation.
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The Jefferson Davis Home & Presidential Library
Dr. Tom Payne

‘Executive ‘Director/General Connsel

Kim Anderson, CFE

Senior Examiner

Charities Division

125 South Congress Street
PO Box 136

Jackson, Mississippi 39205

Dear Ms. Anderson,

Pursuant to your request please find Beauvoir’s explanation to your Findings in the recent aud’it’
exam. I have‘addréssed each of the Findings by number below:

Finding Number: 1 One.or more:agents-or employees appear to have a conviction.

‘The remarks section expressed concern that Beauvoir allowed a convicted felon to-have actess or
controls.of charitable funds. The statute referenced was 79-11-509 (1)(f) and was stated:in totd in'the
Finding. The Finding specifically mentioned the employee or agent by name. In explanation, it is trbe that
Greg Stewart was an agent, volunteer, and later an employee of Beauvoir. Mr. Stewart‘did have|access
and control of charitable fiinds during the time frame covered by your Audit. Mr. Stewart had disclosed
the fact of his felony conviction and both the Secretary of State and Beauvoir had knowlédge of the fact
of a felony conviction as early-as 2014. Greg Stewart was the acting Executive Director and the day to day
financial affairs were carried out by a Business Manager supervised by Greg Stewart. Based u_;?on my
investigation of the circumstances and statements made to me, neither Greg Stewart or the Business
Manager, Rusty Trowbridge, were aware that the conviction was of the type that was contemplated by
the Charities Act. As both the Executive Director and General Counsel for Beauvoir, my investigation
revealed that Mr. Stewart’s felony conviction was pursuant to 18 U.S.C 371 Conspiracy. The elenjents of
Conspiracy are such that only require an agreement to commit an unlawful act and some overt act in
furtherance. Mr. Stewart was convicted of conspiracy whose elements of conviction do not [involve
misrepresentation, misapplication or misuse of the money or property of another as expressed ir 79-11-
509. Finally, neither Mr. Trowbridge or Mr. Stewart are currently employed by Beauvoir and as a ljcensed
Attorney in Mississippi, | am fully cognizant of the Charities Act and all statutes that apply to a Charitable
organization in Mississippi and Beauvoir will continue to fully comply with al[ legal requirements of the
Charities Act.

2244 Beach Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi 39531, Office/Cell: 228-25 7-9334 Fax: 228-388-3177 driompayne@gmail.com
i g — =



Finding Mumber: 2 There appears to be missing memos on checks or in ledgers emitting the trapsaction
purpose.

The remarks section expressed concern that many of the checks reviewed did not record the|purpose
of the transaction; that the purpose of the transaction. should be inicluded in the memo section orjledgers.
The statute referenced was 79-11-518 and was stated in toto in the Finding. In explanation, Beauvoir
would appear to have complied with the statute. Beauvoir has kept true ¢ and correct books and records of
solicitation activities, and our books and records were and are-open to inspection:at all reasonab)le times
by the Secretary of State or the Attorney General. Our records are retained for the minimum [of three
years. Beauvoir employs an accounting firm that audits its books. annually and'the auditor’s findipgs have
never expressed a concern about our accounting system and have: attested that Beauvoi follows
generally accepted accounting procedures (GAAP). However, riow that we-are aware that the
of State would like for us to put the purposes of the transactions in-the‘memo sections:and/or ledger,
Beauvoir will fully comply with this requirement in the future.

Finding Number: 3 Documentation appears: insufficient to determine if funds were .applie to the
charitable purpose.

‘The remarks section requested how multiple animals being housed.and cared for with charitable funds
on Beauvoir. property fall within your charitable purpose. The statute reférenced was 79-11-509 pnd was
stated in toto in the Finding. In explanation, Beauvoir's core: mission.is ‘driven by the: wishes of our
benefactor, Varina Davis. Mrs. Davis required and expressed that the Beauvoir property be uged as a
convalescent home forveterans of the Civil War who fought on the s:de of the. Confederacy, that the Davis

missxon Beauvoir prowdes living h:story in the forma, nactors, gardens of the era;; and anii
would have been living on the property during the. Davis era. Beauvo:r also houses and promotes
hvmg.history any artufact or animal that may_ have had- slg

prowde pasture and care for additional ammals dunng the winter season approxzmately six.mol \th:

of the year. The animals on Beauvoir fall within our charitable purpose and provide a more epriching
experience for our school tours and other guests.

Thank you for the opportunity to explain the concerns-and questions listed in the Chantcli: Exam
Summary Report. It is the intent of Beauvair to comp!etely comply with the mandates of the Secrgtary of
State and the Charities Act. Beauvoir welcomes an open dialogue and complete transparency with the
Secretary of State and our dual missior insuring that donors’and patron’s. contributions are used to the
highest and best use and in full compliance with the law. If you have any further questions or copcerns |
would ask that you confine your correspondence to me as the Executive Director, but also the General
Counsel representing Beauvoir in all legal matters.
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James Bailey Halliday
Attorney and Counselor at Law
The BridgeWater Commons, Ste. 204 B
8927 Lorraine Road, Guifport, MS 39503
(228) 861-5759 jhallidayesq@cabieone.net
April 5,2021
The Mississippi Bar |
643 North State Street

Mr. Greg Stewart

2014 Charities Investigator’s Findings and Recommendations

Dr. Tom Payne’s Legal Opinion and Response and Dr. Christopher
Cummins’ Clarification and Response

To whom it may concern:

I have been requested by Mr. Greg Stewart to prowde an opinion regarding
Dr. Payne §.and Dr. Cummins’ response to recent inquiries by the State Bar (and
posmbly other official entities) regarding certain anonymous allegations and
complaints regarding him. My understanding is that these ‘complaints® primarily
reévolve around Mi: Stewart’s position with Beauvoir as its Executive Directo and
his status concerning a distant felony conviction and related matters.

I had the pleasu're of serving Beauvoir as legal counsel regarding specific
htlgatmn matters in the general timeframe of 2014-2019 while Mr. Stewart was
serving as its Bxecutive Director. Therefore, I am generally familiar with the

operations of Beauvoir, the Executive Director and staff, and the Boards of
Beauvoir.

All that being said, I am in agreement with Dr. Payne’s response and legal
opinion, as well as, Dr. Cummins’ recollection of events and clarifications.

Respectfully Submitted,

JBH/jh James Bailey Halliday, Sr.

Member of the Bar of the Supreme Court of the United States of America
Member of the Bar of the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit
Martindale Hubbell Peer Review Rated BV Distinguished 1998-2021
MS BARNO. 2924
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January 21, 2021
The Mississippi Bar
643 North State Street
Jackson, Mississippi 39202

RE: Greg Stewart and the early 2014 Charities investigator’s Findings and Recommendations
To whom it may concern:

| have been asked to recall if during the period of the first-(early 2014) Secretary of State’s
investigation, requested by Beauvoir, through Mr. Greg Stewart, any mention of Greg's status.
was brought up by the Secretary-of State or appeared in her findings.

The answer is uneqguivocally, no.

| was present at the Board meetings leading up to the reception of the Charities Division
Findings and Recommendations; and present at the meetings where the same Findings and
Recommendations were discussed by the board.

Essentially there were some minor coding errors assighed to the Business Manager; but
nothing of any consequence. Even the errors were debatable, but you can’t have an
investigation without some findings:as there-is always room for improvement.

That early 2014 investigation, requested by Mr. Stewart, was related to an issue Beauvoir had
with Beauvoir Foundation, a non-profit whose purpose was initially to raise money for the
institution, but whose purpose later changed, without notice to Beauvoir.

For the purposes of explanation, the later (late 2016) investigation was initiated by membeérs
of our own organization who, for the most part, were aggrieved of Mr. Stewart’s use of the back
acreage on the property as a grazing area for the petting zoo he had established to boost
attendance. The same group fancied the acreage as their sacred Re-Enactor Battlefield and
resented the existence of pony droppings on the place where they were going to fall wounded
the third weekend of October, at the Annual Fall Muster at Beauvoir.

If anyone needs any further clarification about the matters | have covered in this letter, 1 can
be reached at giuseppe398@vahoo.com or by cell at 662-703-0116.

Sincerely,

4 M s M)~
L1C; by
Christopher J. M. Cummins, M.D., M.T. (ASCP)

LTC, USAR
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Combined Boards of Beauvoir
Minutes
April 26, 2014
Jefferson Davis Presidential Library, Board Room

1. Call to order at 10:00 a.m.— Chairman Richard Forie
A. Invoeation — Alan Palmer
Pledges: U. S.Flag, Confederate Flag
B. RollCall - Charles Sullivan — Recording Secretary

Board of Directors:

Pl B: Johnson I, Present
Richard V. Forte Sr. — Chairman Present:
Dr. Christopher Cummings Absent

Alan Palmer Present

Boyce Delashmit Present

Dr, Dan Edney Emeritus Absent

Lamar Roberts — Emeritus Absent

Board of Trustees:

Willace Mason Present
Glenn Taylor Present
‘Rev. Dr. Cecil Fayard Absent

Larry McCluney Present
Charles:Sullivan — Recording Secretary Present
Johin Echols — Emeritus Absent

Celeste Young—UDC Present
Allen Terrell - SCV Present

Greg Stewart—Acting Administrator

Guesis:

Louis Foley, Jerry McWilliams, Dan Johnson, George Bond, Leroy Waller, Paul Young: Dennie
Spence, Daryl Ladner, Jessie Taylor, and Michael Wooten.

C. Approval of the February 8, 2014 Minutes
Rick Forte had the minutes run off during the lunch break as they had not been sent out. These minutes
will be approved at the same time the minutes for this present meeting are approved at our next
Board Meeting.

Motion was made by Wallace Mason to make Greg Stewart the Acting Beauvoir Administrator, seconded
by Larry McCluney. Motion passed unanimously.

Motion was made by Charles Sullivan to accept the resignation of Bertram Hayes-Davis, seconded by
Larry McCluney. Motion passed unanimously.

[I. Reports
A.  Administrator — Greg Stewart



To: Board Members
From: Greg Stewart, Interim Administrator
Date: April 25, 2014

RE: Board meeting April 26, 2014

1 apologize for not having this out earlier. .It has-been an hectic two'months. The following issues were the
onas | know sbout and fall, generally, into two categories:
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%&‘9 % Combined Boards of Beauvoir
g Minutes
@% August9, 2014

Jefferson Davis Presidential Library, Board Room

Callto order;’ at 10:00 a.m.— Chairman Richard Forte
A. Tnvocation — Dr. Cecil Fayard
Pledges: U. S. Flag, Confederate Flag
B. Roll Call — Charles Sullivan — Recording Secretary

Board of Directors:

Paul B. Johnson I .Present
Richard V. Forte Sr. — Chairman Present
Dr. Christopher Cummings Absent
Alan Palmer Present
Boyce Delashmit Present
Dr. Dan Edney — Emeritus Absent
Lamar Roberts — Emeritus Absent

Board of Trustees:

Wallace Mason Present
Bert King Present
Rev. Dr. Cecil Fayard Present.
Larry McCluney Preserit
Charles Sullivan — Recording Secretary ‘Present
John Echols — Emeritus Absent
Celeste Young—UDC Present
Allen Terrell - SCV Present

Greg Stewart—Acting Administrator officially elected Executive Director at this meeting.
Guests:

Approval of the February 8, 2014 and Aprii 26, 2014 minutes
At 10:10 a.m. Motion made by Larry McCluney to approve the minutes, seconded by Alan Palmer.

Note: The election of Executive Director was not on the agenda. The motion below was made in the
Beauvoir Room to which the meeting had been moved because there were so many SCV members in
attendance that there was no room for them to sit around the walls in the Board Room. Hence, the
nexl motion was designed to clear the room except the Board members and the interviewee.

At 10:15 a.m. Wallace Mason made a Motion that the three Executive Director candidates be
interviewed by Boards members alone. This will allow more direct questions. Seconded by Allen
Terrell. Yea—3 Nay—>5. Motion failed.

The Nay votes were: Allan Palmer, Larry McCluney, Bert King, Boyce Delashmit, and Charles
Sullivan.

The interview of the three candidates was therefore held in the Beauvoir Room with all the guests
present. (At9:15 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. the members of the Combined Boards of Beauvoir Personnel



Comumittee met with the three candidates in the Board Room. This allowed the Personnel Committee
Members a look at the candidates before the general session began. The Personnel Commitiee was.
composed of Rev. Cecil Fayard Chairman, Wallace Mason, Alan Palmer and Charles Sullivan. For
this reason the members of the Personnel Committee mostly abstained from asking questions in the
general meeting—they already knew the answer.)

The candidates were interviewed in the Beauvoir Room alphabetically:
Charles Bernard Schmitz

Jog Gregory “Greg” Stewart

Thomas V. Strain Jr. _

Their resumes will be included the Board file for August 9, 2014.

The interviews lasted from. 10:17 a.m. until 11:49 a.m. at which time the Larry McCluney made a
Motion that the Combined Boards of Beauvoir enter Executive Session to vote on personnel and
officers. Motion seconded by Alan Palmer. Motion passed unanimously. At that point the
Combined Boards left the Beauvoir Room and went upstairs fo the Board Room to make the decision.
as to'which of the thrée would be hired and to vote on Board officérs.

At'1:26 p.m. Allen Terrell made a Motion to end the session. Motion seconded by Larry McCluney.
The vots was Unanimous:,

LUNCH

2:15 p.m. The Combined Boards Meeting resumed in the Beauvoir Room.

The election for officers of the Beauvoir Board of Trustees is as follows:
Bert King, Chairman

Larry McCluney, Vice Chairman

Charles Sullivan, Secretary

The election for officers of the Beauvoir Board of Directors is as follows:
Richard V. Forte Sr., Chairman

Boyce Delaschmit, Vice Chairman

Alan Palmer, Secretary

Election for the officers of the Combined Boards of Beauvoir
Richard V. Forte Sr. Chairman

INEED TO KNOW WHO WAS ELECTED VICE
CHAIRMAN

Charles L. Suliivan, Secretary
Wallace Mason. Treasurer

The anncuncement of the Combined Boards of Beauvair choice of Executive Director was
Joe Gregory “Greg” Stewart
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Reports

A. Administrator — Greg Stewart

At 2:45 p.m., Charles Sullivan made a Motion that the Combined Boards of Beauvoir pay $550 for
our museum (JDPL) to join the American Alliance of Museums. Motion was seconded by Allen
Palmer. Motion passed unanimously.

Motion by Paul B. Johnson, 11} to accept the Adminisirator’s (now Executive Director) Repott.
Seconded by Allen Terrell. Motion passed unanimously.

V. Committee Reports

A. Executive — Rick Forte

He gave his report in the Executive Session.

Finance Committee— Wallace Mason, Rusty Trowbridge
His report is in with Rusty Trowbridge’s report

Collections/Acquisitions Committee—Charles Sullivan

Sullivan wiil put this in at the office along with his motion for the Doyle

Sword

Marketing & Development — Boyce Delashmit

He suggested that we have BBQ in the front by the parking lot that will bring in people from the
highway and perhaps we can talk them on the tour. He also said this would be particularly good
during Cruising the Coast. Furthermore the drivers involved in Cruising the Coast must have a log
signed at various points along the Coast for which they get points. Beauvoir could be one of those
sign-in places.

Personnel — Rev. Cecil Fayard
Rev. Cecil Fayard resigned as Chairman of the Personnel Committee, though he remains on it as a
member. He had to leave the meeting early to go to Laurel.

He was replaced as Chairman by Alan Palmer. The other members of the committee beside Reg.
Fayard are Bert King and Charles Sullivan.

Facilities and Grounds — Larry McCluney

This report will be emailed to me and put in here.
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In his report 1t was stated that one of our several air conditioners that are broken can be fixed with
$200 to 3500 dollars. Boyce Delashmit said to get it fixed and send him the bill. Also it was stated
that the water pans under the air conditioners in the attic of Beauvoir are rolling through and all in the
water to cause the plaster on the ceiling to fall. Delashmit said he needs the measurements on these
pans and he will make stainless steel pans to replace them.

Qld Business

A. Status of Hariford INS (Bonding Company) Lawsuit
Discussed in Executive Session

B. Porch Repair—MDAH
Discussed in Executive Session

C. Beauvoir Foundation
Discussed in Executive Session
New Business — Allen Terrell

A. There was a piece of legislation that failed to pass the Mississippi legislation which would have
placed terms on members of the Combined Boeards of Beaiivoir. We should watch out for this in the
future.

B. Executive Director’s Position

Greg Stewart was chosen as the Executive Director.

Motion made by Paul B. Johnson I1F to adjourn. Seconded by Wallace Mason. Motien passed
unanimounsly.
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Combined Boards of Beauvoir
Minutes
November 8, 2014
Jefferson Davis Presidential Library, Board Room

1. <Call to order at 10:00 a.m.— Chairman Richard Forte

A. Invocation - Rev. Cecil Fayard
Pledges: U. S. Flag, Confederate Flag

B. Roll-Call - Charles-Sullivan — Recording Secretary

Board of Directors:

Richard V. Forte Sr. — Chairman Present
Dr. Christopher Cummings Absent
Alan Paimer Absent
Boyce Délashmit Present
Dr. Dan Edney — Emeritus Absent
Lamar Roberts — Emeritus Absent

Board of Trustees;

Wallace Mason Present
Bert King . Absent
Rev. Dr.-Cecil Fayard Present
Larry McClunéy Present
Charles Sullivan = Recording Secretary Present
John Echols — Emeritus Absent
Janice Strohm—UDC Absent
Allen Terrell =:SCV Absent

6 voting members present—a minimum:quorum
Greg Stewart—Executive Director

C. Approval of'the August 9, 2014
At 10:05 a.m. a Motion was made by Larry McCluney to approve the August 9, 2014, Board
Minutes. Seconded by Rev. Cecil Fayard. Motion was passed unanimously.

At 10:10 am. a Motion was made by Larry McCluney to go into Executive Session. Seconded
by Wallace Mason. Motion passed unanimously.

At 12:02 a Motion was made by Larry McCluney to end Executive Session. Seconded by
Wallace Mason. Motion was unanimous

Lunch — 12:02 p.m. t012:45 p.m.

1. Old Business
A. Status of Hartford INS (Bonding Company) Lawsuit
Motion was made by Wallace Mason at 12:50 p.m. to ratify invoice to pay $2,055.25 10 the
Holcomb, Dunbar Attorneys, (Gary Yarborough, Jr. and Dewitt “Sparky”™ Loveless) for
mediation in the Hartford {aw suit. The invoice will be paid from the credit line draw.
Seconded by Boyce DeLashmit. Motion passed unanimously.



Motion made by Charles Sullivan at 1:05 p.m. that the Combined Boards guarantee the return
of $2,500 paid from the Sullivan-Alford account for the purpose of purchasing a carriage for
weddings and other events. This money is to be returned to the Sullivan-Alford account by the
time of the next Board meeting. (The Sullivan-Alford account is not to be used for purchases
that should be made from the General Fund. Specxﬁcally it is not to be used for such things as
maintenance or for the purchase of items such as carriages or copiers. The only reason that the
carriage is being purchased from the Sullivan-Alford account at this time is because it is an
émergency purchase that will be reimbursed. If it is not to be reimbursed, then the purchase is.
not to be-made. Motion seconded by Rev. Cecil Fayard. Metion passed unanimously.

B. Porch Repair—MDAH
Covered in Executive Session

C. Béauvo_i"r Foundation
Covered in Executive Session

HI. Reports
A. Egxecutive Director — Greg Stewart

Greg Stewart says we will have Christmas at Beauvoir for three weekends. We intend to have a
hvmo nativity with the animals and light up the trees.

The Foundation sign related to Christmas at Beauvoir has at last been approved by:the “real
Beauvoir” by the Cify of Biloxi. The poles have been left there. The sign will be put there
when we-wish.

The zip line canopy tour is still being studied.
JaneSullivan’s book is at the cemetery.

-Greg says Beauvoir needs an advisory board like that of the Ohr-O’Keefe Museum to help us do
ﬂunqs when we need to. Rick Forte, in response to this, says the membership could be selected
from the Friends of Beauvoir.

Motion made by Rev. Cecil Fayard at 1:40 p.m. to anthorize the Finance Committee to work
with Rusty Trowbridge in devising an insurance plan that will save Beauvoir $6,000 per year
and be acceptable to Rusty Trowbridge and the Board and to authorize the Finance Committee
to come up with an acceptable plan in reimbursing Greg Stewart. Seconded by Boyce
DeLashmit. Motion passed unanimously.

Motion made by Rev. Cecil Favard at 1:45 p.m. to send out a letter to all SCV members asking
for a2 $50.00 tax deductible Christmas Gift to be used for the preservation of our history and the
upkeep of Beauvoir historic home. Seconded by Boyce Delashmit. Motion passed
unanimously.

Motion made by Charles Sullivan at 1:47 p.m. to accept the Director’s Report. Seconded by
Larry McClunev. Motion passed unanimously.

V. New Business



A.

B.

Brent Walker, Hancock Bank—Not present, no report.

Violation of Executive Session
This was dealt with in Executive Session.

V.  Committee Reports

A.

Executive Committee — Rick Forte
This was dealt with in Executive Session.

Finance ~ Wallace Mason and Rusty Trowbridge

Business Managers Report
By Rusty Trowbridge
Board Meeting — November 8, 2014

The end of October marks 50% of our Fiscal Year. Our income at this point is 43.1% but
our admissions continue 1o rise. The expenses for this period are at 47.5% which is a
jittle high based onour income basically because we had a 3 payroll month once again
and our maintenance had unexpécted bills 6h A/C mainténance & repair as well as
exira mowing equipment repair.

This time of year is always tough on the cash flow and we have been running in a
deficit but if you look at the attached Fiscal Year Monthly Recap for Fiscal Year 2014
and compare it to Fiscal Year 2015 you will see that we are way ahead of last year.
During August thru September of 2014 we showed a combined deficit of $132,336.
This Fiscal Year there is still a deficit but it is orily $52,611. That is a HUGE difference
and a very positive sign that we are moving in the right direction. While | do think that
we will see a deficit for the next couple of months, | believe we will see a big
turnaround early next year. My goal, of course, is to end the year in the black. That
will be a tough goal to reach mainly because we will not be receiving the $100,000
grant from the state for regular maintenance which was planned for in this year’s
budget.

Our Admissions and Gift Shop continue to do well with over 5000 guest in October.
Actually, each month has exceeded what we have done in the previous year. Friends,
while doing well last period has slowed down lately and our regular donations and
miscellaneous income are not doing very good. The Hayes Cottage, on the other hand,
is doing well. Special Events are going ballistic and we have Weddings and other
events booked almost every weekend. Kudos to cur event planner, Kitsaa Stevens,
and her volunteer assistant, Jenny Green. Last month | reported that this department
was not at level it should be but that | hadn’t given up. Well, these girls have really
taken charge of things.

Fall Muster went well and the weather cooperated. The Cemetery Tour didn’t do as
well as planned but we looked over what was done and | think that we will get back on



track next year.

| have included the Cash & Investment Balance showing what money we have and
where it is, the Donor Restricted Balances, the FEMA Projects Reconciliation, the
Monthly Sales Comparison, the Attendance Record and the Monthly P&L Re-cap for
2014 and 2015 so you can where we have been and compare month to month up to
where we are now.

Sincerely,
Rusty Trowbridge

Colléctions — Charles Sullivan

Sullivan dedlt with the section from the previous meeting regarding the hiring and paying of
grant writer Braridi Clark. (The account of this came in the August 9, 2014, Executive Session.
The.information was sent to Greg Stewart. I cannot reprint it here because it was in the
Executive Session of the last meeting.)

Charles Sullivan read. the section.of the Collections Report related to the first reunion of the
Brown Family at Beauvoir since James Brown built the house in 1852.

A Motion was made-by Charles Sullivan at 1:55 p.m. that the Combined Boards of Beauvoir
request that Iibrarian Jamiie Lane secure from James L. Poole (328 Forest Grove Dr.,
Richardson, TX: 75080, ixgeezeri@sbeglobal.net, 972-231-1573) a copy of his history of the
Brown Family. This may be done by CD or by printing it out on a computer or both. Seconded
by Wallace Mason, In the discussion members of the Board asked Sullivan why he did not have
Jamie do it withont bothering the Board with this. Sullivan replied that his aim was to make the:
Board aware of the reunion.and Poole’s research. He also wanted to let Poole know that his:
work was of such importarice that it came before the Combined Boards of Beauvoir. Motion
passed unanimounsly.

Sullivan’s motion for the Combined Boards of Beauvoir to establish a “Families of Beauvoir”
organization was put off until such time that Jane Sullivan can ask the families that she knows
about if they would like to support an organization like this.

Sullivan did not do it at this time but later continued his report by telling of the Traweek Clan
coming to the Cemetery Tour. Jane Sullivan researched and wrote the script which Terry
“Beetle” Bailey performed as Washington Brown Traweek. Seated on a church pew in front of
him in the cemetery was the 93 vear-old-great grandson, a great-great-granddaunghter, a great-
great-great granddaughter, and a 6 year-old great-great-great-great granddaughter. [ doubt that
little Sarah will ever forget the night she came to Beauvoir whose trees were lit up and then
went to a cemetery where a man in Confederate uniform plaved her ancestor.

He also informed the Board that Jane Sullivan was continuing to find biographies of those
buried in the Beauvoir Memorial Cemetery while Dr. Susannah Ural and Dr. Deanne Nuwer of
USM are looking for biographies not buried in the cemetery. Jane’s research vields the scripts
for the cemetery tour.

He also informed the Board that Jane Sullivan was continuing io find biographies of those
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Greg%Stewart

From: Rick Forte [rfortesr@ati.net]

Sent: . Thursday, March 26, 2015 1.35 PM

To: Christopher Cummins; Alan Palmer; Boyce Delashmit; Lamar Roberts; Wallace Mason; Bert
King; €ecil Fayard; Larry McCluney; John Echols; Janice Strohm; Marc Allen; Allen Terrell;
Greg Stewart; Charles Sullivan

Subject: Fw: Motions from February 14, 2015

On Thursday, March 26, 2015 11:29 AM, "Sullivan, Charles" <chariss.sullivan@macct.edu> wrote:

Combined Boards of Beauvoir

Minutes

February 14, 2015

Jefferson Davis Presidential Library, Board Room

The Combined Boards of Beauvoir having a quorum present conducted business.

Motion was made to accept the minutes of November 8, 2014.
Motion seconded ’
Motion passed

Moﬁ‘pn- was made to accept the Executive Director's report
Motion seconded
Motion passed

Motion miade that the preservation account and garden account be moved from the Hancock Bank to
the:Community Bank where it will draw interest.

Motion seconded

Motion passed unanimously

Motion made to surrender the Brick for Beauvoir Project over to Beauvoir and all funds henceforth
going directly to Beauvoir

Motion seconded

Motion passed

Motion made to approve the design of the McWilliams brochure for Beauvoir
Motion seconded
Motion passed

Motion made to adjourn for lunch
Motion seconded
Motion passed

Motion made to go into Executive Session at 1:02 p.m.
Motion seconded
Motion passed



Motion made to go out of Executive Session at 2:50 p.m.
Motion seconded
Motion passed

Motion made to video record meetings for archival purposes except Executive Sessions and to video

and live stream all meetings for the purpose of informing the Division about the business of Beauvoir.
Motion seconded

Motion passed

Motion made to adjourn the meeting at 3:00 p.m.
Motion seconded '
Motion passed
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Combined Boards of Beauvoir
Minutes
April 25, 2015
Jefferson Davis Presidential Library, Board Room

1. Callto order at 10:15.a.m.— Chairman Richard Forte
A. Invocation — Larry McCluney
Pledges: U. S. Flag, Confederate Flag
B. Roll Call~Charles Sullivan — Recording Secretary

Board of Directors:

Mare S, Allen Present
Richard V. Forte St, — Chairman Present
Dr. Chnstopher Cummmos Absent
A}an Palmer Present
Boyce Delashmit Absent
Lamar Roberts— Emeritus Absent
Board of Trustees:

Wallace:-Mason Absent
BertKing: Absent
Rev. Dr; Cecil Fayard Absent
Larry McCluney Present
Charles Sullivap.— ‘Recording Secretary Present
John Echols — Emgritus Absent
Janice Strohm=~UDC Present
Allen Terrell -SCV Present—represented by Louis Foley

Greg Stewart—Exeécutive Director
Visitors: Jerry McWilliams; Ray Billings, Mike Webb, Dennie B. Spence, Don P. Green, Jr.,

Leroy Waller; Marc Allen’s son, James Bailey Halliday(Attorney), Brandi Clarke (Grant
Writet)

C. Approval of the February 14, 2015 minutes
Motion made at 10:20 a.m. by Alan Palmer to accept the minutes of February 14, 2015.
Seconded by Larry McCluriey
Motion passed unanimously.

The assemblage discussed one item of new business that had not been put on the agenda. This
item was the question of the return of the Jefferson Davis Catafalque from New Orleans. The
catafalque has been restored after its destruction by Hurricane Katrina in the old JDPL.
Charles Sullivan pointed out that the return of the catafalque would be a prime event to
highlight Beauvoir’s Katrina Plus 10 Years Commemoration. He expressed that his desire to
have the catafalque returned causes him to agree to pay one half of the cost of the return from
the Sullivan-Alford Fund. He also stated that on Friday, April 24, 2015, the day before this
meeting, he called the editor of Louisiana Cultural Vistas Magazine and asked if Beauvoir
could reprint the article in the Sumnmer 2012 issue detailing exactly how the catafalque was
restored. The editor, David Johnson, readily agreed to allow Beauvoir to have the article
republished in a booklet written by Sullivan tentatively titled. “Beauvoir and Katrina Plus 10.7
Sullivan explained that the book would be sold in the gift shop with all profits going to the
Sullivan-Alford Fund of Beauvoir which is dedicated o making displays for the JDPL.
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Museum. Johnson asked that all this information be placed in an email and be sent to him and

this was done. On the phone Johnson said he would send a PDF file containing the article with
the color photos.

The problem with the return of the catafalque is that the people involved in that want $7,900 to
bring it back and assemble it. Beauvoir cannot afford that. A delegation from those in charge
of the catafalque is coming to Beauvoir on May 11, 2015. Sullivan suggested that those people
be asked if Beauvoir personnel can come and get the catafalque and transport it to the JDPL
and put it together themselves. The people in charge of the catafalque said that whomever they
spoke to years ago about it never offered to help bring it andnever offered to help put it
together. Sullivan said something must be done to get the price down.

.‘O'IdﬂBusiness:
A, Status of Hartford INS (Bonding Company) Lawsuit
Rick Forte said that nothing much had changed on this lawsuit:

B. Beauvoir Foundation Lawsuit—Jim Halliday (Beauvoir Attorney)

Jim Halliday said that the Beauvoir Foundation lawsuit would be carried out in five phases:
. Tnvestigating and pleading (This has been done)

. Discovery phase (This is underway at this time)

. Depositions of Beauvoir personnel.

. Motions. (He said at this phase the Foundation would try to’knock out the suit.)

. “Irial in Circuit Court in Biloxi

A B G e

He:said that Beauvoir’s key is to ask questions about why the Foundation officers never
accounted to the Combinied Boards of Trustees when the Board asked for information. He.
expects to-win. It will take a year or more.

Halliday finished his report at 10:35 a.m.

Beauvoir Executive Director — Greg Stewart

Stewart said that in spite of the recent hard rains Beauvoir is 17% up in receipts over last year
at-this time. He said that the state had appropriated $75,000 for acquiSition for property on
Brady Drive. There are three lots for sale—two of them adjacent and one other not adjacent.
Rick Forte stated that Ken P*Pool of the Mississippi Departmenit of Archives and History said
that there may be money available for such purchases because Beauvoir is a National
Landmark. The consensus of opinion on the Board is that Beauvoir could make a new entrance
there and have a stop light at the corner of Brady Drive. Also, we might perhaps build a
Director’s Home on one of the lots.

When Stewart brought up the status of the continued cleanup of Qyster Bayou, Grant Writer
Brandi Clarke said that she might be able to secure a grant for that.

Stewart brought up the subject of the animais on the property. He says that the back lot has
been fenced to keep them away from the cemetery area, but at certain times the sheep and goats
have to be released there to eat the grass from around the tombstones. He further stated that the
animals have been released into certain sections intermittently to keep the grass down without
having fo resort 1o mowing.

Stevart stated that Beauvoir is irving to move toward a “Williamsburg model.”



The City of Gulfport has once again requested the furniture that Spanish Trail Historical
Society officially donated to Beauvoir be returned. The furniture was purchased by the ladies
of the Spanish Trail Historical Society for the Gulfport replica of the home called Grasslawn
(which had been owned by the Spanish Trail Historical Society). In the legal squabbles over
the building of Grasslawn, the City of Gulfport ordered the ladies of the STHS to pay storage
on the furniture. They did not wish to do that, so they donated the furniture to Beauvoir. In the
interest of fair play, Stewart offered to trade some of the furniture for items needed by
Beauvoir, such as an ice'machine, a set of bleachers, ete. So far the City of Gulfport has not
taken this offer.

Stewart also stated that Wesco Lighting has proposed that LED lights be substituted for
elecirical lights outside. This has potential to save Beauvoir thousands of dollars.

Motion made at 10:56 a.m. by Larry McCluney to acceptthe Executive Director’s report.
Seconded by Charles Sullivan

Motion passed unanimously

Committee Reports
Executive—Rick Forte
Scattered among other reports

Finance Committee—Wallace Mason

Larry McCluney was empowered by Wallace Mason to represent him.. Discussion began on
the new budget for the coming fiscal year. McCluney averred that the budget was a good one
and that Beauvoir can use it. He wanted the Board not to-spend any money outside the budget.
If any other money is to be spent, Finance Director Rusty Trowbridge should be told before
any other money is encumbered. It was also stated that we needed to make a bid for the annual
audit. We have a low bid for $9,750. The bid for the insurance is looming because our
insurance tuns out on May 9, 2015. Greg Stewart said he would see to this.

Motion made by Marc Allen at 11:00 a.m. to suspend discussion about the proposed budget
until May 23, 2015, when a special session of the Board can be called and Wallace Mason
could be present.

Seconded by Louis Foley

Vote: Marc Allen—yea. Louis Foley abstained. Charles Sullivan, Larry McCluney, Alan
Palmer—nay.

Maotion defeated.

After more discussion another motion was made at 11:15.

Motion made by Charles Sullivan at 11:15 a.m. to accept the budget as written.

Seconded Larry McCluney

Vote: Marc Allen abstained. Charles Sullivan, Larry McCluney, Alan Palmer, Louis Foley—
vea.

Motion carried.

Motion made at 11:23 a.m. by Marc Allen to accept the low bid for the financial audit from
Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel.

Seconded by Larry McCluney

Motion passed unanimously



Collections and Acquisitions Committee
Report of the Collections and Acquisitions Committee
At the
Meeting of the Combined Boards of Beauvoir
April 25, 2015
Charles L. Sullivan, Chairman

From its beginning February 29, 2008, to April 15, 2015, the Sullivan-Alford account has spent
§7,787.19 on:displays. Recent expenditures included in this total are $433.69 to purchase flat
rollers to place nearly all our steel file cabinets permanently on wheels; the purchase of two
hand-colored newspaper images of Jefferson Davis for $80.00; and $420 to Magnolia Heating:
and Adr to fix the air conditioning on April 1,2015. On April 15, 2015, Rusty Trowbridge was
anthorized to send:a check for $1,155.38 to C&D Jarnagin Companv for a Mississippi Rlﬂes

Mexican War wniform. This was the unit commanded by J efferson Davis at the Battle 6f
Buena Vistaon February 23, 1847.

The purchase of the uniform brings the Sullivan-Alford fund’s coniributions sinice its inception
to $8,042:57. I'have also pledged Y% of the cost of getting the catafalque back if that is
possible. Thecost of the catafalque will bring the Sullivan-Alford account io near zero. 1 have:
recently placed more items for sale at the gift shop to bring in more money.

On March 7. 2015, my wife, Jane, was the recipient of the first William E. “Bill” Atkinson
Award for Mississippi Civil War History from the Mississippi Historical Society atits annual
meeting. She was recognized for many years of research into the lives of the hearly 800
Confederate soldiers, wives, and widows who are buried in the Beauvoir Memorial Cemetery.
She is still hard at work-on this project and some of her work can be seen in the binders at the
cemetery. ‘The scripts for the annual Cemetery Tour in October is derived from her work. She
is iri contact with many of the descendants-of those buried in the cemetery. Her work is
already a great acquisition-on several fronts for Beauvoir.

Marketing and Development—Boyce Delashmit
Absent—no report

Personnel — Alan Palmer
His report to be given in Executive Session.

Facilities and Grounds — Larry McCluney

McCluney said that Beauvoir very much needs a full-time gardener to take care of Varina’s
Garden. He further stated that the upkeep of the garden is too great a load on our maintenance
people who have many other tasks. He suggested thar Beauvoir might secure the services of a
gardener by letting them sell examples of their work for their pay, or by getting a grant from
Wal—\fam Lowe’s or Home Depot. Brandi Clarke says that she has spoken to Home Depot
and she has also spoken to the Department of Marine Resources on the subject of Oyster
Bayou.

McCluney congratulated Maintenance Director Don Green and his staff for cleaning both sides
of Qyster Bayou.

Lastly he noted that the air conditioners in the atiic of Beauvoir House are causing great



damage.

Motion made at noon by Alan Palmer to go into Executive Session
Seconded by Larry McCluney
Motion passed unanimously

Motion made at 12:25 by Alan Palmer to end Executive Session.
Seconded by Marc Allen
Motion passed unanimously.

Discussion about the Airstream trailer sent by Mr. Wilhite? after Katrina. The tires-have rotted
and a window was taken out to put in an air conditioner. The window cannot befound. The
owner will take $4,000 for the trailer and $1,000 for the new tires he sentdown or he will take
$4.000 and the tires can be send back to him. Rick Forte said that this situation has been going
on-for ten years. He said that years ago the owner said hg would sénd Someone down to get the
trailer. When he finally did send someone the trailer was in the terrible condition it is in now.
Rick said Ed Funchess said he would take care of the situation; but he never did. At this point
Boyce Delashmit said he would take care of it. Rick says he will ask Delashmit about:it.

Motion at 1 p.m. made by Charles Sullivan to adjourn the meeting.
Seconded by Larry McCluney
Motion passed unanimously



IN-THE CIR_CUI'T COURT OF HARRISON COUNTY

. SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT S,
BEAUVOIR S SR A PLAINTIFF.
V. S ST CAUSENO ARYOX /5 -9\6/
THE BEAUVOIR FOUNDATION ., N
JOHNDOES 1-2 AND JANEDOES 12 - DEFENDANTS-
. COMPLAINT
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

COMES NOW the Plamtlff BEAUVOIR, by and through its legal counsel James™ -

| Bailey Halhday, Attomev and Cmmselor at Law, and files this Complaint against The Beauvmr =

Foundatlon and in suppo_rt Ather__gof,v_;rgs.pectﬁl_lly submits the following to this Honorable Gourt: I

PREFACE

Plaintiff, Beauvoir, is:a non-profit; philanthropic erganization, held and operated-in trust.”
by the Sons .of Confederate: Veterans; fo preserve the historical legacy of the ’Presi’dent "of the
Confederacy, Jefferson Davis, and the Confederate Southern S;)Idier, for the direct benefit of the -

public. Plaintiff Beauvoir is eontrolled ‘and.operated by the:Combined Boards of Directors and

Trustees. Defendant, The Beauvoir Foundation, is & non-profit corporate- entity specifically .~

created by express’ authonty of Beauvmr § Combined Boards of Directors and Trustees to.act and ..

function as a fund raising organization for the benefit of Beauvoir. Certain controlling members -
of the Defendant’s Board of Directors, during the preceding, primary and relative foundational
events of this Complaint, were and had been serving as members of the Combined Boards of
Beauvoir as Trustees and/or Directors. One member of the Defendant’s Board of Directors had -
served as Beauvoir’s leéal counsel. Another, serving as the President on the Defendant’s Board
of Directors had also served as first a Trustee and then as a Director on the Plaintiff’s Combined

Board. These two members of the Defendant’s Board of Directors had been serving in these

Case: 24C12:15-cv-00028 Document#: 1  Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 1 of 21



. various capacmes for Plaintiff Beauvoir well before the creation of the Defendant aS@ROR-PrOfit ¥ e

- _,corporate entrty Another of Defendant’s Board Member serving” as V1ce-preszdent O the T o
Defendant’s Board of Dlrectors was allowed and authonzed t0 serve as a SpeCIal ‘events
coordmator on: the grounds of Beauvcnr and was addmonally authorized to hold- speclal private,” .-

.pubhc and fund rmsmg events for Beauvoir;- “ Consequently, these Board. Members of the"“

Defendant Beauvon' Foundauon held a position of special trust and high conﬁdence w1th the - ¢

’ ‘members of the Co_, bmed Boards of Beauvmr (Heremafter the “Beauvcm: Board )

INT RODUCTION

LA

Thrs is: ‘an-acnon ror breach of ﬁduc1ary duty, breach of loyalty, breéch of obhga’uon of I
trust, breach of representahons and wolanon of agency Ieadmg to improper dlversmn and"-
unauttmnzed conversmn of funds obtamed by Defendant Beauvon Foundation by-it fund. ra151ng |
for Beauvoxr and related Activities a.nd speczal events; and altematxvely for tortuous: mterference '
decelt. decephon tntentlonal 4Cts and surreptmous scheme to intentional and mahcmus mterfere '
w1th Beauvmr s ﬁmd ralsmg eﬁ'orts suppomng patrons, donors and other supporters to attempt

to destablhze Beauvon' in its present operatxonal capac1ty and public charter as the livirig legacy

to Jefferson Davxs -ag the Premdent of the Confederacy and the preservauon of ‘the legendary
henta.ge of the Confederate Southern Soldxer

PREAMBLE

The central means and method of these torruous actions against Beauvoir as set forth -~

above and in detaﬂ below was by and through The Defendant a Mississippi non-profit

organization, called “The Beauvoir Foundation” created by two members of the Combined
Beauvoir Boards, under the express authority of the Combined Beauvoir Boards, to act as the

primary fund raising non-profit entity in support of Beauvoir and its philanthropic and public

2 .
Case: 24C12:15-cv-00028 Document# 1  Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 2 of 21



- missions dedicated to historical preservation and education .of 'sc;ﬁ’tﬁéf&:' Eéﬁﬁééxféféféd"f& yezbia vl

, -Jefferson Davis and his legacy.~ Unbeknownst to the other members of the Beauvoir Boards until -~ °

“. recently, - The . Beauvoir Foundation surreptitiously” carried ‘out an altogetﬁé'r‘ dlfferentand -

. unannounced agenda. designed to-divert funding from Beauvoir to The Beaiwoir Foundation for —

its own private purposes and unauthorized agenda:. -~
HISTORICAL BACKGROUND -

The Widow of Jefferson Davis, Varina Howell'Davis, bequeathed the Beanvoir home and

surrounding-property. as a home for veterans who had served for the South in the Civil Warand ™~ © -~

. to the widows-of those veterans. With the-stipulation that ‘when the last veteran and any survwmg '
- widows were Sdéceaséd, ..the Sons of the Confedérate Veéterans (also known and’ c'blr'm'riibh'ly' B
referred to as the SCV); an: organization consisting of male descendants of confederate 'Véteféﬂé, o
- would receive.the Beauvoir home and grounds in trust under certain stipulated conditions. Those™
conditions including (relevant to this Complaint against The Beauvoir Foundation) that the SCV
- would maintain ‘].3e.au1voir- in .a viable .state and independently functional’ conditiofi” thereby
protecting and preserving the historical legacy of her husband ‘4nd that of the Confederate
*Southern Soldier’ for the enjoyment: and educadtion of the public at large. As long as the SCV~
inaintaineci Beauvoir and its Qom& as required and agreed, the home and grou’ncis wogld
remain in trust under-the <.:ontrol of the SCV. However, if the SCV failed in its agreed duties o
properly maintain and preserve Beauvoir as directed by Widow Davis, then the Bgauvoir Home
and a sizable portion of the surrounding property and grounds would revert back to either the

state of Mississippi and/or the descendants of Jefferson Davis without restrictions.
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JURISDICTION

- 1. - This is.an:action sounding in a number of torts all for which a remedy at law™™ ™ ="
exists for which-a monetary award will be sought that can and should be sustained in ‘the state -~ *
court with the largest- monetary jurisdiction; the Circuit Court, specifically the Circuit Court of ' * =" =
. Harrison County;-wherein. this action arose and in which the Plaintiff resides ‘and Defendant’s
actors, agents and/or representatives willfully participated in the harmful actions alieged heréin ™" '

.against Beauvoir. -7

1.; - Venue is proper-as the Plaintiff, Beauvoir, is located on scenic U. S. Highway 90 ** °

in Biloxi, Mississippi within the Seécond Judicial District of the Circuit Court of HarrisonCounty™~ =" ™~

Mississippi and where many of the initiating events. and subsequent actions and critical ‘events:

contained - within the allegations. of this Complaint occurred. Defendant’s, The Beauvoir - -

Foundation, official mailing address 1s: P:O. Box 4156, Biloxi, MS 39535.
- .~ PARTIES TO THIS COMPLAINT

-~ -~ PLAINTIFF

1. - Beauvoir is physically located at 2244 Beach Blvd. on U.S. Highwaj 90 in Biloxi, ™ - - °

Mississippi and designated a national historic site. Beauvoir.is operated as a non-profit entity -
endowed and bequeathed in trust to the Sons of the Confederate Veterans (SCV). The Combined
Boards of Beauvoir, -Board of Trustees and Board of Directors, meet regularly and periodically at -
the Beauvoir historical property to conduct business and operational control concerning all
aspects of Beauvoir. The elected Chairman of the Combined Boards of Beauvoir is Mr. Richard
V. Forte, Sr. and he reports directly to the Board concerning the ongoing operations and

projected plans for Beauvoir. The Combined Boards specifically and formally authorized this

4 .
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.. to initiate this litigation.on Beauvoir’s behalf.

. . DEFENDANTS

[

.~ legal action, by and through Counsel approved and retainéd by the' Bodrd,” and for its Chatritian 7" /7

2. The Beauvoir Foundation is an incorporated entity with the State of Mississippi

_and listed as “active” with the Mississippi Secretary of State.: According to the official récords <~ -

. of the Mississippi.Secretary of State records, The Beauvoir Foundation was created énffOctobér-' e
1, 2012 and registered under Business 1.D. Number: 1009036 as a non—'proﬁi-org,ax"ii;zfa‘tion';?é’;géﬁff :

‘ for serviqg of process is listed as John W. “Don™ Barrett who may-be served at the address:of404: =~ -

- Court Square;. P.O.-Box 927, Lexington, MS 39095; he is also listed as “Thcorporator? under” - -

_ Officers and Directors Section. The Beauvoir Foundation officially lists on'its 2013 Wébsité the - -

‘Board.. of Directors as:. Bertram Hayes Davis as President; Andy Ous't_al'eft‘fag""\‘li‘ce:i-Ptési’d_éni; i

.Carol Hayes Davis, as_Secretary-Treasurer and -Don Barrett. The Beaiivoir Foundation: official

mailing address is: P:0. Box 4156; Biloxi, MS 39535; -and a local contact teléphoné number:

(228) 206-6291. - .

3. Defendant-John:Does 1-2 and Jane Does 1-2 are not at this time individually tiamed and

_identified but Plaintiff Beauvoir reserves the right to amend its Complaint 10 name them if facis

discovered in the future indicate the necessity to name and personally join any of these
Defendants. -

.. BASIC FACTS AND EVENTS SUPPORTING THIS COMPLAINT

1. - Don Barrett and Bertram Davis proposed to the Combined Boards of Beauvoir the
idea of a non-profit corporate entity with its announced purposes of acting on behalf of and in the

sole interests of Beauvoir to assist Beauvoir in obtaining financial support beginning in 2012.

5 X ' )
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2. - Their proposal was accepted and The Foundation was specifically cicated upom ™ = -

the express-anthority of the Combined Boards of Beauvoir for the express authority of adiing asa =

fund raising entity for Beauvoir.

-~

. “Beauvoir Board”) as representative authority of The Beauvoir Foundation (Hereinafter reféred

- 3. .. - .Two members of the Combiried Boards of Beauvoir (Hereinafter referred toas the .~ "

- to as “The Foundation™), Don Barrett and Bertram Davis, first approached the Beauvoir Board in- -~ *+ -

s ..+ 2012 with & proposal to act a5 the primary.fund ralsmgenuty for Beauvoir and affer proper

discussion.and procedure, the: proposal- was-accepted that The Foundation would be ereated'to = =~ -

serve Beauvoiras Beauvoir’s primary fund raising entity with the Deferidant Foundation acfively ™ ™
.. soliciting monetary donations and elated financial support. s
4. .- At the time of this proposal; one-fiture Board Membet of The Foundation was an

active and. serving Director- on-the Beauvoir. Board and ‘another future: board miember of The -

Foundation had been an-active: serving. member-of the Beauvoir Board and had been'selécted to -~~~

serve: Beauvoir as its Executive Director in a paid position with specific duties that included -

soliciting donations and raising money for Beauvoir. .

.5. . - Based on the prior long existing relationships:with other mnembets of the Beauvoir

Board, service as either Director and/or Trustee themselves on the Board, and having served or - - - - -

serving in-special capacities for Beauvoir and its interests, both Don Barrett and Bertram Davis
held the highest trust and confidence and e;xpectati’ons of loyalty and loyal conduct with the
Beauvoir Board. . | -

6. Consequently, they were granted special authority by the Beauvoir Board, on
behalf of Beauvoir, to create The Beauvoir Foundation to represent Beauvoir as its sole agent

and primary representative entity for fund raising and related events.
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7. . Beginning on or‘about October. 1, 2012 (and believed to be'stillcontinuing f6 this = ™ #* £&

date and beyond), Defendant Beauvoir Foundation acting as-the primary fimd Taising- éntity as "

agreed and set forth in detail within this Complaint, obtained substantial monetary funds by

soliciting and.obtaining donations from ;';_’ii;;a:i:',\j(;iduals_,»_-blusines:ses,- organizations, 'éb:pbfaﬁéfis‘ and - 7 e
.. various other entities bothi:local, state and hiation-wide.- * -
| 8.. -: A substantial:amount of monetary donations are believed to have been obtained -
-through: direct solicitation from individuals; businesses, organizations, corporations and vaficus™ -~ i
entities both local, ‘state:and-natien-wide for Beauvoir by.the Defendant Beauvoir Foundationas ™ *
- directed by. its representatives and-ageiits, and these fiinds were kept/expended/diverted: by-the *
- Defendant Foundation.for. ifs own purposesiand uses. .
9. .- A:substantial: amount ‘of money is believed to.have been obtained through - -+ ¢

- activities and events for Beauvoir by The Foundation; with-some of the events even held on the

grounds of Beauvoir -in “Biloxi; and this: .money 'was without authority improperly -
kept/expended/diverted by The Foundation for:its own mriknown purposes and unauthorizéd uses.

10. - The-Defendant Foundation failed to properly report conceming and account for

the individual. exitities ‘solicited, donations made, money: received, collected ‘and/ot obtained by " -

The Foundation and repeatedly refiised to allow Beauvoir to even review any accounting of these
funds obtained as related to. Beauvoir.

11.  .Repeated requests and'demands were made; by informal electronic means (email)
and formal written (USPS certified mail) communications, by telephone conversations, in‘person
and at official meetings of the Beauvoir Boé:d, for The Foundation to properly report and -
financially account concerning the individuals and entities solicited, donations made, money

received, collected and/or obtained by The Foundation.

7 .
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.12, - Representatives of The Foundation, repeatedly and adamantly-refused:to account =it 2o

- in any manneror means- to.the Beauvoir Board concerning any of the individiials and entitieés -

solicited and/or concerning any:money, donations, funding, pledges, support,-etc. obtained. - - - o o -

13. ...Specifically; on February 9, 2014, at a scheduled meeting of the Combised:.. .= ~: i

. - Boards of Beauvoir, in-the official conference room of the Board located in the museur-en the : = ¢, -

grounds-of Beauvoir in Biloxt,: Mississippi; formal-and final demand was made on representative .. -

" ‘members :of The Foundation, whe. wereipresent :at{thé-meeting,-fdr an accounting and review of &* ' v

persons, organizations; businesses, corporations and.entities solicited, donations made and funds.# :- .«x. 72 0

obtained:-Additionally; demand was made for:a full 4ccounting of all money obtained, spént-and. -

“retained* by ‘The -Foundation regarding all “activities related to Beauvoir.- These: present .

-representative members refused to do so and subsequently left the meeting and failed to retumn to:

© serve iﬁcbndﬁdiﬂg"ﬁflje board’s required business and-announced aftemoon agenda.

14.  Previous to:this meeting, numerous demands had been made by Beauvoir t6 The - = -

- Foundation, sﬂmough:fitgtrepiesentaﬁves, -for a.complete accounting of solicited funds received ::.

. and othierwise obtained through other means including. events at Beauvoir.

.15. . -These demands. were ignored or otherwise not responded to as the: requested .- v .-

accounting was never received nor has ever been received as to the date of this Complaint. -

16.  Around- the -time these inquiries were being made, ignored and rebuffed,
unbeknownst to the Beauvoir Board, The Foundation amended its core charter filed with the -
Mississippi Secretary of -State from its original charter which specifically stated that The
. Foundation existed solely for the benefit of Beauvoir for non-profit activity related to:

“Presidential Library and maintenance of historic home, Beauvoir.” This unauthorized

8 i
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amendment, filed on October 28,2013, altered The Foundatioii?s ‘chartér to'allow stpport; finds =+ 1ix

- -and-contributions to non-profit organizations other than-and nof affiliated with Beéaiivoir. ©™ -

17. . This unilateral action.was never authorized, condoned and acquiesced to-by. * -

Beauvoir’s Board. -

18. .. Consequently, as .all of its inquiries-and questions were ignored and -remaired: "

- unanswered,. Beauvoir- contacted. representatives of “the - Secretary. of State, reported these .

circumstances, and initiated its own investigation.--. : .. :

- 19:, .--A subsequent investigation revealed: that.$.130, 939.73 belonging to Beauvoir had-: . © -

.been improperly diverted from an account in Bank Plus titled “The Beauvoir:General Account” “* * .

- by representative of The: Foundation and ‘deposited.to The. Foundation ‘in ariéthér Bank Plas

".account titled “The Foundation Account™ in 2013 around the timie The Foundation was first = -

formed but not yet officially registered:with the Mississippi Secretary of State.”

- 20.- .The investigation-also revealed.that the funds solicited by The Foundation for -- -

_ Beauvoir were not properly -accounted .for. and were-in fact used, spent and/or otherwise.:: .

-expended according to the sole wishes of the. controlling miembers of The Foundation without the -

- direction, authority, agreement-and/or.acquiescence of Beauvoir and not according to the original .-

authorized purpose.as set forth in The Foundation’s creation for the “Presidential Library and -
maintenance of the historical home, Beauvoir.”

-21. - A board member of The Foundation, recently admitted by email communications
to the Chairman of the Beauvoir Board of Trustees, Richard V. Forte, that The Foundation, had
funds in the amount of approximately $ 65,000 which were at first offered to return to Beauvoir
under certain circumstances and stipulations; but later refused to do so when Beauvoir attempted

in ‘good faith’ to accept those funds under the circumstances requested and as originally

9 .
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* authorized, approved. and -stipulated: by the :Beauvoir . Board:.and-:as: “incorporated:=inzThe &= it fousp
- Foundation’s original filings with:the. Secretary of State. -
22. - Specific demand was-made upon representatives of The Foundation for the timely.. . ..

return of these funds belonging to Beauvoir in the amount of $ 65,000; but this demand was not . : ..

tesponded to, ignored or otherwise refused. -~ - -

.23. . Specific. demand-was made upon representatives of The Foundation for the timely.« - - .. .

" return of these  funds belonging to Beauvoir in the original amount of § 134,939.73; but'this - . -

demand ‘was riot responided to, ignored:or:otherwise refused. -~ .- -

..24.  Specific-demand was also 'made upon representatives of The Foundation for a full; . -

complete : and- timely. -accounting-of all money:-obtained by- The Foundation- by: any means.. -

- whatsoever as-relating in any manner; way or-form regarding Beauvoir; but this. demand was net -

responded to,-ignored or otherwise refused.

25. .. Based on knowledge, information arid belief; The Foundation continues to use its -, -

alleged association with Beauvoir as a fund raising' method obtaining funds that. it refuses to
relinquish to Beauvoir oreven properly accousnt.for.:
FUND RAISING EVENTS ON BEAUVOIR PROPERTY

1. . The Foundation, through  .its. controlling - board members, . agents  and
representatives, and possibly aided and assisted by unknown others, spensored a series of
holiday related events on the Beauvoir property including the much publicized “Christmas at -
Beauvoir.”

2. While “Christmas at Beauvoir” appeared to be a success, the event coordinators
and/or assisting participants, never gave a full and complete accounting of money obtained from

the participating public attending.

10 . )
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3.© -‘Eye-witnesses-obsetved event coordinators and/or assisting:participants, acting ons=r nowis.

* " "behalf of The Foundatiori; leave the Beauvoir property on numerous occasions at the nightly’.. -~

- conclusion of “Christmas at Beauvoir” with large ‘amounts anid-substantial sums-of ¢ash. This.: - --

" :¢ash Was'the money received s entry and-related participation-fees by the attending public. .. - . .=

4"~ This cash and other money was never properly accounted for by The Foundation,- . - -~ :: -

* itsmembers, représentatives and/or agents or any assisting participants to the BeauvoirBoard, . -+ %, . 0

5.~ > This ‘cash mioney' and -othér money- was never tendered, returned. or ‘given.to. ..;; « - =" -

"~ Beauvoir at the ¢onclission of “Christmas at Beauvoir.™
~6:-" The Fouridatioti-through’ its members, representativé and agents and assisting - i =0
parﬁéiﬁéﬁts-f'rlcporte‘d"all'e'fg'ediy-‘Operaﬁng at a loss, wher in truth and ‘fact, substantial samswere - 7 . -
-kept; redirected; spent or expended for improper purposes unrelated to the designated charter and |
. directed mission of The Foundation as originally authorized by the Beauvoir-Board..
7.+ Neither, The Foundation ‘and-its members, nor anyone assisting' them, had'‘any-
authority to retdin, ‘expend or’ otherwise use thesé collected, wrireported -and unaccounted for - =

monetary sums in this-way.

- YEEICTT AND DECEPTIVE FUND RAISING BY THE FOUNDATION . = .. i o od o

1. - - The Foundation, by and through its members, representatives and agents, . -.
participated in continuing fund raising events and monetary solicitations allegedly on behalf-of -
- Beauvoir.

2. The Foundation, by and through its participating members, representative,é and
agents, solicited these contributions and donations directly on behalf of Beauvoir.
3. The Foundation, by and through its participating members, representatives and

agents, misled donors, sponsors and contributors by soliciting funds allegedly on behalf of and

11 .
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for the direct benefit of Beauvoir when, in truth and fact, The Foundation-‘was! soliciting these -~ - ##k 5

B ahat S CUI I PP we esa o meee ceene

- donations.and contributions-for its.own purposes anduse: .
4. . The Foundation; by and.through its participating members, representatives and - - -

. .agents, is'believed to have obtained substantial monetaty:contributions on behalf of Beauvoir. '

5. . The Foundation has never properly accounted for. this money obtained on behalf: ©.-5 - -

- of Beauvoir but illicitly :and .deceptively. kept, spent and/or diverted the money for its own.use - ;... @™

- ;and unauthorized purposes. . < -

. .6.. .- . The Foundation has repeatedly refused to-properly provide'an accounting of thesg.: + .~~~ -

- funds obtained to.the:Beauvoir Board. : .. . -

7.. .. - The Foundation continues to. usufp.and: improperly use the good. name .and. .-~ -

. reputation .of Beauvoir.to improperly-solicit funds. meant for Beauvoir for-its own unauthorized - :
purposes. .

8. :The Foundation had an absolute. duty ‘to adhere to, abide- by and otherwise .- :
singularly operate-in good faith enly-according to the-express authotity granted and given to itby: -+
the Beauvoir Board.

.. 9: .., The Foundation breached that and-related fiduciary duties and continues t0.do 5o, -
‘by and through the improper use of the usurped and unauthorized use of the good name of
Beauvoir, misuse of the original limited authority granted to it by the Beauvoir Board and misuse:" -
of any money and support obtained in doing so.

THE FOUNDATION’S ACTIONS DETRIMENTALLY AFFECTED BEAUVOIR

L. Besides usurping Beauvoir’s name and reputation to collect and make money and

obtain substantial donations meant for Beauvoir for itself; The Foundation’s actions

12 .
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- consequently.-began -to. detrimentally impact and financially:-debilitate::and-: destabilize“the ‘w5 . 20

economic base sustaining Beauvoir, _ o o

- 2. : The'Foundation, in-its-capacity. as:the chief fund raising entity for Beauvoir; by - - -

soliciting-donations;contributions, support, et¢. ffom. indi

viduals, corporations, businesses.and . = Lo

organizations on ‘behalf of Beauvoir, and then without aithority reditect those funds away. from. *- =+ 7z :

Beauvoir and:to directly -to. Fhe- Foundation, did: have and could continue have a. financially .

detrimental impact upon Beauvoir. -

3. - .~ ‘The:Foundation’s:actions had the:potential to ultimately financially debilitate and-..: : '+ ¢+

- destabilize Beauvoir to the point where it would: fail or otherwise be unable to exist as a stable,. - ,~. ~ -

- independent entity .as-requiréd. by the-conditions wherein the historic home: and property were . = =

- heldin trust by the SCV." . = ..

4. . _The future of the historic home. and surrounding property would no longer be -
controlled in trust on behalf'ofthe public by the SCV through an elected Board of Directors and. .
Trustees under the terms and conditions historically- preserving it for the public good but instead --

possibly placed the hands of state ownership and probably ‘unrestricted private ownership, use :: ..

and control.- .- . -

.5. . The scenic and expansive beach .front property of Beauvoir where the historic .

Davis home'is located is estimated to be worth millions of dollars for private development. -
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY AND BREECH OF LOYALTY BY THE-

FOUNDATION

1. The Foundation had an absolute fiduciary duty and unalterable loyalty to serve. the.

distinct and defined interests of Beauvoir.

13 .
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" 2. 'The Foundation breached its: fiduciary duty -and loyally t& Beauvoir to:thesdireet ai. v

“detriment of Beauvoir, as described within this Complaint, by keeping and/or-controlling the . -

+ -. money it.obtained through. solicitations on behalf of Beauvoir and refusing to account for those -

- solicitations made and finds obtained. - -

- BREACH: OF FIDUCIARY DUTY AND BREECH OF LOYALTY BY THE BEAUVOIR: -~ v &0v o=

sonnnt . FOUNDATION’S REPRESENTATIVES AND AGENTS

B Képre._seﬁt_aftis{es ‘and -agents of The Foundation, as an active and serving. members and--

--D4itﬂé¢tﬁrs"‘.§&:.’tﬁé?fBDard“bﬁtBéaUVGir;“-had an ‘absolute :ﬁduciary: duty and. unél?ce'rablé:-iilcyaity..wf-

- serve the-distinct-and.defined interests of Beauvoir.~
" 2. Representatives and agents of The Foundation breached this fiduciary duty and loyalty-to. -
Beauvoit by serving the exclusive initerests of The Foundation, to- the "direct ‘detriment of -

Beauvoir; inténtional actions and deréliction of duties owed to Beauvoir.

3. ‘Representatives. and-agents of The Foundation’s harmful actions were on-behalf of'andto. .+ - =

- the-/direct ‘benefit--of -The -Foundation: and therefore these harmfil actions and Tresultant - '
detrimental consequences can be directly imputed to The Foundation.
- 4.. Reépresentatives and agents of The Foundation’s actions were intentional and with witlfil .- -
. intent.
5. - Representatives.and agents of The Foundation’s actions benefited The Foundation-to'the -. .
- direct detriment of Beauvoir. -
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY AND BREECH OF LOYALTY BY THE BEAUVOIR -
FOUNDATION’S BOARD MEMBERS
1. Representatives and agents of The Foundation, as active and serving members of -the

Board of Beauvoir as Directors, Executive Director and Special Events Coordinators of and for
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Beauvoir, had an absolute fiduciary. duty and unalterable loyalty’ts: seive the-distitict dnd-defiried « +7 nrciin”

interests of Beauvoir. = ... T e
2. Representatives and agents of The Foundation -breached this ﬁduéiary duty and-loyaltyto ~ ~ < -

Beauvoir by serving.the interests, to the direct detriment -of Beauvoir, of The Foundation, as -

- . described within this Complaint: -

3. They, jointly and severally, continued-io violate the special trust; confidence, authority .- - -
. and ‘agency _gr‘antetvi to.them by the Board. of Beauvoir:in the performance of theit fund Faising
and r.elalegl.. obligations: by serving as: representatives :and agents- loyal- to- The Foundation-as -
.- described within this Complaint.
. A Their actions:on behalf of The Foundation were intentional and with willful intent. - ©
. 5. Their actions -and representations. benefited The: Foundation to the direct detriment of
. Beauvoir.
- VIOLATION.OF AGENCY

1.-.. The Foundation breached the agency granted to it with Beauvoir in that it failed to
fulfill its mutually agreed obligations to' solicit and otherwise obtain monetary donations ‘and
similar support. for. the direct.benefit .of Beauvoir as basically set forth and recounted in the -
Complaint above.

2. - . The Foundation, by and through the actions of its Board Members Don-Barrett, -
. Bertram Davis and others breached the agency granted to it in trust with Beauvoir in that The
Foundation .failed to fulfill the mutually agreed -obligations to solicit and otherwise obtain
monetary donations and similar support for the direct benefit of Beauvoir as basically set forth

and recounted in this Complaint.

Case: 24C12:15-0v-00028 Documenf#: 1  Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 15 of 21



ks ]

3. .. The Foundation had an absolute duty to act in Good' Faith-ifi fulfiling=the: #siuiz :

fiduciary. and other related duties bestowed upon- it and its Board Meitibers as the prifnary

- - representative ,egt_ity’ and :agency authorized to solicit-and raise funds, donations and supportto :*

- the benefit.of Beauvoir. . .

- 4. . TheFoundation had an absohite duty for complete, candid, timely accouniting:and ...+ <

reporting in: fulfilling the privileges.and duties bestowed upon it and its Board Memibefs to dctds

the primary. représentative; entity and agency authorized.to.solicit and raise filnds, donations-and ¢ i -

supportfor the-benefit-of Beauvoir. .+ » -:-

BREACH OF TRUST AND DECEIT UPON BEAUVOIR

1. "Ihg..F.duiidaﬁbﬁ_, :tij;dugh..*-:its-:;bofard‘.meinbers‘,'- representatives and agents ‘intentionally . : ¥ 7

deceived Beauvoir and the Beauvoir Board by-obtaininig donations, contributions, funds, support;

money, etc. for Beauvoir and then keeping, retaining, using and/or otherwise misusing ‘the *

money obtained ‘for’its own tnauthorized purposes and unilateral agenda as set forth in this’ -~ - °

Complaint. . -, - z -

.2. The Foundatien and its' Board Members. intentionally breached the special -trust of the -

Beauvoir Board, its Trustees and Directors, given to.-it-by obtaining donations, contributions, -« -4 & -

funds, support, money, etc. for Beauvoir and then failing to fulfill its duty to account for and
timely report concerning any-money so obtained..

3. The Foundation and its Board Members combined and separate actions, -as recounted

herein, amounted to a.usurpation of the funds rightfully. belonging to and harmful competition- - -

against Beauvoir.
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-DECEIT - UPON'SUPPORTERS AND TBE PUBLIC
1. The Foundation; through its representatives; and agents-intentionally ‘misled Beauvoir’s -

. supporters, sponsors, contributors, individual donors-and the don'aﬁng‘pubﬁg.by_f‘s‘ﬁ]iéiﬁﬁg and

- obtaining donations, .contributions, funds, support, money, etc. from them: for Béativoir 4nd then- -

-keeping, retaining, using and/or otherwise-misusing the money obtained for its'own unauthorized - -
- purposes-and unilateral agenda, - -3 - -

- - IMPROPER DIVERSON AND CONVERSION OF FUNDS.

1. The Foundation; by afid through:its tepresentatives and agents, improperly’diverted.and: < .-~

converted those funds obtained specifically as:anthorized by the Beauvoir Board and éxclusivély - = -+ -

- held in trust for Beauvoir for its-own illicit; improper and unauthorized use: o

2. The Foundation had no authority from the. Beauvoir Board to. divert, convert-ot‘otherwise -

- Beauvoir.

oo -+ - TORTUOUS INTERFERENCE

. 1. The Foundation, by .and through its representatives and .agents, intentionally-interfered-:- == -

‘with the daily ongoing operations of Beauvoir and its various relationships and dealings with its .

* sustaining -and -supporting infrastructure and numerous donors and supporters - and - fuither -

tortuously interfered with Beauvoir’s-business and official relationships as recéunted herein.
2. TheFoundation, by and through its representatives and agents, intentionally did so as part -
of its surreptitious agenda and scheme to financially drive down and destabilize Beauvoir to a

point of unsustainability and eventual insolvency.

17 .
Case: 24CI12:15-cv-00028 Document# 1  Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 17 of 21



~3. Besides obtaining- money meant for Beauvoir, the cofisequential: purpose “6f this™>

" interference was to-financially destabilize Beauvoir’s ability to opétdte and furiction’ifi a fiscally ==~ 0

- - solvent manner as set forth above. .- - . .=+ -

" . ~DEMAND.FOR FULL ACCOUNTING

- 1. -A full accounting is hereby-demanded from The-Fouridation and all of its Officers-and* = ~ =

‘Board Members to. this Henorable Céurt-concerning all. recéipt of ‘morey; donations; funds, *

. financial pledges, promises; agreements, support or-contributions of any.type; obtairied-in any -

. .capacity whatsoever, regarding The Foundation’s actionis and-activities invelving or in any-way.. .- -~ .-

., Telated to Beauvoir and Jefferson:Davis. -

2. A full accoimting is hereby demahded-from.The Foundation and-all of its officers-and* -~ " & = ™

‘board members to this. Honorable Couit conceming all solicitations for'made or atternpted to be -
money, donations, funds,. financial :plé&ges, t_prbmiSéS; ff_lgi"e'r;rtjl,,e‘ms, support or contributions of -
. any type;.obtained in any capacity-whatsoever reégarditig The Foundation’s actions and activities -

involving or in any way related to Beauvoir-and Jefferson Davis.

3. A full.accounting is hereby demanded from The Foundation and all of its-officets and- " °

- board members to -this Honorable Court concerning all persons; corporations, businesses, & -

organizations or any other entities or groups contacted in any way for money, donations, funds,

financial pledges, promises, agreements, support or contributions of any type, obtairned in any == -
. capac¢ity whatsoever regarding The Foundation’s actions and activities involving or in any way
. related to Beauvoir and Jefferson Dayvis. .

4. Any other accounting as may be determined fo be required based on evidence presented

of the actions of The Foundation, its board members and accomplices.

18 .
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.- The:Foundation, by and through its tepresentatives and agents, repeatedly ‘bréached all’ = ===
.agreements, representations, fiduciary relationships, special trust- and related- duties. with =~

-Beauvoir throughyits culpable actions:involving intentional retention and conversion of-donatéd -7 ¢ -

CONCLUSION

. money, -improper. diversion. -of; fimds, . tortuous interference, and malicious- acts'thatwerg® -~ T

consequently ﬁnanclallydegxadmg to Beauvoir in its present charter and public capacity as'the: - 7

. living legacy to the President-ofithe Confederacy and:the historic preservation of the‘legendary - 7 ¥
: h_'e,fi!ag?.Oﬁ-;,.th?jQ9§f§d§!ﬂ§!&;§b§tﬁ@-;?Sol'dicj:‘r;. The unauthorized mission and unilateral motive: of .« = o -

- The Foundation was to. take moriey and support away from Beauvoir for the unauthorized use of: ="+

.- The Feundation. . All to the:direct-detriment of Beauvoir.. ..

PRAYER FOR RELIEF, RESTITUTION, RECOVERY AND DAMAGES ¢ - ~. = %~

- Plaintiff, Beauvoir, prays that this Hongrable Court.will grant relief and award ddmagés -

asfollows: . .. .-

1.

LI

Ordér a fall, comipléte and comprehensive factual and forensic accounting of all-funds-

.obtained by The Foundation; it board members and accomplices;

Order a 2ful‘,l},,;::.<~:Cu,;tfl;:ik‘a’c_e_.--211;(:1 comprehensive factual accounting -identifying all - R

individuals, businesses, corporations, organizations and other entities that contributed

to Beauvoir by way -of The Foundation or to The Foundation, its Board Members, -

Officers and accomplices; - -

Enter a judgment ordering the return of all remaining funds retained by The
Foundation, it Board Members, Officers and accomplices that rightfully belong to
Beauvoir; .

Award Beauvoir an amount equal to all solicitations obtained;

- 19 .
Case: 24CI12:15-cv-00028 Document#: 1 Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 19 of 21



5. _Award a sufficient sum_to make Beauvoir whole for the daiiages done, past; present 2= 1+ -

-and future to it by The Foundation, it board mémbers and accomplices; * ~

* 6. Enter an-order prohibiting The Foundstion, it board members and accomplices and"

any of these individual Defendants from: further ‘solicitation of funds, contributions, = = "%'

« mbhetary support;etc. in.any way related to or'on behalf of Beauvoir;

- -7 -Enter ‘a judgment awarding punitive: damages in a sum sufficient to prevent and - -

¢ - = curtail futuré-usufpation of Beauvoir’s good' name-and reputation and ‘to Serve ds’ - -7

-appropriate.mpohnetary punishment againsﬁl’he..Foundatio“ri; I EET

"8 ‘Enfer a-judgment awarding sufficient attornéys fees' and an .award reimbursing-all © 7 -

ol dﬂierefelafed:-expenses; )
9. -Granf any-other award or relief Beauvoir is entitled to in the interest of justice; -
10. Grant -any other award, judgment and/or order for the protection and preservation of - -
- Beauvoir. -
RESERVATION.OF RIGHTS TO ADD INDIVIDUAL BEFENDANTS ™ -5 7 <

-1... Plaintiff, Beauvoir, specifically reserves the right to add individually named defendants' - -

- to. this Complaint-if and  when sufficient decumentation. and/or other evidénce- is obtained. .-

indicating individual culpability and subsequent liability for the tortuous acts and consequential

damages done.to Beauvoir.

SXIE

Respectfully Submitted, this the 6 of February 2015.

BEAUVOIR
By and Through its Combined Boards
Of Directors and Trustees

o Nt | S

Richard V. F orte, Sr Chairman
Combined Boards of Beauvoir

Case: 24Cl2:15-cv-00028 Docume%? # 1 Filed: 02/06/2015 Page 20 of 21



-BEAUVOIR :
By and Through its Counsel A

James Baﬂey Halliday
Attorniey and Counselor at Law
- MS BarNo: 2924 - '
12257 Suite B: Ashley Drive
- Gulfport, MS 39503
(228) 868-5421 (O)
© . (228)539-9553:(F)
jhallidayesq@cableone.net

21 i
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11412021 Cable One Webmail

Cable One Webmail gregstewart@cableone.net
Beauvoir
From : Tanya Webber <Tanya.Webber@sos.ms.gov> Tue, Oct 22, 2019 03:36 PM

Subject : Beauvoir
To : gregstewart@cableone.net

Mr. Stewart,

Secretary Hosemann asked that I follow up with you regarding your request to get a copy of
the 2014 Findings Letter sent to Beauvoir.

As Cindy Sumrall, Sherri Bevis, and I have communicated to you, this information is part of

the investigation cefducted on behalf of the organization and is confidential information. As
such, that information cannot be shared with you.

I know that Shetri Bevis has already sent you the statute confirming this but for your
convenience, please see below.

§ 79-11-527. Recnprocai agreements with other states; public access to.
registration records. The Secretary of State may enitef into. recnprocal agreements with a
like authority of any other state or states for the purpose of exchanging information made
available to the Secretary of State or to such other like authonty The information contained
in:or filed with any registration application, renewal or réport:may be:made available to the
public under such rules as the Secretary of State _pres,crlbes Informiation in'the pessession of,
filed with or obtained by the Secretary of State in connection with any investigation or
examination under Sections 79-11-501 through 79-11-529 shall be confidential and exempt
from the requirements of the Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983. No:such information may
be disclosed by the Secretary of State or any of his officers or-employees unléss necessary or
appropriate in connection with a particular investigation or: proceedlng under Sections 79-11-
501 through 79-11-529 or for any law enforcement purpose.

Tanya G. Webber

Assistant Secretary of State

Charities Division

MISS|SSIppI Secretary of State’s Office

125 S. Congress Street
Jackson, MS 39201

(601) 359-1599 (phone)
(601) 359-9070 (fax)
Tanya.Webber@sos.ms.gov

¢hitps://mail.sparklight.com/h/printmessage?id=68655&tz=America/Chicago 12
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BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA
%*?‘3 Pine Burr Area Council
&~ 2021 Friends of Scouting

Total Contribution/Pledge: $, .
‘Payment Enclosed 9 cash, check, or credit card
Remuaining Balance §$ paid in installments (#):
« |Instaliment frequency: Once Semi-Annual Quarterly ~Monthly
* Remind me to pay next instaliment by: VA (MM/DD/YY)

2019 $1000
2018 $1000

SIGNATURE: 4 DATE:

SSpanish Trail DCD

Greg Stewart ' Phone(s) Mobile:
§7 Shorelineln Home:
Gulfport, MS 39503 6230 Businéss: 228 867-7070

Email:sdkeady@gmail.com

CreditCard # _ - ' .
Pleasecircle:  MasterCard  Viss  American Express Discover

Expires

202 /




Greg Stewart

A Scout is; Trustworthy, Loyal, Helpful,
Friendly, Courteous, Kind,
Obedient, Cheeifill, Thrifty,
Brave, Clean, and Revérent.

Scout Motto.
Be Prepared!

Scout Slogan
Do a Good Turn Daily -

 m———

Friends of Scouting

PAST HONOREES
Roy Anderson, II
Dave Dennis Pine Burr Area Council

Dr. Phil Dur , .
Bishop Joseph.L. Howze Boy Scouts of America
Senator.T'rent Lolt

" Ricky Rex Matthews ,
Jerry O'Keefe December 12,2019
Leo Seal
Congressman Gene Laylor . . . *
Roland Weeks, Jr. |
Brig. Gen. Joe Spraggins, USAY, RE]. !

Butch Oustalet
Hugh Keating




East High School in 1970 and

‘graduated from’ Mississippi State

Umvelslty in 1974 with a B.S,

© degree in Marketing. He returnied

- to Gulfport and went to work in
the family business, Allen

| Beverages, Inc., which his dad

- had founded in 1947. The

y company distributes soft drinks,

B water, and related products.in the

* six southern counties of

#®  Mississippi. He became

¢ President/CEO of Allen

" Beverages in 1991.

Active in Scouting since-the 1980°s, he has been chairman of the Friends of
Scouting campaign in.the Spanish Trail District, a:Cubmaster in Pack 301, past
president of the Pine Burr Area Couni¢il, and present meémber of the council
executive board. He is also a:Silver Beaver tecipiént,

Along with Scouting, he has been very active in-the Salvation Army sérving as
past president of the Gulﬁ)mt Corps. an;l.‘recexvmg the Olhels awaxd f01 ]us
efforts with the Army. He is alsosa long i
Couuty Tourtsm Comnnssnon, l

! »lub a. member of fhie: MlSSlSSlppl
State University College of Busmess’]:xecutwe Advisory Board, and past
president of Harrison County Habitat for Humamty He:is also very active with
his church, First Presbyterian Church of Ocean Springs:

and past plesxdent oF the Gu]fpoxt Rot'u

He now resides in Ocean Springs, MS with his wife, Nancy-and their two dogs,
Prince and Roxie. IHe has three children: Grace; Andrew, and Darby. Andrew
is married to the former Carmen Duke of Meridian, MS. Everyone lives on the
beautiful MS Guif Coast. All three children, along with his sister; Christie
Batson and nephew, Wesley Batson, are employed at Allen Beverages setting
the stage for a third-generation succession in the family business. He is very
proud of that fact!

The Pine Burr Area Council, Boy Scouts of America is pleased to announce
Drew Allen as the 2020 recipient of the Distinguished Citizen Award.

Drew Allen was born in Guifport,.
MS. He graduated from Gulfport.

2020 Mississippi Gulf Coast
Friends of Scouting
Distinguished Citizen Award Dinner

I. Welcome.....cooveveeiiiiiininiainininne i Brig. Gen. Joe Spraggins

I1. Flag Ceremony ....ccocuveuiiniimmnniniissssssssas 1 100D 316
Pass Christian Rotary Club

IIL Invocation......ccveviiiiiiennininn e Tro0p 316

Pass Christian Rotary Club

*Dinner+
TV. Special Presentation.......cccouivervinminnmnsineaCasey Norwood
V. 2019 Council Pride Points..civesecriserareresssriencnrnensnseesses Wes Fulmer
VL Scouting Story......cieevureensiisieeciansnne.on Life Scout Harrison Brown
VIH. Scouting Investment. ... ugh Keating
VIII. Presentation of Award..........ceeeienivvennneee Brig. Gen. Joe Spraggins

IX. ClIOSINGuceiivrariereeersrenneerionenneeaeeaneaeansens.. Brig. Gen. Joe Spraggins

A special “Thank You”
is due to-all those who have made this event possible

Wes. Fulmer Glen East

Chuck Wood Joel Blackledge
Eric Brown Jeff O’Keefe
Greg Stewart Jason Savarese
Hugh Keating Andrea Jones

Joe Spraggins Chris Cheek
Butch Oustalet Jonathan Allen
Palace Casino The Peoples Bank

DDKF

Specialty Contractors
Harrison County BOS
The Citizens Bank

IP Casino
Coast Electric
MDMR

GPT Airport



_ PINE BURR AREA COUNCIL
\%"‘f@\) BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

BOYSCOUTS OF AMERICA CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT

Contributions for the calendar year 2020 recorded by:

PINE BURR AREA COUNCIL
1318 HARDY STREET
. HATTIESBURG, MS 39401
Greg Stewart:
57 Shoreline L.
Gulfport, MS'39503-6230
If:you have any questions or concerns, please call: (601) 582-2326 Federal Tax ID: 640303072

€

Payments réquiring IRS:Contribution Statement: Non-Benefitted

Amount.of 'Gogﬁiﬁuﬁon‘ for 2020.

$1000

Benefits Received

NONE.

This Contribution Statement constitutes fulfillment of the IRS Charitable Contributions Substantiation Dis¢losure
Provisions.

For those confributions where the Benefit Received is -NONE- we stipulate no goods or services were provided by:
the organization in return for the contribution.

For those c¢ontributions identified as benefited the amount indicated is a good faith estimate of the value of goods or
services if any, that an organization provided in return for the contribution.



Trinity United Methodist Church
Trinity United Methodist Church

Mr. Greg Stewart
57 Shoreline Ln
Gulfport, MS 39503-6230

Page: 1

Contributions 2020

Reflects Gifts: 01/01/2020 to 12/31/2020

Envelope #. 726

NoN Fh

LSCRL CALYS &HT

F00 % beyty

Jo
2021

Your continued support greatly benefits the church. Thank you for your contributions.

Fund Description Gift Description Amotint Referénce #

020- Envelope/Pledge ) $200:00 012663

0 0. Envelope/Pledge $250.00 . 012696

03/04/2020 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 012714

103/29/2020. Envelope/Pledge $250.00 12743

05/03/2020; Envelope/Pledge $250.00 11768

106/07/2020:Envelope/Pledge $250:.00 11796

07105/2020. Memorials Herber W Struss-JR $250.00 11813

08/16/2020, Envélope/Pledge $250.00 11850

20 Efvélope/Pledge $250.00 11955

20 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 11884

20 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 11915

20 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 11970

Tax Deductible: Amount: $2,950.00
Fund Summary
Pledge Gifts Pledge Gifts
Fund Description Total YTD Total Pledge. This Period Prior Period Pledge Balance
Envelope/Pledge $2,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Memorials $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
... 52,950.00 $0.00 %000 - %000~ $0.00
DN o S



Page: 1

Trinity United Methodist Church Inquiry by Individual

Analysis of Dates: 01/01/2021 to 12/31/2021
Envelope #: 726

Mr. Greg Stewart
57 Shoreline Ln
Gulfport MS 39503-6230

L Gifts
Post Date Fund Code: Deseription Amount Comment Reference # Transaction Type

01/25/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge - -$250.00 12026 Regular Gift
02/16/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 8793 Regular Gift
03/08/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 008736 Regular Gift
04/05/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $250.00 012042 Regular Gift
'05/09/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $300.00 012069 Regular Gift
06/06/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $300.00 013259 Regular Gift
07/04/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $300.00 013283 Regular Gift
08/08/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $300.00 013320 Regular Gift
09/05/2021 1 Envelope/Pledge $300.00 013368 Regular Gift
MTD: $0.00

QTD: $0.00

YTD: $2,500.00

ALL: $2,500.00

[ Gift Totals

Week 1 Week 2 Week 3 Week 4 _ Week 5 Totals

January $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 —  $0.00 $250.00
February $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 e T
March $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00
April $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00
May $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00
June $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00
July $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00
August $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00
September $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00
October $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
November $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
December $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
QTR I: $750.00

_OTR2: $850.00

\ *R3: $900.00

Vo4 $0.00
$2,500.00

/

il /(‘
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Community -Heritége Preservation Grant Program—Round 13
Senate Bill 3065, Laws of Mississipps, 2019 «

Grant Application and Guidelines

Mississippi Department of Archives and History
Historic Preservation Division
P. O. Box 571
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-0571
601-576-6940
www.mdah.ms.gov
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To: Humphreys County Board of Supervisors
From: Greg Stewart

Re: Mississippi Department of Archives & History Grant Program for Historic
Courthouses

Date: August 8, 2019

The Mississippi Department of Archives & ‘His"tﬁc?)‘r“fy"(M-DA&H) Grant application for
the above referenced program is included in this-.correspondence.

The Humphreys County Courthouse is perhaps the finest building in the county
and would be a treasure anywheré.

Renovations and improvements to such a building is not done cheaply and can be
mishandled.’ '

Recognizing this, the State of Mississippi, through MDA&H have set Up a grant
program to help counties refurbish and renovate their historic courthouses.

As a person interested in the conservation of beautiful buildings in Mississippi, 1
want to thank you for yourtime in allowing mie to let you know of the grant. 1 am
not an architect or contractor but.am only interested in making sure Humphreys
County hh?é knows of this opportunity.

My best advice is to-contact Jim Woodrick who is the MDA&H administrator of
the grants.and let him know of yourinterest. His direct number is 601 576-5908.

If you want to proceed with renovations through this grant then be aware of the
deadline and the application. If it were me, | would have an experienced architect
work closely with me to get the successful application submitted. The MDA&H is
naturally going to be more comfortable with persons known to them already that
have successfully completed projects. Larry Albert of Albert and Associates of
Hattiesburg is the one that | know-of, Mr. Woodrick would naturally know of others:

Larry Albert

Albert & Associates

Physical:

514 Main Street

Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39401
Mailing:

Post Office Box

Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39403
Office: 601 5441970

Cell: 601 310-3133



Is Hereby Designated Ballot Security Personmnel
(Poll Watcher) for the 2019 General Election
Certified by the Harrison County Republican Party

Mississippi Code §23-15-577, Mississippi Code § 23-15-571 E

(el _ {/Sﬁﬂww "

Harrison Courity Republican Executive Committee
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GregStewan

From: CHARLES L CANTRELL [clcantri@olemiss.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, May 28, 2014 8:38 AM

To: Greg Stewart

Subject: RE: Sheep for Beauvoir

Hi Greg,

That shouid cover everything. | might would leave the sheep in & barn stall or pen until you return unless your fencing is
solid/good. | can load them into my small trailer using a “goat tote” and deliver them to your farm. | will charge mileage
one way at 0.50 cents per mile so about $165-for detivery to your farm. 5 ewes at $200 each weuld be $1000 so the
total delivered would be $1165. )

Let e know if that 5ounds good?

I'would deliver them on June 7" around noon or 1 PM. Will leave Oxford; MS early. Since | advertised registered
animals, | will submit the paperwork for registration and the papers will come to you directly once delivered and paid. |
will worm again and update vaccination before delivery.

Thanks, Charles

From: Greg Stewart [mallto:gstewart@bsauvoir.org]
~ Sent: Monday, May 26, 2014 7:53 PM

“To: CHARLES L.CANTRELL

Subject: Sheep for Beauvoir

5 ewes at 200.00 each. Hair (sp?) sheep. |'am-working on the fencing that we’can move around, plus a covered pen at
night.

We talked about food, water, treatmernit, etc.

We still need to talk about delivery. If you came-south with them and left the trailer here while you continued on to
Florida for your (much deserved) trip, what would you charge for the service arid what day do you think you would
arrive? | am set to leave here on Friday morning but can have an.able person (not scared of animals) on hand to be me.
What have | forgotten?

Greg Stewart

Beauvoir
228 234-0220



Greng Stewart

From: Greg Stewart [gstewart@beauvoir.org]

Sent: Friday, December 16, 2016 1:45 PM

To: ‘dcobb@beauvoir.org’; ‘Owenmcdowell@beauvoir.org'
Subject: Mileage policy

Donna,

I have never claimed any mileage, and won’t but | am vaguely aware there is a policy.
What is the policy and have we paid.any or'is any on the horizon?

Also, could you break out-our fuel expense for the past several years? | got rid of the use of the tanks in'the back
because | was highly suspicious that not all of what'we put in the tanks was going to Beauvoir vehicles.

Also, | think, but am not sure, that time-on grass mowers is down considerably since'2013. If there is evera serious
study-of the out-sourcing of that we need good information about what the real costs are.....

Greg
Owen,

I would highly recommend the'board review this policy. It was never an issue for me during the extremely lean times
butcan be a boogér. I'am cértain the budget will need to allow for more of it should it ever get up-and going again,
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Receipt for Payment

Payment Received From: 7;7@ EW/A 7L

For: 37t Summary of Recent Mississippi Law CLE
Imperial Palace Hotel & Casino/Biloxi, MS

Sponsor: E. Farish Percy

Date: Feb. 7,2020

Amount: $260.00

cash [] Check.ljj # U/Qégl




SUMMARY O

|

CLE Schedule
8:30 - 9:00 Registration
9:00 - 10:00 Civil Practice and Procedure
E. Farish Percy
10:10-11:10 Civil Practice and Procedure
E. Farish:Percy .
11:20 - 12:20 Family Law/Real Property

' 12:20 —1:30

1:30-2:30

2:40 - 3:40

3:50 - 4:50

Deborah Bell

Lunch (on your own)

Ethics, Professional Responsibility
and Malpractice Prevention

Benjamin Cooper

Torts
E. Farish Percy

Torts/Insurance/Evidence
E. Farish Percy



~ Cable One Webmail gregstewart@cableone.net

Fwd: BARBRI Bar Review Registration Confirmation

From : Greg Stewart <joegregorystewart@gmail.com> Thu, Sep 05, 2019 03:02 PM
Subject : Fwd: BARBRI Bar Review Registration Confirmation
To : Greg 8772 Stewart <gregstewart@cableone:net>
External images are net displayed. Display images below

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: info@barbri.com
Date ‘May 4, 2019 at 9 37 47 AM CDT

Sub;ect BARBRI Bar Revsew Registration Confirmation

follow us on Facebook ~ follow us | barbri.com

Dear Greg Stewart:
Thank you for enrolling in BARBRI Bar Review, the nation's #1 bar review course. We
have helped over 1.3 million people succeed on the bar exam over more than 50 years

and we are excited to be your partner throughout this critical endeavor.

BARBRI Enroliment Information

[+

You are registered for the MS Bar Review Course for Summer 2019
Your BARBRI 1D is 100007634

Your payment of $4079.00 was accepted

Your username is; 15220717

Terms and Agreement

-3

©

]

©

Access Your Account Anytime



| Mississippi Bankruptcy
Conference, Inc.

AT RIS SRS
TR AT PRI

1052 Highland Colony Parkway, Suite 100 || Ridgeland, Mississippi 39157 || T: (601) 605-0722 || F: (601) 605-0733

October 15, 2021

Tl 7 i ictial sinfnar: Noveimber 18-19; 202045 o Shadit i b earbed.
Regislraﬁbn;~ - You may renew your membership and register for the seminar online-at

- WWW, mlSSISSIQ‘Q xbanluugtcyconference com or use the form at the bottom of this page:

CLECredit: , ‘Thls cotirse has been approved by the Mississippi Commission on Continuing. Legal Eduction for a
. ‘maximum of 12 hours credxt including one-ethics hour. PLEASE NO'[F. ‘Request for'CLE credits should be
- . & .Warkedon },our registration, fom1

Materials: - Semifiar matena]s will be available two days before the seminar begins:to' download or print oniline at
Wwwian ississi ibanlrupteyconference. coimn for those who are attending the. virtual:seminar,

Discount; ~ A $5 early régistration discount may be deducted from the remstranon fee for any: registration. postmarked. -
" ‘ormade onlme by November 5, 2021.

'Cancell‘atibr_;‘s: :A full reﬁn__ld w1ll be given for cancellations made by 5:00 p.m., November 12, 2021 After that'date; no
) sfund; w;ll' 1§ glven To.cancel, notify the Mississippi Bankruptcy Conference, Inc. at 1052 Highland
uite’ 109, Ridgelaiid, MS39157, by telephone at (601) 605-0722; _

MlSSlSSlppl Bankruptcy Conference, Inc.
Virtual Seminar. Registration
" DATES OF SEMINAR: November 18-19, 2021
Please register one person per form — photocopies are accepted; or, you may register online at:
WWW, m1sslssmmbankruptcvconference com

- Mefa Rsm_llar Qem.na'}?e—:-. ..... Mevsersnes e aeanaa demteenearensenneionnnse 836{} 00, )<
.. Yearly. Dues for Fegular Member... eertreesneeaiiens 100,00 S
Member — Pardlegal/Legal Assistant/Secretary/Law Student Semmar Fee ....................... 120.00
Yearly Dues for Paralegal/Legal Assistant/Secretary/Law Student..... 25.00 _—_____.
Government Employee: Séminar Fee (Includes membership)........oooooee . N 360.00 ——
Non-Member: ~ Attorney: Seminar Fee...........coevrvenreeenenns e eenre e e ee e an e 500.00
Non-Attorney and inactive member of the Bar: Seminar Fee....cvveuveenn.n. 360.00

Earlv Reglstratnon Discount (‘Vlust be postmarked by November 5, 2021) .....cccoiiiuuunrnerncaeennen (5.00)

. &°
TFotal AMOUNEENCIOSEE .. orsvo ettt ﬂ -~

Neme - Joe. @mmmf Stewand~ cLE Credit: YES X NO___
Bar# .- 82733 . 7 (needed-for CLE Credit) - :
Addross 2 Shedelaie. Lanc  City Qm*&' state S 7ip i
Telephone_;Z&ﬁ 23Y- 0220 EmallAddress goéj fégofVST&dMT a 76’3’”‘33 - Comy

Checks should be payable to Mississippi Bankruptcy Conference, Inc., and mailed to:
' 1052 Highland Colony Parkway, Suite 100, Ridgeland, MS 39157
For information please contact Stephen Smith, Executive Director, at (601) 605-0722

CE# 0)2Y3Y
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Beauvoeir, The Jefferson
Purpose

Davis Home and Presidential Library

To educatethe world about the life and‘tithes of Jefferson Davis and the confederate soldier.
Filing Information

Filing Number: 100000589

Filing Status: Closed - Expired O ‘%’é\ {A

Initial Date Filed: _————_ AZ() al & Dot

Expiration Date:( 09/15/2018 MASSes

Address *

2244 Beach Boulevard “The. Mq%_«;%éﬂ@@ Cand sl ;@W
Biloxi, MS 39531 | _ solies:

Contact Information Da ATV Wﬁ; Wit ety

W
Registered Name: Beauvoir, The Jefferson Davis-'Home and Presidential Library
Business Phone: 1-228-388-4400
Web Address:  www.visitbeauvoir.org

Financial Information

Fiscal Year: 04/30/2017

Amount: Percent:
Total Revenue $ 652,206.00
Total Expenses $ 1,388,506.00
Program Services Expenses $ 1,166,832.00 84%
Fund Raising Expenses $ 45,433.00 3%
Administrative Expenses  $ 176,241.00 13%

Other Expenses $0.00



